
 

 

Petitions Committee 
 

Meeting Venue: 
Committee Room 1 - Senedd 

 

 

 

Meeting date: 
7 February 2012  

 

Meeting time: 
09:30 

 

For further information please contact:  

Abigail Phillips 
Committee Clerk 
029 2089 8421 
Petition@wales.gov.uk  

  

 

Agenda 
 

 

1.    Introduction, apologies and substitutions 09:30  

2.    New petitions 09:30-09:40  

2.1 
  

P-04-362 Ambulance Services in Monmouth  (Page 1) 

2.2 
  

P-04-364 Fibre Optic for Rural Area's  (Page 2) 

3.    Updates to previous petitions 09:40-10:30  

3.1 
  

P-04-354 Public statement of support for Bradley Manning  (Pages 3 - 5) 

Housing, Regeneration & Heritage 

3.2 
  

P-04-352 Save Roath Steam Laundry  (Pages 6 - 9) 

Business, Enterprise, Technology & Science 

3.3 
  

P-04-340 Create an Enterprise Zone in Newport  (Pages 10 - 13) 

Local Government and Communities 

3.4 
  

P-03-315 New Dyfi River Crossing Petition  (Pages 14 - 46) 

Public Document Pack



 

 

Health and Social Services 

3.5 
  

P-03-085 Surgeries in Flintshire  (Pages 47 - 63) 

3.6 
  

P-03-280 Cardiff Royal Infirmary  (Pages 64 - 66) 

3.7 
  

P-03-295 Kyle Beere - Paediatric Neuro Rehabilitation Services  (Pages 67 - 
72) 

3.8 
  

P-04-334 Petition for a new renal unit at Prince Charles Hospital  (Pages 73 - 
82) 

3.9 
  

P-04-348 Recycling Targets for Health Boards  (Pages 83 - 90) 

Education and Skills 

3.10 
  

P-03-143 Ysgol Penmaes  (Page 91) 

4.    Minister for Local Government and Communities - oral 
evidence session 10.30-11.00  

4.1 
  

P-04-331 Filming and Recording of Council Meetings  (Page 92) 

4.2 
  

P-04-332 Local Authority Spending Details over £500  (Pages 93 - 95) 



PET(4)-03-12 p1a 

P-04-362 Ambulance Services in Monmouth  

 
Petition wording: 

We believe that Monmouth should be granted the appropriate ambulance 

provision. With its population set to rise, and the Minor Injuries Unit at 

Monnow Vale recently closed down, demand will increase for the ambulance 

service.  

National Assembly for Wales: 

We request the Health and Social Committee of the National Assembly to 

undertake a scrutiny inquiry into the ambulance service in rural Wales. We 

would urge the Committee to investigate the particular problems in 

Monmouth and the impact of the closure of the Monnow Vale Minor Injuries 

Unit on the ambulance service.  

Welsh Government: 

We urge the Minister for Health and social Care to use her powers to require 

the Wales NHS Ambulance Trust to provide a uniformly high standard of 

ambulance provision throughout Wales and especially rural areas such as 

Monmouthshire. 

Welsh Ambulance NHS Trust: 

We urge Welsh Ambulance NHS Trust to increase provision for Monmouth in 

real terms, with a high dependency unit and/or ambulance based within 

Monmouth town. 

 

Petition raised by: Mathew Davies 

Date petition first considered by Committee: 7 February 2012 

Number of signatures: 42 online signatures collected. (Approximately 400 

signatures due for collection on 7 February 2012) 

Agenda Item 2.1

Page 1



PET(4)-03-12 p3a 

P-04-364 Fibre Optic for Rural Area’s 
 
Petition wording: 

We call on the National Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh Government to 

do more to support the roll-out of next generation/fibre optic broadband 

and to ensure that it is available to everyone in Wales by 2013, including 

Ecommerce, new communication businesses (IT Industry) and enhanced 

communication between current businesses while having the side effect of 

benefiting the local communities. For an example, in the Valleys many 

families and businesses are stuck with slow speeds in comparison to the rest 

of the UK. This petition is to get Fibre Optic installed to these areas where 

businesses already are to be able to help revive the poorest areas in 

Wales/Cymru. 

 

Petition raised by: Kai Childheart 

Date petition first considered by Committee: 7 February 2012 

Number of signatures: 17 

Supporting information: At the moment the Internet Service Providers are 

under their own duty to get speeds to certain areas and they are partially 

backed (for the whole of the UK) to get Highspeed Internet to the rural areas. 

Ofcom & Fujitsu for instance. However this is not a welsh initiative and I 

personally believe it could provide work for Wales should the Assembly press 

for it. The benefits to businesses would be great in terms of Communication 

and E-Commerce and also to attract new business! 

Agenda Item 2.2

Page 2



PET(4)-03-12 p4a 

P-04-354 Public statement of support for Bradley Manning 
 
Petition wording: 

We call on the National Assembly for Wales to issue a public statement of 
support for Welsh/US citizen Bradley Manning. 
 

Petition raised by: Rev Christopher Trefor Davies 

Date petition first considered by Committee: 10 January 2012 

Number of signatures: 90 

Agenda Item 3.1

Page 3



PET(4)-03-12 p4b 

DATGANIADAU BARN YSGRIFENEDIG / 

WRITTEN STATEMENTS OF OPINION 

A GYFLWYNWYD / TABLED ON 18/01/2012 
R Yn dynodi bod yr Aelod wedi datgan buddiant 
R Signifies the Member has declared an interest 

 

OPIN-2012-0054 - Bradley Manning/Bradley Manning 
 
Codwyd gan / Raised By:  
 
Bethan Jenkins 
 
Tanysgrifwyr / Subscribers: 
 
 
 
 
 
Bradley Manning 
 
Yn nodi erlyniad parhaus y Preifat Dosbarth Cyntaf Bradley Manning, a arferai 
fyw yn Hwlffordd, ac yn mynegi gobaith y bydd proses y treial yn deg ac yn 
rhydd. 
 
Yn nodi pryder am y ffordd y cafodd ei drin cyn y treial yn yr US Quantico 
Marine Base, gan gynnwys cael ei garcharu’n ynysig a’i atal rhag cysgu a 
gwneud ymarfer corff. 
 
Yn gresynu wrth benderfyniad gweinyddiaeth Unol Daleithiau America i atal 
Rapporteur Arbennig y Cenhedloedd Unedig ar Arteithio rhag cael gweld 
Manning yn ddirwystr ac yn annog gweinyddiaeth Unol Daleithiau America i 
wyrdroi’r penderfyniad hwn ar unwaith.  
 
Yn cydnabod yr ymgyrchoedd amrywiol sy’n cefnogi Bradley Manning, yn 
enwedig y gweithredu parhaus yng Nghymru, gan gynnwys cyflwyno deiseb 
ffurfiol i’r Cynulliad Cenedlaethol. 
 
Bradley Manning 
 
Notes the on-going prosecution of Private First Class Bradley Manning, a 
former resident of Haverfordwest, and expresses hope for a free and fair trial 
process. 
 

Page 4



Notes concern over his pre-trial treatment at US Quantico Marine Base, 
including solitary confinement and denial of sleep and exercise. 
 
Regrets the US administration's decision to deny the UN Special Rapporteur 
on Torture unimpeded access to Manning, and urges the US administration to 
reverse this decision immediately. 
 
Recognises the various campaigns in support of Bradley Manning, particularly 
the on-going action being taken in Wales, including the presentation of a 
formal petition to the National Assembly. 
 

Page 5



PET(4)-03-12 p5a 

P-04-352 Save Roath Steam Laundry 
 
Petition wording: 

We call on the National Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh Government to 

save Roath Steam Laundry.  Built in 1898, Roath Steam Laundry at 33 

Marlborough Road is a unique landmark building adjacent to the Roath Mill 

Gardens Conservation Area. We, the undersigned, object to the demolition of 

this building which would lead to the further decimation of Cardiff’s 

architectural and social heritage. Roath Steam Laundry should be conserved 

for the benefit of the whole community and should become an amenity 

which all could be proud of. 

 

Petition raised by: Dave Green 

Date petition first considered by Committee: 10 January 2012 

Number of signatures: 145 

Agenda Item 3.2

Page 6



From: Coward, Matthew (CADW) 

Sent: 15 August 2011 11:41 

 

FORMER ROATH STEAM LAUNDRY  

!"#$%&'()&*(+&,($-#,-.$/&0#12&#3()-&-"4&5(66.374&7.6-.$/&(*&-"4&*(+84+&9(#-"&
:-4#8&;#)$1+'&#6&#&3).71.$/&(*&654,.#7&#+,".-4,-)+#7&(+&".6-(+.,&.$-4+46-<&&

=*-4+&,#+4*)7&,($6.14+#-.($&(*&#77&-"4&4>.14$,4&+4,4.>41?&#$1&#&6.-4&.$654,-.($?&
0#12&1(46&$(-&347.4>4&-"#-&-"4&3).71.$/&+4#,"46&-"4&6-#$1#+1&+4@).+41&*(+&
7.6-.$/<&&A&4$,7(64&#&,(5'&(*&-"4&#6646684$-&+45(+-&2".,"&5+(>.146&*)+-"4+&
14-#.76&(*&-"4&3#6.6&*(+&-"#-&>.42<&&&&

A&,#$&2477&)$14+6-#$1&"(2&'()&2.77&34&1.6#55(.$-41&2.-"&-".6&14,.6.($<&
B(24>4+?&A&,#$&#66)+4&'()&-"#-&0#12&"#6&7((%41&,7(647'&#-&#77&-"4&4>.14$,4&
5+464$-41&.$&6)55(+-&(*&7.6-.$/&3)-?&#6&-"4&6-#-)-(+'&,+.-4+.#&#+4&$(-&84-&.$&-"4&
,#64&(*&-".6&3).71.$/?&-"4+4&.6&$(&3#6.6&($&2".,"&-(&7.6-<&

A&#8&6(++'&-"#-&8'&+457'&,()71&$(-&34&8(+4&5(6.-.>4<

 

94/#+16 

C#--"42  

 

DE!FGHIJKILM&5!3

Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



PET(4)-03-12 p6a 

P-04-340 Create an Enterprise Zone in Newport 

Petition wording 

 

We the undersigned wish the Welsh Government to create an 

Enterprise Zone in Newport and wish them to debate this in the 

Senedd. 

Petition raised by: Councillor David Williams 

First considered by Committee: October 2011 

Number of signatures: 10 (an associated petition collected 40 signatures) 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 3.3

Page 10



!"#$%&'()'*+,-!.

Page 11



PET(4)-03-12 p6c 

The Record: 19 October 2011 

 Ardaloedd Menter 

 

Enterprise Zones 

1. Llyr Huws Gruffydd: A wnaiff y 

Gweinidog ddatganiad am yr Ardaloedd 

Menter. OAQ(4)0055(BET)  

1. Llyr Huws Gruffydd: Will the Minister 

make a statement on Enterprise Zones. 

OAQ(4)0055(BET)  

The Minister for Business, Enterprise, Technology and Science (Edwina Hart): I am 

introducing enterprise zones in Wales and have identified five preferred locations for detailed 

development.  

Llyr Huws Gruffydd: Yr ydym eisoes wedi 

gweld rhywfaint o’ch cynlluniau ar gyfer y 

parthau menter, ac edrychwn ymlaen at weld 

y manylion yn llawn. Fe fyddwch yn 

ymwybodol bod y sefyllfa economaidd yn 

gwaethygu a bod gofid difrifol ynglŷn â’r 

cynnydd diweddar a welwyd mewn 

diweithdra a’r cynnydd arfaethedig a 

wynebwn dros y misoedd a’r blynyddoedd i 

ddod. Pa gynlluniau ychwanegol y byddwch 

yn eu cyflwyno mewn ymateb i’r sefyllfa 

gynyddol argyfyngus y mae economi Cymru 

yn ei hwynebu? 

Llyr Huws Gruffydd: We have already seen 

some of your plans for the enterprise zones, 

and we look forward to seeing the details in 

full. You will be aware that the economic 

situation is deteriorating and that there is real 

concern about the recent increases seen in 

unemployment and the increase that we 

anticipate over the coming months and years. 

What additional plans will you introduce in 

response to the increasingly critical state of the 

Welsh economy?  

Edwina Hart: Thank you for that question. You, like me, recognise that the enterprise zones 

will not help to the extent that some people imagine that they will in terms of dealing with 

some of the issues regarding the Welsh economy. The department is therefore reviewing all 

of our assistance to business and how we can be more proactive with business, and I am 

discussing with my colleagues what help and assistance they can give from their portfolios to 

assist business in these difficult times. 

Kenneth Skates: I once again welcome the announcement about enterprise zones. With 

regard to social enterprises in particular, everyone knows the enormous positive impact that 

they make in communities across Wales, but many ambitious social entrepreneurs struggle to 

raise the funds needed to start or develop the next phase of their business. Will you commit to 

ensuring that the needs of social enterprises will be given full consideration during the 

development stage of enterprise zone policy and examine whether the Welsh Government 

could consider specific incentives for companies that operate along social enterprise lines? 

Edwina Hart: Social enterprises are businesses, therefore I will respond positively to your 

question. 

William Graham: Yesterday, the First Minister made it clear that the door is not completely 

closed on new enterprise zones. Would you look again at the case for Newport? You will 

know that a cross-party petition has been handed to the Petitions Committee on the subject. 

The council is doing its best, but would like an impetus from you. Could you indicate that 

you may look at this favourably? 

Edwina Hart: I have already received representations on this from the Member concerned in 

the Chamber, and, dare I say it, from the Presiding Officer and my ministerial colleague, John 

Griffiths, about the issues around Newport and enterprise zones. My officials will be looking 

Page 12



at the issues surrounding this. 

Yr Arglwydd Elis-Thomas: A oes gan y 

Gweinidog ychwanegiad diweddar i’w wneud 

i’w datganiad ynglŷn â’r posibilrwydd o 

ddatblygu rhagor o barthau menter gyda golwg 

arbennig ar sefyllfa safle datgomisiynedig 

Trawsfynydd a’r posibilrwydd o sicrhau 

canolfan addas ar gyfer ynni ac ynni 

cynaliadwy ar y safle hwnnw? 

Lord Elis-Thomas: Does the Minister have 

an update to her statement about the 

possibility of developing further enterprise 

zones with a particular view to the situation 

of the decommissioned site in Trawsfynydd 

and the possibility of ensuring an appropriate 

centre for energy and sustainable energy on 

that site? 

Edwina Hart: It is my intention, hopefully before Christmas, to make further announcements 

on the possibility of enterprise zones. I am mindful that enterprise is sometimes focused on 

quite industrial areas, and it is important that we look at rural Wales and locations such as 

Trawsfynydd in terms of enterprise zones. I am having discussions on this issue with 

Gwynedd Council. 

Eluned Parrott: Can you give us an idea as to what measures you have put in place to 

protect Newport from the adjacent enterprise zone in Bristol? 

Edwina Hart: I do not think that it is my job to protect cities from anything. We have to 

acknowledge that business and commerce exist, and will go where they need to go. We can 

only enhance opportunities for developments to come into Wales, and we have a 

comprehensive package to attract businesses in, with excellent training packages that are 

always commented upon favourably by employers that come here. Obviously, I have given 

an indication to William Graham that I am considering Newport, and my officials are having 

ongoing discussions. 

Eluned Parrott: I am delighted to hear that. The leader of Newport City Council is on record 

as saying that he fears that: 

'The city will now be 'squeezed’ by Bristol and Hereford on one side and Cardiff and Ebbw 

Vale on the other…in facing the on-going economic challenges.’ 

The city of Newport would like to hear you talk about ways in which you might feel able to 

protect it with the measures that you wish to introduce. Can you give us an overview of a 

schedule? Obviously, Newport wants an enterprise zone and you have talked about— 

The Presiding Officer: Could you come to the question, please? 

Eluned Parrott: Can you give us an idea of what schedule you are working to with regard to 

reviewing the success of implementing the first tranche of enterprise zones? 

Edwina Hart: I have already indicated that I will probably be making a statement before the 

end of the year regarding any possible new enterprise zones. It will be my intention to flesh 

out the detail before the end of this term in order to make a statement to Members about how 

the five enterprise zones will work. 

 

Page 13



PET(4)-03-12 p7a 

P-03-315 New Dyfi River Crossing  

Petition wording 

We, the undersigned, are in favour of and support, any proposition to create a new 
crossing of the Dyfi River (or the re-routing of the A487) linking South Meirionnydd 
with Powys, Dyfed and Ceredigion, to accommodate and suite the demands of 
modern day traffic and urge prioritisation of funding and action. We call on the 
National Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh Government to create this crossing as 
a matter of priority. 

Petition raised by: South Meirionnydd Older People’s Forum 

Petition first considered by Committee: February 2011 

Number of signatures: 3204 

 

Agenda Item 3.4

Page 14



!"#$%&'()'*+,-!.

Page 15



Page 16



, ,

,

 

,

,
,
,
,
,
,

A487 FISHGUARD TO BANGOR TRUNK ROAD 

PONT AR DYFI IMPROVEMENT 

MACHYNLLETH 

Options Development Report 
,

February 2011 

Report Prepared By: Powys County Council 

Report Ref: 0396C/02/DC,SK Rev D 
,

,

Asiantaeth Cefnffyrdd Canolbarth Cymru 

Mid Wales Trunk Road Agency 

Page 17



, ,

Asiantaeth Cefnffyrdd Canolbarth 

Cymru 
Mid Wales Trunk Road Agency 

Partneriaeth Cyngor Sir Ceredigion & Powys County Council 

Partnership 

,
 

Andy Cochran 

Rheolwr Cefnffyrdd / Trunk Road Manager 

Council Offices 

Spa Road East,  

Llandrindod Wells 

Powys LD1 5LG 

,

A487 FISHGUARD TO BANGOR TRUNK ROAD 

PONT AR DYFI IMPROVEMENT 

MACHYNLLETH 

February 2011 

,
,

/0#12345/#426,5476/#03"58,

, !9:-;9:<,.=8, >>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>> , ?;@:8>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>,

Simon Kendrick, Project Engineer 

Derek Cosslett, Senior Engineer 

, AB:CD:<,;E<,/--9FG:<,.=8 >>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>> , ?;@:8>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>,

Shaun James, Project Manager 
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
,

4HHI:<,.=8,
JK<,L;M:H,#9IED,3F;<,/N:EC=,
/I@FOF.KM:,!;M;C:,
#:O-M:,5@9::@,
PM;E<9KE<F<,L:MMH,
!FQ=H,P?*,R10,
#:M8',(S%R,T(U,T(T(,

4HHI:<,@F8,
#9;EH-F9@V,1FIHKEN,W,3:N:E:9;@KFE,
L:MHB,/HH:O.M=,7FG:9EO:E@,
A;@B;=H,!;9D,
A;9<KXX,
AY*(,)6Z,
,

,

Page 18



, ,

,
,

A26#"6#5,
,

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY .............................................................................................. 1

1. INTRODUCTION ................................................................................................ 2

2. REPORT SCOPE ............................................................................................... 2

3. NEED FOR SCHEME......................................................................................... 2

4. EXISTING CONDITIONS.................................................................................... 3

5. IMPROVEMENT OPTIONS ................................................................................ 9

5.1 OPTION 1 - DO NOTHING ............................................................................... 10

5.2 OPTION 2 – INSTALLATION OF PERMANENT TRAFFIC SIGNALS.............. 12

5.3 OPTION 3 – DO MINIMUM, STRENGTHENING WORKS ONLY..................... 13

5.4 OPTION 4 – WIDENING AND STRENGTHENING OF EXISTING BRIDGE..... 15

6. ADVANTAGES/DISADVANTAGES OF OPTIONS ........................................... 17

7. COMPARISON OF COSTS FOR EACH OPTION ............................................ 19

8. CONSULTATION AND CONSENTS ................................................................ 19

9. ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS – ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT.............. 21

10. DISCUSSION/CONCLUSION........................................................................... 22

11. RECOMMENDATIONS..................................................................................... 23

12. APPENDIX A – PHOTOGRAPHS..................................................................... 24

13. APPENDIX B – DRAWINGS ............................................................................ 25

,
,
,,,

Page 19



,

,
,

!FE@,;9,?=XK,4O-9FG:O:E@,',2-@KFEH,?:G:MF-O:E@,3:-F9@,

,  

*,

 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

4@,KH,9:CFNEKH:<,@B;@,@B:9:,;9:,;,EIO.:9,FX,KHHI:H,9:M;@KEN,@F,@B:,:[KH@KEN,9FI@:,FX,@B:,/%SU,
;@,!FE@,;9,?=XK,$?=XK,\9K<N:&,@B;@,;XX:C@,E:@QF9D,9:HKMK:EC:V,@B:H:,N:E:9;MM=,9:M;@:,@F,XMFF<,
H:G:9;EC:,;E<,@B:,M;=FI@,;E<,CFE<K@KFE,FX,@B:,:[KH@KEN,.9K<N:>,
,
#B:, 9FI@:, KH, @B:, -9KECK-;M, HFI@B, @F, EF9@B, CF;H@;M, 9FI@:, KE,L;M:H, ;E<, MKEDH, CFOOIEK@K:H,
;MFEN,@B:,Q:H@,CF;H@,;E<,KH,;MHF,;,-F-IM;9,@FI9KH@,9FI@:>,,,
,
#B:,/XFE,?=XK,X9:]I:E@M=,XMFF<H,.:@Q::E,@B:,"A2,!;9D,;E<,@B:,.9K<N:,;E<,@B:,H:C@KFE,FX,
@B:,/%SU,@9;G:9HKEN,@B:,XMFF<-M;KE,KH,-:9KF<KC;MM=,KEIE<;@:<V,@BIH,H:G:9KEN,@BKH,HFI@B^EF9@B,
MKED,.:@Q::E,!FQ=H,;E<,7Q=E:<<, XF9,-:9KF<H,FX,I-, @F, @B9::,<;=H,H:G:9;M, @KO:H,;,=:;9V,
BFQ:G:9V,@B:,.9K<N:,K@H:MX,KH,EF@,HI._:C@,@F,KEIE<;@KFE>,
,
#B:,:[KH@KEN,C9FHHKEN,FX,@B:,/XFE,?=XK,B;H,K@H,FQE,IEK]I:,-9F.M:OH>,4E,F9<:9,@F,-9FGK<:,;,
HFMI@KFE, @F, @B:, XMFF<,H:G:9;EC:, KHHI:,;,O;_F9,HCB:O:V,HICB,;H,;,GK;<IC@V,CFH@KEN, KE, @B:,
9:NKFE,FX,`*R'`+(O,QKMM,.:,9:]IK9:<,QBKCB,KH,FI@HK<:,@B:,HCF-:,FX,@BKH,9:-F9@>,
,
#B:, .9K<N:, KH, E;99FQV, B;H, EF, XFF@Q;=HV, HI.H@;E<;9<, B:KNB@, -;9;-:@H, ;E<, HI.H@;E<;9<,
GKHK.KMK@=, <I:, @F,-FF9,N:FO:@9=,FX, @B:, _IEC@KFE,FE, @B:,EF9@B:9E,HK<:>,#BKH,-FF9,N:FO:@9=,
9:HIM@H, KE, CFE@KEI;M, <;O;N:, @F, @B:, -;9;-:@H, ;E<, H-;E<9:M, Q;MMH>, #B:, .9K<N:, B;H, ;MHF,
9:C:E@M=, .::E, ;HH:HH:<, ;E<, @B:, 9:HIM@H, KE<KC;@:, @B;@, @B:, .9K<N:, <F:H, EF@, B;G:, @B:,
C;-;CK@=,@F,;CCFOOF<;@:,M;9N:9,G:BKCM:H,;E<,@B:,C;-;CK@=,9:<IC:H,XI9@B:9,<I9KEN,H:G:9:,
XMFF<,CFE<K@KFEH,;H,@B:,H@9IC@I9:,.:CFO:H,H;@I9;@:<>,,
,
#B:, H@9IC@I9:, KH, CI99:E@M=, HI._:C@, @F, HKNEKXKC;E@, ;EEI;M,O;KE@:E;EC:, CFH@HV, -9KO;9KM=, XF9,
-;9;-:@,<;O;N:,9:-;K9H>,4@,KH,CFEHK<:9:<,@B;@,;H,@B:,.9K<N:,CFE@KEI:H,@F,<:@:9KF9;@:,@B:H:,
CFH@H,QKMM,KEC9:;H:,HKNEKXKC;E@M=,;H,QKMM,@B:,<:M;=H>,,
,
/, EIO.:9, FX, F-@KFEH, B;G:, .::E, CFEHK<:9:<, ;@, @B:, .9K<N:, KECMI<KEN, ?F, 6F@BKENV, @B:,
KEH@;MM;@KFE,FX,@9;XXKC,HKNE;MHV,?F,JKEKOIO,;E<,QK<:EKEN,;E<,H@9:EN@B:EKEN>,
,
#B:,:[KH@KEN,.9K<N:,KH,CM;HHKXK:<,;H,;,79;<:,44,PKH@:<,5@9IC@I9:,;E<,;,5CB:<IM:<,/ECK:E@,
JFEIO:E@,;E<,@B:9:XF9:,;--9FG;M,OIH@,.:,F.@;KE:<,X9FO,A/?L,XF9,;E=,CB;EN:H,@F,@B:,
:[KH@KEN,H@9IC@I9:>,#B:,/XFE,?=XK,KH,;,5@;@I@F9=,J;KE,3KG:9V,;E<,X;MMH,IE<:9,@B:,_I9KH<KC@KFE,
FX,@B:,"EGK9FEO:E@,/N:EC=,$"/&>,YMFF<,?:X:EC:,AFEH:E@,OIH@,@B:9:XF9:,.:,F.@;KE:<,XF9,
;E=,-9F-FH:<,QF9DH>,,
,
#B:, QK<:EKEN, ;E<, H@9:EN@B:EKEN, F-@KFE, KH, 9:CFOO:E<:<, ;H, K@, QFIM<, -9FGK<:, ;,
C;99K;N:Q;=,QK<@B,FX,a>)O,;E<,XFF@Q;=H,+O,QK<:>,4@,QKMM,:EHI9:,@B:,MFEN,@:9O,XI@I9:,IH:,
FX,@B:,H@9IC@I9:V,9:<IC:,@B:,O;KE@:E;EC:,MK;.KMK@=,C;IH:<,.=,CFMMKHKFE,<;O;N:,;E<,KO-9FG:,
@B:, _IEC@KFE, M;=FI@, QK@B, @B:, /%a)>, #BKH, F-@KFE, C;E, .:, CFEH@9IC@:<, QBKM:, @B:, 9FI@:, KH,
F-:9;@KFE;MV,;M.:K@,HKENM:,M;E:>,4@,B;H,@B:,;<G;E@;N:H,FX,O;DKEN,@B:,.9K<N:,XK@,XF9,-I9-FH:,
;E<, :EHI9KEN, @B:, -9:H:9G;@KFE, FX, @B:, BKH@F9KC, H@9IC@I9:>, 4@, QKMM, 9:OFG:, CI99:E@, IEHKNB@M=,
9:-;K9H,;E<,HI--F9@,.9;CKEN,@F,M:;G:,@B:,.9K<N:,KE,;,CFE<K@KFE,QBKCBV,@BFINB,CB;EN:<V,QKMM,
.:,KE,D::-KEN,QK@B,@B:,<:HKNE,;E<,;:H@B:@KCH,FX,@B:,F9KNKE;M,H@9IC@I9:>,2EC:,CFO-M:@:<,@B:,
H@9IC@I9:bH,MFEN,@:9O,GK;.KMK@=,QKMM,.:,H:CI9:<,QK@B,9:M;@KG:M=,MFQ,O;KE@:E;EC:,CFH@H>,
,
4@,HBFIM<,.:,EF@:<, @B;@, XMFF<,H:G:9;EC:,FX, @B:, @9IED, 9F;<, @F, @B:,HFI@B,FX, @B:,.9K<N:,QKMM,
CFE@KEI:V,-FHHK.M=,I-,@F,XFI9,@KO:H,;,=:;9,;E<,K@,KH,9:CFOO:E<:<,@B;@,N;@:H^.FMM;9<H,;9:,
KEH@;MM:<, @F,-9:G:E@,;CC:HH, @B9FINB, @B:, XMFF<:<,;9:;,;E<, @B:9:XF9:,OK@KN;@:, @B:, 9KHDH, @F,
G:BKCM:H,;E<, @B:K9, FCCI-;E@H, C9FHHKEN, @B:,:H@I;9=,<I9KEN, XMFF<,CFE<K@KFEH>,/, 9:-F9@,B;H,
.::E, -9:-;9:<, @F, CFEHK<:9, @BKH, KHHI:V, BFQ:G:9V, @BKH, HBFIM<, .:, -I9HI:<, ;H, ;,O;@@:9, FX,
-9KF9K@=,<I:,@F,@B:,KEB:9:E@,9KHDH,CI99:E@M=,-FH:<>,

,
,

Page 20



,

,
,

!FE@,;9,?=XK,4O-9FG:O:E@,',2-@KFEH,?:G:MF-O:E@,3:-F9@,

,  

+,

1. INTRODUCTION 

#B:,/%SU,YKHBNI;9<,@F,\;ENF9,#9IED,3F;<,KH,@B:,-9KECK-;M,HFI@B,@F,EF9@B,CF;H@;M,9FI@:,KE,
L;M:H>,#B:,BKNBQ;=,MKEDH,CFOOIEK@K:H,;MFEN,@B:,Q:H@,CF;H@,;E<,KH,;MHF,;,-F-IM;9,@FI9KH@,
9FI@:, C;99=KEN, @9;XXKC, @B9FINB,!:O.9FD:HBK9:V,A:9:<KNKFEV,!FQ=H,;E<,7Q=E:<<>,/H,Q:MM,
;H, MFC;M, ;E<, .IHKE:HH, @9;XXKC, @B:, 9FI@:, C;99K:H, @B:, #9;QHA;O.9K;, .IH, H:9GKC:, @B;@, MKEDH,
6F9@B,;E<,5FI@B,L;M:H,;H,Q:MM,;H,;,EIO.:9,FX,MFC;M,.IH,H:9GKC:H>,,
,
!FE@,;9,?=XK,$?=XK,\9K<N:&,KH,MFC;@:<,KOO:<K;@:M=,EF9@B,FX,@B:,O;9D:@,@FQE,FX,J;CB=EMM:@B,
KE,EF9@B,!FQ=HV,QB:9:,@B:,/%SU,C9FHH:H,@B:,/XFE,?=XK,;E<,K@H,;HHFCK;@:<,XMFF<-M;KE>,
,
#B:, @9IED, 9F;<, ;@, !FE@, ;9, ?=XK, B;H, .::E, @B:, HI._:C@, FX, ;, EIO.:9, FX, H@I<K:H, KE@F, @B:,
F-:9;@KFE,;E<,H:9GKC:;.KMK@=,FX,@B:,:[KH@KEN,9FI@:,;C9FHH,@B:,/XFE,?=XK,XMFF<-M;KE>,,
,

2. REPORT SCOPE 

#B:9:, ;9:, ;, EIO.:9, FX, KHHI:H, 9:M;@KEN, @F, @B:, :[KH@KEN, 9FI@:, ;@, @BKH, MFC;@KFEV, N:E:9;MM=,
9:M;@KEN, @F, XMFF<,H:G:9;EC:,;E<,@B:, M;=FI@,;E<,CFE<K@KFE,FX, @B:,:[KH@KEN,.9K<N:V,BFQ:G:9V,
@BKH, 9:-F9@, KE@:E<H, @F,CFEC:E@9;@:,FE,@B:,:[KH@KEN,C9FHHKEN,FX, @B:,/XFE,?=XK,QBKCB,B;H,K@H,
FQE,IEK]I:,-9F.M:OH>,
,
2@B:9,QK<:9,E:@QF9D, KHHI:HV,N:E:9;MM=, 9:M;@KEN, @F, XMFF<KEN,FX, @B:,BKNBQ;=,E:@QF9D, KE,@BKH,
;9:;,B;G:,.::E,@B:,HI._:C@,FX,;,EIO.:9,FX,H:-;9;@:,H@I<K:H,;E<,;9:,EF@,CFEHK<:9:<,QK@BKE,
@BKH,9:-F9@>,
,
4E,F9<:9,@F,-9FGK<:,;,HFMI@KFE,@F,@B:,XMFF<,H:G:9;EC:,-9F.M:O,;,O;_F9,HCB:O:V,HICB,;H,;,
GK;<IC@V,CFH@KEN,KE,@B:,9:NKFE,FX,`*R'`+(O,QKMM,.:,9:]IK9:<,QBKCB,KH,FI@,FX,@B:,HCF-:,FX,@BKH,
9:-F9@>, 4E, F9<:9, @F, CFO-M=, QK@B, L:MHB, /HH:O.M=, 7FG:9EO:E@, -FMKC=, K@, QKMM, ;MHF, .:,
E:C:HH;9=, @F, IE<:9@;D:, ;, @9;EH-F9@, ;--9;KH;M, KE, ;CCF9<;EC:, QK@B, @B:,L:MHB, #9;EH-F9@,
!M;EEKEN, ;E<, /--9;KH;M, 7IK<:MKE:H, $L:M#/7&>, #BKH, QKMM, ;HHKH@, KE, @B:, <:G:MF-O:E@, FX,
-9F-FH;MH,;E<,@F,:E;.M:,@B:,OFH@,;--9F-9K;@:,HCB:O:,@F,.:,K<:E@KXK:<,IHKEN,;E,F._:C@KG:,
M:<,;--9F;CB,;E<,@F,;MMFQ,CFO-;9KHFE,FX,CFO-:@KEN,HCB:O:H,FE,;,MKD:,XF9,MKD:,.;HKH,,
,

3. NEED FOR SCHEME 

4@, KH, CFEHK<:9:<, @B;@, @B:, -9KECK-;M, X;C@F9H, <:@:9OKEKEN, @B:, E::<, XF9, ;E, KO-9FG:O:E@,
HCB:O:,;9:8',
,

•, @B:,:[KH@KEN,.9K<N:,9:]IK9:H,H@9:EN@B:EKEN,@F,;CCFOOF<;@:,%(^%%,@FEE:,G:BKCM:,
MF;<KENc,

•, @B:, :[KH@KEN, .9K<N:, KH, @FF, E;99FQV, B;H, HI.'H@;E<;9<, -;9;-:@HV, KH, QK@BFI@,
XFF@Q;=H,;E<,B;H,-FF9,@I9EKEN,N:FO:@9=,;E<,GKHK.KMK@=,FE,@B:,EF9@B,$7Q=E:<<&,
HK<:c,

•, @B:,HI.H@;E<;9<,;MKNEO:E@,9:HIM@H,KE,CFMMKHKFEH,FE,;,9:NIM;9,.;HKH,<;O;NKEN,@B:,
X;.9KC, FX, @B:, .9K<N:>, #BKH, CFEH@;E@, <;O;N:, B;H, 9:HIM@:<, KE, FENFKENV, CFH@M=,
O;KE@:E;EC:,;E<,<:@:9KF9;@KFE,@F,@B:,H@9IC@I9:c,

•, CFMMKHKFEH,;@,@B:,.9K<N:,9:HIM@,KE,9F;<,CMFHI9:H,XF9,O;KE@:E;EC:,;E<,9:-;K9,QF9D,
9:]IK9KEN,<KG:9HKFEH,@F,.:,KO-M:O:E@:<c,

•, @B:, /%SU, @9IED, 9F;<, C9FHH:H, @B:, /XFE, ?=XK, EF9@B, FX, J;CB=EMM:@B, ;@, @B:, XK9H@,
I-H@9:;O,9F;<,C9FHHKEN,FX,@B:,9KG:9,*RDO,:;H@,X9FO,K@H,:H@I;9=,;@,/.:9<=XK,;E<,
KH,H@9;@:NKC;MM=,KO-F9@;E@,XF9,CFOOIEK@K:H,FE,.F@B,HK<:,FX,@B:,?=XKc,,

•, @B:,E:;9:H@,;M@:9E;@KG:, 9F;<,C9FHHKEN,FX, @B:, 9KG:9, KH,SDO, @F, @B:,:;H@,IHKEN, @B:,
deI.KM::,\9K<N:b,$!FQ=H,AA,9:X,EF>,A\+)))&,;@,79FXX@V,QBKCB,KEGFMG:H,;E,*SDO,
<:@FI9,;MFEN,@B:,\%%(%,;E<,/%Sa>,1FQ:G:9V,@BKH,9FI@:,KH,EF@,HIK@;.M:,XF9,M;9N:9,
G:BKCM:H,;E<,B;H,;MHF,.::E,CMFH:<,<I:,@F,XMFF<KEN,FE,;,EIO.:9,FX,FCC;HKFEHc,
;E<,

Page 21



,

,
,

!FE@,;9,?=XK,4O-9FG:O:E@,',2-@KFEH,?:G:MF-O:E@,3:-F9@,

,  

),

•, @F,-9FGK<:,E:@QF9D, 9:HKMK:EC:,QB:E, @B:,/%U(,<KG:9HKFE, 9FI@:, KH,CMFH:<, XF9,;E=,
9:;HFEV,HICB,;H,@B:,M;E<HMK-,E:;9,\QMCB,=,?9QH,KE,+(*(>,

,

4. EXISTING CONDITIONS 

4 .1 Location 

!FE@, ;9, ?=XK, KH, MFC;@:<, EF9@B, FX, J;CB=EMM:@B, FE, @B:, .FIE<;9=, .:@Q::E, !FQ=H, ;E<,
7Q=E:<<, QB:9:, @B:, /%SU, C9FHH:H, @B:, /XFE, ?=XK, ;E<, KH, -;9@M=, HK@I;@:<, QK@BKE, @B:,
5EFQ<FEK;, 6;@KFE;M, !;9D>, /, MFC;@KFE, -M;E, KH, HBFQE, .:MFQ>, ?9;QKEN, 6F>, ()aTA^Y^(R,
HBFQH, @B:, N:E:9;M, ;99;EN:O:E@, FX, @B:, :[KH@KEN,.9K<N:,;E<,-BF@FN9;-BH,;9:, KECMI<:<, KE,
/--:E<K[,/,
,

4.2 Speed Limits 

#B:, @9IED, 9F;<, KH, HI._:C@, @F, ;,)(O-B,H-::<, MKOK@, @B9FINB,J;CB=EMM:@B, @F,;,-FKE@, R((O,
HFI@B,FX,!FE@,;9,?=XK>,#B:, @9IED,;E<,CFIE@=, 9F;<H,EF9@B,FX, @BKH,-FKE@,;9:,HI._:C@, @F, @B:,
6;@KFE;M,5-::<,PKOK@>,

4.3 Traffic Flows 

#B:,/G:9;N:,/EEI;M,?;KM=,#9;XXKC,$//?#&,XMFQ,FE,@BKH,H:C@KFE,FX,@B:,/%SU,#9IED,3F;<,KH,
TTS(>,3:CF9<H,HBFQ,@B;@,+f,FX,@B:H:,;9:,1:;G=,7FF<H,g:BKCM:H,$17gbH&>,#B:H:,XKNI9:H,
Q:9:, 9:CF9<:<, KE,+((a,.=, @B:,?:-;9@O:E@,FX,#9;EH-F9@,HFI@B,FX,!FE@,;9,?=XK>,1FQ:G:9V,
9:CF9<H,HBFQ,@B;@,@9;XXKC,GFMIO:H,KEC9:;H:,CFEHK<:9;.M=,<I9KEN,@B:,HIOO:9,OFE@BH,;H,;,
9:HIM@,FX,@FI9KH@,@9;XXKC,
,

4.4 Layout, Alignment and Visibility 

Y9FO, J;CB=EMM:@B, @B:, /%SU, -9FC::<H, EF9@BQ;9<H, -;HHKEN, .:MFQ, @B:, A;O.9K;E, PKE:,
3;KMQ;=, $*%b'(h, B:;<9FFO&, :O:9NKEN, QK@B, @B:, ?=XK, "CF, !;9D, 4E<IH@9K;M, "H@;@:, FE, K@H,
:;H@:9E,HK<:>,
,
#B:,/%SU,CFE@KEI:H,EF9@BQ;9<H,;C9FHH, @B:,/XFE,?=XK, XMFF<,-M;KE, XF9, T((O,FE,;,HMKNB@M=,
9;KH:<, :O.;EDO:E@, @F, @B:, :[KH@KEN, !FE@, ;9, ?=XK>, #B:, XKG:, H-;E, O;HFE9=, ;9CB, .9K<N:,
C;99K:H,@B:,@9IED,9F;<,;C9FHH,@B:,9KG:9,@F,@B:,_IEC@KFE,FE,@B:,EF9@B:9E,HK<:,QK@B,@B:,/%a)V,
@B:,/.:9<=XK^#=Q=E,9F;<>,
,
Y9FO, @BKH, _IEC@KFE, @B:,/%SU, 9IEH,:;H@Q;9<H,-;9;MM:M, @F, @B:, 9KG:9,;E<V, 9KHKEN, KE,:M:G;@KFEV,
@FQ;9<H,YX9K<<,Y;9O,.:XF9:,K@,@I9EH,EF9@BQ;9<,@FQ;9<H,?FMN:MM;I>,
,
#B:,/%Sa, 9IEH,:;H@Q;9<H, X9FO, @B:,C:E@9:,FX,J;CB=EMM:@B, @F, _FKE, @B:,/%U(,;@,A:OO;:H,
3F;<>,
,
#B:,\%%(%,9IEH,X9FO,@B:,/%SU,FE,@B:,EF9@B:9E,HK<:,FX,@B:,/XFE,?=XK,;E<,C9FHH:H,@B:,9KG:9,
E:;9,79FXX@,QB:9:,K@,9:_FKEH,@B:,/%Sa,Q:H@,FX,A:OO;:H,3F;<>,
,
#B:, M;=FI@, ;@, @B:,/%SU^/%a), _IEC@KFE, KH, HI.'H@;E<;9<,;E<,-9:H:E@H,<KXXKCIM@K:H, @F, M;9N:9,
G:BKCM:H,E:NF@K;@KEN,@B:,@I9E,FE@F,@B:,.9K<N:>,!BF@FN9;-B,*U,HBFQH,;,17g,;@@:O-@KEN,@F,
E:NF@K;@:,@B:,_IEC@KFE>,#B:,E;99FQ,;--9F;CB,@F,@B:,.9K<N:,X9FO,.F@B,AF99KH,;E<,/.:9<=XK,
:[;C:9.;@:H, @B:, -9F.M:O>, #BKH, KH, CFEXK9O:<, .=, @B:, CFE@KEI;M, <;O;N:,;E<, 9:-;K9, @F, @B:,
-;9;-:@H,;E<,H-;E<9:M,Q;MMH,;E<,CFO-I@:9,N:E:9;@:<,HQ:-@,-;@BH,B;G:,.::E,IE<:9@;D:E,
XF9,;, M;9N:,;9@KCIM;@:<,G:BKCM:,QBKCB,;9:,HBFQE,FE,?9;QKEN,6F>,()aTA^Y^()>,gKHK.KMK@=,;@,
@B:,/%SU^/%a),_IEC@KFE,KH,;MHF,.:MFQ,H@;E<;9<>,
>

Page 22



, , ,
!
F
E
@,
;
9,
?
=
XK
,4
O
-
9F
G
:
O
:
E
@,
',
2
-
@K
F
E
H
,?
:
G
:
MF
-
O
:
E
@,
3
:
-
F
9@
,

,
 

%
,

,

L
o

c
a
ti

o
n

 P
la

n

P
O

N
T

 A
R

 

D
Y

F
I 

Page 23



,

,
,

!FE@,;9,?=XK,4O-9FG:O:E@,',2-@KFEH,?:G:MF-O:E@,3:-F9@,

,  

R,

4.5 Carriageway and Footway Widths 

#B:, C;99K;N:Q;=, QK<@BH, FE, @B:, EF9@B:9E, ;E<, HFI@B:9E, ;--9F;CB:H, @F, @B:, .9K<N:, G;9=,
.:@Q::E,T>aSO,;E<,T>*RO,QK@B, @B:, @=-KC;M,QK<@B,.:KEN,;9FIE<,T>U(O>,#B:,/%SU, MFC;MM=,
E;99FQH, @F, T>*RO, ;@, @B:, @K:'KE, @F, !FE@, ;9, ?=XK>, #BKH, ;H-:C@, @B:9:XF9:, <F:H, EF@, O::@,
OKEKOIO,QK<@B,9:]IK9:O:E@H,XF9,;,HKENM:,C;99K;N:Q;=,@9IED,9F;<,$U>)O&>,
,
#B:,C;99K;N:Q;=,QK<@B,FE,!FE@,;9,?=XK, K@H:MX, KH,M:HH,@B;E,@B:,;--9F;CBKEN,@9IED,9F;<,;E<,
G;9K:H,.:@Q::E,R>T*O,;E<,R>RUOV,EF,XFF@Q;=,F9,-:<:H@9K;E,9:XIN:,KH,-9FGK<:<,;MFEN,@B:,
.9K<N:>,,
,
#B:, ;G:9;N:, QK<@B, FX, @B:, /%a), FE, @B:, ;--9F;CB, @F, @B:, /%SU, _IEC@KFE, KH, R>RO, QK@B, ;,
OKEKOIO,QK<@B,FX,%>RO>,
,

4.6 Collision History 

#B:9:, B;G:, .::E, @QF, 9:CF9<:<, HMKNB@, KE_I9=, CFMMKHKFEH, KE, @B:, GKCKEK@=, FX, @B:,.9K<N:, KE, @B:,
-;H@, XKG:, =:;9H>,\F@B, CFMMKHKFEH, KEGFMG:<,G:BKCM:H, @9;G:MKEN, KE,F--FHK@:,<K9:C@KFEH,CFOKEN,
KE@F,CFEXMKC@,FE,@B:,.9K<N:>,,
,
!BF@FN9;-BH,HBFQKEN,FE:,FX,@B:,CFMMKHKFEH,;9:,HBFQE,KE,/--:E<K[,/>,#BKH,CFMMKHKFE,C;IH:<,
<;O;N:, @F, @B:, -;9;-:@, ;E<, H-;E<9:M, Q;MMH, ;E<, 9:]IK9:<, HKNEKXKC;E@, 9:-;K9, QF9D>, #B:,
.9K<N:,Q;H,CMFH:<,FE,@BKH,FCC;HKFE,XF9,@B:,G:BKCM:H,@F,.:,9:OFG:<,;E<,@B:,<;O;N:,@F,@B:,
.9K<N:, @F, .:, ;HH:HH:<>, #B:, .9K<N:, B;H, ;MHF, .::E, CMFH:<, FE, F@B:9, FCC;HKFEH, <I:, @F,
G:BKCM:H,.:KEN,IE;.M:,@F,-;HH,@B9FINB,@B:,HI.'H@;E<;9<,M;=FI@,XFMMFQKEN,CFMMKHKFEH>,,
,
#B:9:,B;G:,.::E,EIO:9FIH,IE9:CF9<:<,<;O;N:,FEM=,CFMMKHKFEH,F9,E:;9,OKHH:H,@B;@,B;G:,
@;D:E, -M;C:, C;IHKEN, X9:]I:E@, <;O;N:, @F, @B:, -;9;-:@H, ;E<, .FIE<;9=, Q;MMH, FX, E:;9.=,
-9F-:9@K:H>,,

,

4.7 Pont ar Dyfi 

4.7.1 Bridge History 

/M@BFINB,;,C9FHHKEN,FX,@B:,/XFE,?=XK,O;=,B;G:,-9:GKFIHM=,:[KH@:<,;@,@BKH,MFC;@KFE,@B:,XK9H@,
DEFQE,9:CF9<KEN,KH,FX,;,@KO.:9,.9K<N:,:9:C@:<,KE,*R))V,QBKCB,Q;H,HI.H:]I:E@M=,9:-M;C:<,
.=,;,O;HFE9=,H@9IC@I9:,CK9C;,*TS*>,,,
,
#B:,-9:H:E@,!FE@,;9,?=XK, KH,;, XKG:,;9CB,O;HFE9=,H@9IC@I9:, @B;@,Q;H,CFEH@9IC@:<, KE,*S(R,
;E<, CM;HHKXK:<, .=, A/?L, ;H, ;, A;@:NF9=, /, HK@:V, .:KEN, FX, dE;@KFE;M, KO-F9@;EC:, ;E<,
-9:HIO:<,@F,.:,-9:H:9G:<,;E<,-9F@:C@:<,in situb>,#B:,.9K<N:,;MHF,B;H,H@;@I@F9=,-9F@:C@KFE,
;H,;,79;<:,44,PKH@:<,H@9IC@I9:,;E<,;,5CB:<IM:<,/ECK:E@,JFEIO:E@,$9:X,EF,5/J,JN((+&>,
,
4E, @B:,-;H@,T(,=:;9H, @B:9:,B;G:,.::E,OF<KXKC;@KFEH,;E<, 9:-;K9H, @F, @B:,.9K<N:V, @B:,OF9:,
HKNEKXKC;E@,FX,@B:H:,;9:8,
,

•, AK9C;, *a%a, ', YM;9:<, :[@:EHKFEH, @F, @B:, EF9@B, H-;E, Q:9:, ;<<:<, @F, KO-9FG:, @B:,
_IEC@KFE,QK@B,@B:,CFIE@=,9F;<c,

,

•, *aT+8',5CFI9,-9F@:C@KFE,QK@B,P;9H:E,-KM:H,<FQEH@9:;O,FX,H@9IC@I9:c,
,

•, *aTU^S8',/9CB,XKMM,-9:HHI9:,N9FI@:<c,
,

•, *aUR8',3:-;K9H,@F,-;G:<,KEG:9@c,
,

•, *aS*8',7;.KFE,@9;KEKEN,Q;MM,.IKM@,<FQEH@9:;Oc,,
,

•, *aa(8',/HH:HHO:E@,i,A;-;CK@=,FX,H@9IC@I9:,*U,@FEE:Hc,
,

Page 24



,

,
,

!FE@,;9,?=XK,4O-9FG:O:E@,',2-@KFEH,?:G:MF-O:E@,3:-F9@,

,  

T,

•, *aa*8',#:O-F9;9=,H@9:EN@B:EKEN,QK@B,H@::M,.9;CKEN,@F,-K:9,*,;E<,@K:H,@F,9:O;KE<:9,
FX,H-;E<9:MHc,

,

•, +((a8',/HH:HHO:E@,i,A;-;CK@=,FX,5@9IC@I9:,i,*), @FEE:H, 9:<ICKEN, @F,;H, MFQ,;H,),
@FEE:H,<I9KEN,XMFF<KENc,;E<,

,

•, *aT(, @F,<;@:8',Y9:]I:E@, 9:-;K9H, @F,O;HFE9=,-;9;-:@H,<I:, @F,<;O;N:,C;IH:<,.=,
.9K<N:,H@9KD:H>,

,
4E, @B:, -;H@, @BK9@=, =:;9H, KEC9:;HKEN, @9;XXKC, ;E<, CFE@KEIKEN, <:@:9KF9;@KFE, FX, @B:, :[KH@KEN,
O;HFE9=,H@9IC@I9:,B;H,9:]IK9:<,H@9IC@I9;M,H@9:EN@B:EKEN,QF9DH,;E<,9:-;K9H,@F,:EHI9:,@B:,
.9K<N:, 9:O;KEH, F-:E, @F, G:BKCIM;9, @9;XXKC>, #B:, .9K<N:, -;9;-:@H, 9:NIM;9M=, HIXX:9, G:BKCM:,
CFMMKHKFE,<;O;N:,<I:,@F,@B:,KEHIXXKCK:E@,QK<@B,;E<,-FF9,N:FO:@9=V,:G:E,@BFINB,KE,*a%a,@B:,
.9K<N:,Q;H,MFC;MM=,dQK<:E:<b,FE,@B:,EF9@B:9E,HK<:,@F,:;H:,@BKH,-9F.M:O>,
,
#B:,H@9IC@I9:,KH,CI99:E@M=,HI._:C@,@F,;EEI;M,O;KE@:E;EC:,CFH@H,FX,;,OKEKOIO,FX,`*(V(((V,
-9KO;9KM=, XF9, -;9;-:@, <;O;N:, 9:-;K9HV, ;M@BFINB, KE, HFO:, =:;9H, @B:, CFH@H, O;=, .:,
HKNEKXKC;E@M=,OF9:>,YF9,:[;O-M:V,KE,eIE:,+(*(,;,*TO,M:EN@B,FX,-;9;-:@,Q;H,<:OFMKHB:<,.=,
;,G:BKCM:,X;KMKEN,@F,E:NF@K;@:,@B:,_IEC@KFE,;E<,!BF@FN9;-BH,*R,;E<,*T,HBFQ,@B:,<;O;N:>,
/H, ;, 9:HIM@, @B:, .9K<N:, Q;H, CMFH:<, XF9, H;X:@=, 9:;HFEH, XF9, @QF, B;MX, <;=HV, 17gbH, Q:9:,
<KG:9@:<,XF9,S,Q::DH,;E<,@B:,CFH@,FX,9:-;K9H,Q;H,KE,:[C:HH,FX,`%(V(((>,4@,KH,MKD:M=,@B;@,;H,
@B:,.9K<N:,CFE@KEI:H,@F,<:@:9KF9;@:,@B:H:,CFH@H,QKMM, KEC9:;H:,;E<,;E,;E@KCK-;@:<,H-:E<,KE,
:[C:HH,FX,`%(V(((,-:9,;EEIO,B;H,.::E,:H@KO;@:<,XF9,XI@I9:,9:-;K9H>,
,

4.7.2 Principal Inspection 

4E,eIM=,+((T,;,!9KECK-;M,4EH-:C@KFE,Q;H,IE<:9@;D:E,QBKCB,K<:E@KXK:<,@B;@8',
,

•, @B:,H@FE:QF9D,-;9;-:@,Q;MMH,B;G:,KEHIXXKCK:E@,B:KNB@,QK@B,H:G:9;M,:[C:HHKG:,.IMNKEN,
H:C@KFEHc,

•, H@::M,@K:H,9:H@9;KE,.IMNKEN,H-;E<9:M,Q;MMH,QK@B,;<<K@KFE;M,.9;CKEN,.:KEN,IH:<,.:@Q::E,
;9CB:H,*,;E<,+c,

•, @B:,C;99K;N:Q;=,QK<@B,FX,R>RO,KH,@FF,E;99FQ,XF9,@QF,M;9N:,G:BKCM:H,@F,-;HH,9:HIM@KEN,
KE,X9:]I:E@,CFMMKHKFE,<;O;N:,@F,@B:,H@9IC@I9:c,

•, EF,X;CKMK@=,F9,9:XIN:,:[KH@H,XF9,-:<:H@9K;EHc,

•, @B:, MKOK@;@KFEH, KO-FH:<, .=, @B:, HI.'H@;E<;9<, .9K<N:, C;99K;N:Q;=, QK<@B, ;9:,
:[;C:9.;@:<,.=,@B:,-FF9,N:FO:@9=,;@,@B:,/%SU^/%a),_IEC@KFE,FE,@B:,EF9@B:9E,$9KNB@,
.;ED&,HK<:,XI9@B:9,9:<ICKEN,C;-;CK@=,;E<,H;X:@=c,;E<,

•, @B:,H-;E<9:M,Q;MMH,;9:,N:E:9;MM=,KE,-FF9,CFE<K@KFE>,

,

4.7.3 Assessment 

/, H@9IC@I9;M, ;HH:HHO:E@, Q;H, C;99K:<, FI@, FE, !FE@, ;9, ?=XK, KE, *aa(, ;E<, @B:, .9K<N:, B;H,
9:C:E@M=,.::E,9:';HH:HH:<,;E<,9:HIM@H,KE<KC;@:,@B;@,@B:,.9K<N:,<F:H,EF@,B;G:,@B:,9:]IK9:<,
C;-;CK@=,@F-,;CCFOOF<;@:,%(^%%,@FEE:,G:BKCM:H>,LB:E,@B:,;9CB,KH,HI._:C@,@F,XMFF<KEN,@B:,
C;-;CK@=,FX,@B:,;9CB,.;99:M,KH,XI9@B:9,9:<IC:<,;H,@B:,Q:KNB@,FX,.F@B,@B:,;9CB,.;99:M,;E<,@B:,
XKMM,KH,<:C9:;H:<,<I:,@F,.IF=;EC=>,1:EC:V,@B:,.9K<N:,KH,.:KEN,O;E;N:<,IE<:9,\?Ua,QBKMH@,
XI9@B:9, 9:XKE:O:E@H^KEG:H@KN;@KFEH,;9:,CFE<IC@:<, @F,<:@:9OKE:, KX, @B:,;HH:HHO:E@,C;E,.:,
KO-9FG:<>, 1FQ:G:9V, ;E=, KO-9FG:O:E@, KE, C;99=KEN, C;-;CK@=, QKMM, .:, FXXH:@, .=, @B:,
<:@:9KF9;@KFE, FX, @B:, X;.9KC, FX, @B:, .9K<N:, ;E<, @B:, MFEN, @:9O, GK;.KMK@=, FX, @B:, C9FHHKEN, QKMM,
CFE@KEI:,@F,.:,CFO-9FOKH:<,IEM:HH,Q:,KE@:9G:E:,;E<,C;99=FI@,H@9:EN@B:EKEN,QF9DH>,,
,

Page 25



,

,
,

!FE@,;9,?=XK,4O-9FG:O:E@,',2-@KFEH,?:G:MF-O:E@,3:-F9@,

,  

U,

#B:, ;9CB, :[@:EHKFEH, ;9:, C;-;.M:, FX, C;99=KEN, XIMM, BKNBQ;=, MF;<V, BFQ:G:9V, @B:, -B=HKC;M,
CFE<K@KFE, KH, -FF9, QK@B, H-;MMKEN, CFEC9:@:, :[-FHKEN, @B:, .F@@FO, XM;EN:, FX, @B:, C;H:<, H@::M,
.:;OH>,
,
A;MCIM;@KFEH, HBFQ, @B;@, @B:, H-;E<9:M,Q;MMH, ;9:, IE;.M:, @F,QK@BH@;E<, @B:,BF9KjFE@;M, XF9C:H,
X9FO,@B:,;9CB,XKMM,;E<,@B:,MKG:,MF;<KEN,HI9CB;9N:,;E<,@BKH,M;CD,FX,9:HKH@;EC:,KH,9:-9:H:E@:<,
.=,MFC;MKH:<,@KM@KEN,;E<,.IMNKEN,KE,@B:,H-;E<9:M,Q;MMH>,,

,

4.7.4 Severance Due to Flooding 

#B:, /XFE,?=XK, KH, HFO:, R(DO, MFEN, X9FO, K@H, HFI9C:, E:;9, \M;:E-:EE;E@, @F, K@H, :H@I;9=, ;@,
/.:9<=XK>, #B:, C;@CBO:E@, ;9:;, FX, %TR, H]I;9:, DKMFO:@9:H, CFO-9KH:H, HBF9@, H@::-, HK<:<,
G;MM:=H,QK@B,CF99:H-FE<KENM=,H@::-,X;H@,XMFQKEN,Q;@:9CFI9H:H>,
,
/@,J;CB=EMM:@B, @B:, XMFF<-M;KE, KH,;--9F[KO;@:M=,R((O,QK<:,;E<, XMFF<H,9:NIM;9M=V,H:G:9KEN,
@B:,/%SU,HFI@B,FX,!FE@,;9,?=XK, XF9,-:9KF<H,I-, @F, @B9::,<;=H,;@,;,@KO:>,#B:,.9K<N:,KH,EF@,
HI._:C@, @F, KEIE<;@KFEV, BFQ:G:9V, K@H, C;-;CK@=, KH, HKNEKXKC;E@M=, 9:<IC:<>,0-H@9:;OV, XMFF<KEN,
;MHF,-:9KF<KC;MM=,H:G:9H,@B:,\%%(%>,1=<9FMFNKC;M,H@I<K:H,IE<:9@;D:E,KE,+((*,HINN:H@,@B;@,
;,*,KE,+,=:;9,XMFF<,QKMM,9:HIM@,KE,@B:,FG:9@F--KEN,FX,@B:,@9IED,9F;<>,!BF@FN9;-BH,FX,@=-KC;M,
XMFF<,:G:E@H,;@,!FE@,;9,?=XK,;9:,HBFQE,KE,/--:E<K[,/>,YMFF<,H:G:9;EC:,:G:E@H,HKEC:,+((T,
;9:,MKH@:<,KE,@B:,@;.M:,.:MFQ>,#B:,@;.M:,HBFQH,@B;@,@B:,9F;<,KH,CMFH:<,XF9,;,OKEKOIO,FX,XFI9,
<;=H,-:9,;EEIO,<I:,@F,XMFF<KEN,;E<,Q;H,CMFH:<,XF9,HK[,<;=H,KE,+((S>,#B:,EIO.:9,FX,<;=H,
@B;@, @B:, 9FI@:, KH,H:G:9:<, KH, MKD:M=, @F, KEC9:;H:, KE, @B:, XI@I9:,;H,;,CFEH:]I:EC:,FX,CMKO;@:,
CB;EN:>, 4@, KH,CFEHK<:9:<, @B:9:,;9:,HKNEKXKC;E@,CFH@H, @F, @B:,:CFEFO=,;HHFCK;@:<,QK@B, @BKH,
9:NIM;9,CMFHI9:,FX,@B:,H@9;@:NKC,9FI@:>,!BF@FN9;-BH,**'*+,HBFQ,XMFF<KEN,;@,@BKH,MFC;@KFE>,
,
/, H:-;9;@:, XMFF<KEN, O:CB;EKHO, .:MFQ, @B:, A;O.9K;E, PKE:, 3;KMQ;=, \9K<N:, B;H, .::E,
K<:E@KXK:<,QBKCB,FCCI9H, KE<:-:E<:E@M=,FX, @B:,/XFE,?=XK, XMFF<KEN,;E<, X9:]I:E@M=, KE@:99I-@H,
@B:,IH:,FX,@B:,/%SU>,#BKH,B;H,.::E,@B:,HI._:C@,FX,H:-;9;@:,H@I<K:H,@F,K<:E@KX=,@B:,F-@KOIO,
HFMI@KFE,;E<,!BF@FN9;-B,*%,HBFQH,K@H,:[@:E@>,,
,
,

Date of Initial 
Closure 

Closure 
Length 

Flood Level  
m AOD 

R,?:C:O.:9,+((T, *,<;=, a>))(,

**,?:C:O.:9,+((T, ),<;=H, a>T(+,

*S,e;EI;9=,+((U, *,<;=, a>)a),

U,?:C:O.:9,+((U, +,<;=H, a>RRa,

+(,e;EI;9=,+((S, *,<;=, a>T%(,

T,5:-@:O.:9,+((S, *,<;=, a>)%S,

R,2C@F.:9,+((S, *,<;=, a>Ta*,

+T,2C@F.:9,+((S, *,<;=, a>T*S,

T,?:C:O.:9,+((S, +,<;=H, a>Ta*,

*S,6FG:O.:9,+((a, +,<;=H, a>%T+,

*%,5:-@:O.:9,+(*(, +,<;=H, a>R)S,

*R,e;EI;9=,+(**, ),<;=H, ,

R,Y:.9I;9=,+(**, )T,BFI9H, ,

,

Table Showing Pont ar Dyfi Flood Severance Periods due to Flooding
,
,

4.7.5 Road Closure Disruption 

AI99:E@M=, @;C@KC;M,<KG:9HKFEH,;9:,.:KEN,-9:-;9:<, @F,.:,-I@, KE,-M;C:,QB:E,H:C@KFEH,FX, @B:,
@9IED,9F;<,E:@QF9D,;9:,CMFH:<,<I:,@F,KHHI:H,9:M;@KEN,@F,@B:,.9K<N:,F9,XMFF<KEN,FX,@B:,/%SU,
HFI@B, FX, @B:, .9K<N:>, #B:, @;C@KC;M, <KG:9HKFE, @F, .:, IH:<,QB:E, @B:,/%SU, KH, CMFH:<, ;@, @BKH,
MFC;@KFE,XFMMFQH,@B:,@9IED,9F;<,E:@QF9D,GK;,@B:,/%Sa,@F,A:OO;:H,3F;<,;E<,@B:,/%U(,;@,
A9FHH,YF[:H>,#B:,M:EN@B,FX,@BKH,<KG:9HKFE,KH,;--9F[KO;@:M=,)),OKM:H>,/,HBF9@:9,9FI@:,FX,**,
OKM:H,KH,;G;KM;.M:,GK;,@B:,\%%(%V,BFQ:G:9V,@BKH,KH,FEM=,HIK@;.M:,XF9,MKNB@,G:BKCM:H,;E<,KH,EF@,

Page 26



,

,
,

!FE@,;9,?=XK,4O-9FG:O:E@,',2-@KFEH,?:G:MF-O:E@,3:-F9@,

,  

S,

HKNE:<, ;H, ;E, ;M@:9E;@KG:>, #BKH, 9FI@:, B;H, ;MHF, .::E, HI._:C@, @F, CMFHI9:, .=, XMFF<KEN, FE, ;,
EIO.:9,FX,FCC;HKFEH>,
AFEHIM@;@KFEH,QK@B,@B:,MFC;M,YK9:,\9KN;<:H,B;G:,9:G:;M:<,@B;@,@B:,H:G:9;EC:,FX,@B:,/%SUV,
QB:E, @B:,.9K<N:, KH,CMFH:<,<F:H,EF@,;XX:C@, @B:K9, XK9:, XKNB@KEN,C;-;.KMK@=V, HKEC:, @B:9:,;9:,;,
HIXXKCK:E@,EIO.:9,FX,;--MK;EC:H,MFC;@:<,:K@B:9,HK<:,FX,@B:,9KG:9,@F,O::@,@B:,9:]IK9:<,M:G:M,
FX,H:9GKC:>,,
,
#B:,L:MHB,/O.IM;EC:,5:9GKC:H,615,#9IH@,H:9G:H,J;CB=EMM:@B,;E<,HFI@B,Q:H@,7Q=E:<<,
QK@B, ;O.IM;EC:H, H@;@KFE:<, KE, J;CB=EMM:@BV, #=Q=E, ;E<, ?FMN:MM;I>, /M@BFINB, @B:9:, ;9:,
AF@@;N:,1FH-K@;MH,KE,:;CB,FX,@B:,@FQEHV,@B:,O;KE,BFH-K@;M,XF9,O:<KC;M,:O:9N:ECK:H,XF9,@B:,
9:NKFE, KH, @B:, \9FENM;KH, 7:E:9;M, 1FH-K@;M, KE, /.:9=H@Q=@B>, #B:, #9IH@, KH, HI._:C@, @F,
-:9XF9O;EC:, H@;E<;9<H, QBKCB, B;G:, H:@, 9:H-FEH:, @;9N:@H, @F, .:,O:@, QK@BKE, @KO:, HC;M:H>,,
#B:,O;KE,;KO,KH,XF9,;O.IM;EC:,H:9GKC:H,@F,9:H-FE<,@F,;,-;@K:E@,QK@B,;E,KOO:<K;@:M=,MKX:'
@B9:;@:EKEN, CFE<K@KFE, QK@BKE, :KNB@, OKEI@:H>, #B:, #9IH@, KE<KC;@:<, @B;@, ;E, :KNB@, OKEI@:,
QKE<FQ,CFG:9H,;E,;9:;,FX,;--9F[KO;@:M=,T,OKM:H,9;<KIH,X9FO,J;CB=EMM:@B>,#B:,;<<K@KFE;M,
_FI9E:=,@KO:,9:]IK9:<,@F,@9;G:M,@B:,<KG:9HKFE,GK;,79FXX@,9:HIM@H,KE,KO-;K9O:E@,FX,H:9GKC:,;E<,
B;H,H:9KFIH,CFEH:]I:EC:H,XF9,-;@K:E@H>,,1FQ:G:9V,K@,B;H,EF@,.::E,-FHHK.M:,@F,C;99=,FI@,;,
<:@;KM:<, CFO-;9KHFE, FX, :O:9N:EC=, @9K-H, <I9KEN, 9F;<, CMFHI9:H, XF9, 9:;HFEH, FX, -;@K:E@,
CFEXK<:E@K;MK@=>,,
,
2I@-;@K:E@H, @9;G:MMKEN, @F, /.:9=H@Q=@B, ;MHF, B;G:, KEC9:;H:<, _FI9E:=H, ;E<,O;=, C;EC:M, ;@,
HBF9@,EF@KC:,B;GKEN,;E,;<G:9H:,:XX:C@,FE,615,H:9GKC:H>,,,
,
,

Page 27



,

,
,

!FE@,;9,?=XK,4O-9FG:O:E@,',2-@KFEH,?:G:MF-O:E@,3:-F9@,

,  

a,

5. IMPROVEMENT OPTIONS 

!FE@,;9,?=XK,HIXX:9H,X9FO,;,EIO.:9,FX,-9F.M:OH,@B;@,;XX:C@,K@H,;.KMK@=,@F,XIEC@KFE,;<:]I;@:M=,
QK@BKE,@B:,BKNBQ;=,E:@QF9D>,#B:H:,-9F.M:OH,KECMI<:8',
,

•, HI.H@;E<;9<, C;-;CK@=, XF9, BKNBQ;=, MF;<KEN, QBKCB, 9:<IC:H, XI9@B:9, <I9KEN, XMFF<,
CFE<K@KFEHc,

•, HI.H@;E<;9<,;MKNEO:E@,;E<,C;99K;N:Q;=,C9FHH,H:C@KFEc,

•, HI.H@;E<;9<,-;9;-:@Hc,

•, -FF9,CFE<K@KFE,;E<,FENFKEN,<:@:9KF9;@KFE,FX,@B:,H@9IC@I9:c,;E<,

•, M;CD,FX,-:<:H@9K;E,X;CKMK@K:H>,
,
";9MK:9, H@I<K:H, B;G:, K<:E@KXK:<, -FHHK.M:, F-@KFEH, @B;@,QKMM, ;<<9:HH, @B:H:, -;9@KCIM;9, KHHI:H,
:K@B:9, KE<KGK<I;MM=, F9, KE, CFO.KE;@KFE>, #B:H:, F-@KFEH, 9;EN:<, X9FO, d?F, 6F@BKENb, @F, @B:,
CFEH@9IC@KFE,FX,;,E:Q,FXXMKE:,H@9IC@I9:,;C9FHH,@B:,?=XK,:H@I;9=>,,
,
#BKH,9:-F9@,QKMM,MFFD,;@,@B:,H@9IC@I9:,KE,KHFM;@KFE,;E<,;H,<:@;KM:<,-9:GKFIHM=,QKMM,EF@,CFEHK<:9,
@B:, KHHI:H, FX, XMFF<KEN, .:@Q::E,!FE@, ;9,?=XK, ;E<, @B:,"CF,!;9D,F9, ;@, @B:, 9;KMQ;=,.9K<N:>,
YFI9,KO-9FG:O:E@,F-@KFEH,B;G:,.::E,K<:E@KXK:<,;E<,KEG:H@KN;@:<,;H,XFMMFQH8',

Page 28



,

,
,

!FE@,;9,?=XK,4O-9FG:O:E@,',2-@KFEH,?:G:MF-O:E@,3:-F9@,

,  

*(,

5.1 OPTION 1 - DO NOTHING 

5.1.1 Introduction 

!FE@,;9,?=XK,B;H,.::E,;HH:HH:<,;H,B;GKEN, KEHIXXKCK:E@, MF;<,C;99=KEN,C;-;CK@=,;E<, @BKH, KH,
.:KEN, ;<<9:HH:<, KE, @B:, HBF9@, @:9O, .=, @B:, <:G:MF-O:E@, FX, ;, O;E;N:O:E@, -M;E, KE,
;CCF9<;EC:, QK@B, @B:, ?:HKNE, J;EI;M, XF9, 3F;<H, ;E<, \9K<N:H, H@;E<;9<, \?Ua, k#B:,
J;E;N:O:E@,FX,5I.,5@;E<;9<,5@9IC@I9:Hh>,,
,
g:BKCM:H,;9:,;MHF,DEFQE,@F,;@@:O-@,@F,E:NF@K;@:,@B:,@9IED,9F;<,<I9KEN,XMFF<,CFE<K@KFEH,;E<,
.:CFO:,@9;--:<, KE, XMFF<Q;@:9,HFI@B,FX, @B:,.9K<N:>,!BF@FN9;-B,*),HBFQH,;E,:[;O-M:,FX,
@BKH>, #B:9:XF9:V, .;99K:9H^.FMM;9<HV, G;9K;.M:, O:HH;N:, HKNEH, $gJ5&, ;E<, KO-9FG:<, HKNEKEN,
;9:, .:KEN, <:G:MF-:<, @F, -9:G:E@, G:BKCM:, ;E<, -:<:H@9K;E, ;CC:HH, @F, XMFF<:<, ;9:;H, FX, @B:,
@9IED, 9F;<,;E<, >3:-F9@,6F>,()aTA^*(^?A,B;H,.::E,-9:-;9:<, @F, KEG:H@KN;@:, @B:,F-@KFEH>

JFEK@F9KEN, FX, @B:, C9FHHKEN, KH, ;MHF, IE<:9@;D:E, IHKEN, AA#g, ;E<, @BKH, @FN:@B:9, QK@B, @B:,
"EGK9FEO:E@, /N:EC=, XMFF<, Q;9EKENH, QKMM, -9FGK<:, :;9M=, EF@KC:, FX, XMFF<, :G:E@H, ;E<, ;MMFQ,
@KO:M=,9F;<,CMFHI9:H>,,
,
#B:,k?F,6F@BKENh,F-@KFE,QKMM,9:HIM@, KE,@B:,CFE@KEI:<,<:@:9KF9;@KFE,FX,@B:,H@9IC@I9:,;E<,QKMM,
@;D:,@B:,XF9O,FX,XI9@B:9,;E<,-9FN9:HHKG:,<KH@F9@KFE,FX,@B:,-;9;-:@,;E<,H-;E<9:M,Q;MMH,X9FO,
M;@:9;M,MF;<KENV,CFMMKHKFE,<;O;N:,;E<,9:<IC@KFE,KE,H@9:EN@B,<I:,@F,XMFF<KEN,:G:E@H>,YI@I9:,
9:O:<K;M,;C@KFE,QKMM,.:,9:]IK9:<,@F,-9:G:E@,QF9H:EKEN,X;KMI9:,FX,@B:,-;9;-:@H,;E<,H-;E<9:M,
Q;MMH>,#B:9:,QKMM, .:,;, 9:<IC@KFE, KE, MF;<,C;99=KEN, C;-;CK@=,QK@B, @B:, MKD:MKBFF<,FX,;,Q:KNB@,
MKOK@,.:KEN,;--MK:<,;E<,KE,@B:,QF9H:,C;H:,@B:,MFHH,FX,@B:,H@9IC@I9:>,
,

5.1.2 Effects of Implementing a Weight Limit 

5BFIM<, ;, Q:KNB@, MKOK@, .:, ;--MK:<V, B:;GK:9, G:BKCM:H, QK@B, ;, XIMM=, M;<:E, Q:KNB@, FG:9, @B;@,
H-:CKXK:<V, QBKCB, O;=, KECMI<:, E;@KFE;M, ;E<, MFC;M, .IH, ;E<, CF;CB, H:9GKC:HV, QFIM<, .:,
9:]IK9:<, @F, IH:, @B:, ;M@:9E;@KG:, 9FI@:>, #B:, KO-;C@, FX, <FQEN9;<KEN, @BKH, 9FI@:, ;E<, @B:,
<KG:9HKFE,FX,B:;GK:9,G:BKCM:H,QKMM,.:,@F,KEC9:;H:,XI:M,CFH@HV,C;IH:,<:M;=,KE,@B:,-9FGKHKFE,FX,
HI--MK:H^H:9GKC:H, ;E<, KEC9:;H:, :EGK9FEO:E@;M, <;O;N:, <I:, @F, XIO:H, ;E<, C;9.FE,
:OKHHKFEH>, 4E,;<<K@KFEV,9:HKMK:EC:,FX, @B:,9FI@:,KH,9:OFG:<V,_FI9E:=,9:MK;.KMK@=,KH,<:C9:;H:<,
;E<,<KH9I-@KFE,@F,.F@B,@9;XXKC,;E<,MFC;M,9:HK<:E@H, KEC9:;H:<>,,#B:9:,;9:,;MHF,;,EIO.:9,FX,
H:C@KFEH, FX, @B:, /%U(, @B;@, B;G:, -FF9, ;MKNEO:E@H, ;E<, C;IH:, HFO:, <KXXKCIM@K:H, @F, M;9N:9,
G:BKCM:H,E:NF@K;@KEN,.:E<H>,
,
#B:,:EGK9FEO:E@;M,CFH@H,HBFIM<,;MHF,.:,9:CFNEKH:<>,3F;<,@9;EH-F9@,KH,FE:,FX,@B:,.KNN:H@,
CFE@9K.I@F9H, @F, C;9.FE, :OKHHKFEH>, 6FKH:, ;E<, GK.9;@KFE,O;=, B;G:, ;E, ;<G:9H:, KO-;C@, FE,
-9F-:9@K:H,CMFH:, @F, @B:,;M@:9E;@KG:,9FI@:>,#B:,C;9.FE, XFF@-9KE@,FX,NFF<H,;E<,H:9GKC:H,QKMM,
KE:GK@;.M=,KEC9:;H:,XF9,;E=FE:,;XX:C@:<,.=,@B:,KO-FHK@KFE,FX,;,Q:KNB@,MKOK@>,,
,

5.1.3 Pedestrian Use 

?I:,@F, @B:,HI.'H@;E<;9<,QK<@B,FX, @B:,.9K<N:V,@=-KC;MM=,R>UO,.:@Q::E,-;9;-:@HV, @B:9:,;9:,
EF, XFF@Q;=H, ;E<, -:<:H@9K;EH, ;9:, XIMM=, :[-FH:<, @F, BKNBQ;=, @9;XXKC>, #B:, 9KHD, KH, XI9@B:9,
:[;C:9.;@:<, .=, @B:, MFQ, B:KNB@, FX, @B:, -;9;-:@HV, @=-KC;MM=, U((OO, KE, B:KNB@V, QBKCB, ;9:,
IEMKD:M=,@F,XIMM=,-9:G:E@,X;MMH,FG:9,@B:,:<N:,FX,@B:,.9K<N:>,,
,

5.1.4 Collision Damage 

#B:,-;9;-:@H,<KH-M;=,:GK<:EC:,FX,OIM@K-M:,CFMMKHKFEH,<I:,@F,@B:,.:MFQ,H@;E<;9<,_IEC@KFE,;@,
@B:, EF9@B, :E<, FX, @B:, .9K<N:, ;E<, @B:, 9:H@9KC@:<, QK<@B, FX, @B:, C;99K;N:Q;=>, ";CB, CFMMKHKFE,
9:HIM@H,KE,<;O;N:,@F,@B:,O;HFE9=,;E<,CF-KENH>,#BKH,HFO:@KO:H,9:HIM@H,KE,O;@:9K;M,.:KEN,
MFH@,KE,@B:,9KG:9,9:HIM@KEN,KE,E:Q,O;HFE9=,B;GKEN,@F,.:,IH:<,XF9,9:-;K9H>,2X@:E,@B:,KO-;C@,
QKMM,H@9:HH,;E<,<KH-M;C:,@B:,H-;E<9:M,Q;MM,.:MFQ,;E<,;H,;,9:HIM@,@B:,;MKNEO:E@,;E<,KE@:N9K@=,
FX,@B:,O;HFE9=,KH,CFO-9FOKH:<>,
,

Page 29



,

,
,

!FE@,;9,?=XK,4O-9FG:O:E@,',2-@KFEH,?:G:MF-O:E@,3:-F9@,

,  

**,

?I:,@F,@B:,H@9;@:NKC,KO-F9@;EC:,FX,@B:,BKNBQ;=,XF9,.F@B,MFC;M,;E<,E;@KFE;M,@9;EH-F9@,@B:9:,
KH, ;, 9:MIC@;EC:, @F, F.@;KE, ;, CMFHI9:, FX, @B:, 9FI@:, XF9, 9:-;K9, QF9DH>,3:-;K9H, ;9:, @B:9:XF9:,
IHI;MM=,IE<:9@;D:E,QK@B,@9;XXKC,CFE@KEIKEN,@F,IH:,@B:,.9K<N:>,7;KEKEN,;CC:HH,X9FO,@B:,9KG:9,
HK<:,FX,@B:,.9K<N:,GK;,HC;XXFM<KEN,9:]IK9:H,@B:,Q9K@@:E,CFEH:E@,FX,@B:,"EGK9FEO:E@,/N:EC=,
QBKCB,QKMM,EF9O;MM=, @;D:,S,Q::DH, @F,-9FC:HH>,#B:,9:-;K9,QF9DH,;9:,@B:9:XF9:,IE<:9@;D:E,
X9FO, @B:, C;99K;N:Q;=, QK@B, MKOK@:<, H-;C:, XF9, O:E, ;E<, O;@:9K;MH>, 0E<:9H@;E<;.M=V,
CFO-9FOKH:H, ;9:,O;<:,.F@B, KE, @:9OH, FX, @B:,O;@:9K;MH, IH:<, ;E<,QF9DO;EHBK-,QK@B, @B:,
:O-B;HKH, .:KEN, FE,OKEKOKHKEN, @B:, @KO:, H-:E@, KE, ;, BKNB, 9KHD, HK@I;@KFE>, !9:GKFIH, 9:-;K9H,
.:;9,:GK<:EC:,@F,@BKH>,,
,

5.1.5 Spandrel Walls 

#B:,H-;E<9:M,Q;MMH,B;G:,HIXX:9:<, X9FO,.F@B, @9;XXKC, KO-;C@,<;O;N:,;E<,:[C:HHKG:, M;@:9;M,
MF;<KEN,X9FO,@B:,;9CB,XKMM,;E<,MKG:,MF;<KEN>,A=CMKC,X9::j:'@B;Q,;C@KFE,;E<,XMFF<,H;@I9;@KFE,KE,
CFO.KE;@KFE, QK@B, KE@:9OK@@:E@, BKNB, G:9@KC;M, MF;<KEN, B;H, 9:HIM@:<, KE, HO;MM, KEC9:O:E@;M,
BF9KjFE@;M,FI@Q;9<,OFG:O:E@H,FX,@B:,H-;E<9:MH>,5FO:,OFG:O:E@,O;=,9:CFG:9,.I@,OFH@,
QKMM,.:,K99:G:9HK.M:,;E<,9:HIM@,KE,-9FN9:HHKG:,OFG:O:E@,;E<,<KH@F9@KFE>,
,
#B:, @:O-F9;9=,H@::M,.9;CKEN, @F,-K:9,*,$!BF@FN9;-B,a&,;E<, @K:H,;E<,-;@9:HH,-M;@:H,@F,@B:,
9:O;KEKEN,H-;E<9:M,Q;MMHV, KEH@;MM:<,KE,*aa*V,H:9G:,;,-I9-FH:,.I@,;9:,IEHKNB@M=,;E<,;@,@B:,
@KO:, Q:9:, FEM=, :EGKH;N:<, ;H, ;, HBF9@'@:9O, HFMI@KFE>, Y;KMI9:, @F, IE<:9@;D:, MFEN, @:9O,
H@9:EN@B:EKEN,;E<,KO-9FG:O:E@,QKMM,KE:GK@;.M=,M:;<,@F,;,H:9K:H,FX,HKOKM;9,IEHKNB@M=,9:-;K9H>,
#BKH,@=-:,FX,:O:9N:EC=,9:-;K9,KH,FX@:E,<KH-9F-F9@KFE;@:M=,:[-:EHKG:>,,

5.1.6 Flooding Events 

#B:, X9:]I:E@, XMFF<KEN, :G:E@H, @B;@, FCCI9, ;@, @BKH, MFC;@KFE, B;G:, ;, <K9:C@, :XX:C@, FE, @B:,
H@9IC@I9;M,X;.9KC,FX,@B:,.9K<N:>,#B:,BKNB,M:G:M,XMFF<H,C;IH:,-;9@K;M,F9,HI.H@;E@K;M,H;@I9;@KFE,
FX,@B:,;9CB,.;99:MV,H-;E<9:M,Q;MMH,;E<,;9CB,XKMM,QBKCB,HKNEKXKC;E@M=,9:<IC:,@B:,MF;<,C;99=KEN,
C;-;CK@=,FX,@B:,H@9IC@I9:V,@=-KC;MM=,.=,;,X;C@F9,FX,*>T,@F,*>S,FX,EFE'XMFF<:<,H@9:EN@B>,,
,
,

Page 30



,

,
,

!FE@,;9,?=XK,4O-9FG:O:E@,',2-@KFEH,?:G:MF-O:E@,3:-F9@,

,  

*+,

5.2 OPTION 2 – INSTALLATION OF PERMANENT TRAFFIC SIGNALS 

5.2.1 Introduction 

#F, ;GFK<, @B:, -9F.M:O, FX, @9;XXKC, CFEXMKC@, FE, @B:, .9K<N:V, QBKCB, 9:HIM@H, KE, CFMMKHKFEH, ;E<,
<;O;N:, @F, @B:, H@9IC@I9:V, CFEHK<:9;@KFE, B;H, .::E, NKG:E, @F, B;GKEN, @9;XXKC, XMFQ, FG:9, @B:,
.9K<N:,CFE@9FMM:<,.=,@9;XXKC,HKNE;MH>,#BKH,QFIM<,;MMFQ,@9;XXKC, @F,-9FC::<,FG:9,@B:,.9K<N:,KE,
FE:, <K9:C@KFE, FEM=, ;@, ;, @KO:V, 9:<ICKEN, G:BKCM:, CFEXMKC@, ;E<, B:EC:, G:BKCM:, @F, G:BKCM:,
CFMMKHKFEH>,1FQ:G:9V, G:BKCM:, CFMMKHKFEH,QK@B, @B:,-;9;-:@, ;@, @B:,EF9@B:9E,:E<,;9:, MKD:M=, @F,
CFE@KEI:,;H,@B:9:,KH,EF,KO-9FG:O:E@,@F,@B:,N:FO:@9=,FX,HI.H@;E<;9<,_IEC@KFE>,#B:,@9;XXKC,
HKNE;MH,QFIM<,E::<,@F,.:,@B9::,Q;=,<I:,@F,@B:,_IEC@KFE,FX,@B:,/%SU,QK@B,@B:,/%a),FE,@B:,
EF9@B,HK<:,FX,@B:,.9K<N:>,4@,KH,MKD:M=,@B;@,XFF@Q;=H,CFIM<,.:,CFEH@9IC@:<,FG:9,@B:,.9K<N:,@F,
-9FGK<:,-:<:H@9K;E,X;CKMK@K:H>,
,
#B:,-9FGKHKFE;M,:H@KO;@:<,CFH@,@F,-9FGK<:,HKNE;MH,KH,`aRV(((,QK@B,;EEI;M,9IEEKEN,CFH@H,FX,
`+V(((>,
,

5.2.2 Use of Temporary Traffic Signals 

3:C:E@, 9:-;K9H, @F, @B:,Q:H@,-;9;-:@, 9:]IK9:<, @B:,IH:,FX, @B9::,Q;=, @9;XXKC,HKNE;MH>,?I9KEN,
-:;D, -:9KF<H, @B:9:, Q:9:, <:M;=H, FX, I-, @F, +(, OKEI@:H, QK@B, @9;XXKC, .;CDKEN, I-, KE@F,
J;CB=EMM:@B>,LK@BFI@,XI9@B:9,<:@;KM:<,;E;M=HKH,K@,KH,CFEHK<:9:<,@B;@,@B:,-9FGKHKFE,FX,@9;XXKC,
HKNE;MH,KH,EF@,X:;HK.M:,QK@BFI@,C;IHKEN,MFEN,<:M;=H,@F,@9;XXKC,QBKCB,QFIM<,.:,:[;C:9.;@:<,
<I9KEN,@B:,HIOO:9,OFE@BH,QB:E,@9;XXKC,GFMIO:H,KEC9:;H:,HI.H@;E@K;MM=>,,
,

Page 31



,

,
,

!FE@,;9,?=XK,4O-9FG:O:E@,',2-@KFEH,?:G:MF-O:E@,3:-F9@,

,  

*),

5.3 OPTION 3 – DO MINIMUM, STRENGTHENING WORKS ONLY 

5.3.1 Introduction 

4E,@B:,9:C:E@,;HH:HHO:E@,FX,!FE@,;9,?=XK,@B9::,FX,@B:,XKG:,H-;EH,Q:9:,K<:E@KXK:<,;H,.:KEN,
.:MFQ,XIMM, MF;<KEN,C;-;CK@=>,#B:,O;E;N:O:E@,H@9;@:N=,9:CFOO:E<H,;,OFEK@F9KEN,9:NKO:,
9;@B:9, @B;E, @B:, KO-M:O:E@;@KFE, FX, ;,Q:KNB@, MKOK@, ;@, @B:, -9:H:E@, @KO:>,1FQ:G:9, ;,Q:KNB@,
MKOK@,KH,MKD:M=,@F,.:CFO:,E:C:HH;9=,;H,XI9@B:9,<:@:9KF9;@KFE,FCCI9H>,
,

5.3.2 Weight Limit 

4E,F9<:9,@F,:MKOKE;@:,@B:,E::<,XF9,;,Q:KNB@,MKOK@V,H@9:EN@B:EKEN,FX,@B:,.:MFQ,C;-;CK@=,H-;EH,
F9,@B:,:E@K9:,H@9IC@I9:V,;H,-9:G:E@;@KG:,O;KE@:E;EC:V,O;=,.:,IE<:9@;D:E>,YF9,@BKH,QF9D,@F,
-9FC::<V,CFEHIM@;@KFE,;E<,;I@BF9KH;@KFE,X9FO,A/?L,QKMM,.:,E:C:HH;9=>,
,

5.3.3 Proposed Works 

#B:,QF9DH,CFEHK<:9:<,XF9,@BKH,F-@KFE,;9:,@B:,OKEKOIO,E:C:HH;9=,@F,:EHI9:,@B;@,@B:,MF;<,
C;99=KEN,C;-;CK@=,FX,!FE@,;9,?=XK,O::@H,@B:,@9IED,9F;<,H@;E<;9<,XF9,@BKH,@=-:,FX,H@9IC@I9:,
$%(^%%, @FEE:H&V, O;KE@;KEH, @B:, .9K<N:, ;H, ;, GK;.M:, C9FHHKEN, FX, @B:, ?=XKV, OKEKOKH:H, @B:,
9:]IK9:O:E@H, XF9, EFE'9FI@KE:, O;KE@:E;EC:, QF9DH, ;E<, O;[KOKH:H, H:9GKC:, MKX:>, #B:,
-;9;-:@H,HBFIM<,;MHF,@F,.:,H@9:EN@B:E:<,;E<,KEC9:;H:<,KE,B:KNB@,F9,9:-M;C:<V,KE,F9<:9,@F,
CFO-M=,QK@B,CI99:E@,H@;E<;9<H,;E<,-9FGK<:,;<:]I;@:,G:BKCIM;9, 9:H@9;KE@,;E<,;,CFO-MK;E@,
.;99K:9, XF9, -:<:H@9K;EH>, #B:, KO-9FG:O:E@, FX, @B:, -;9;-:@H, O;=, 9:HIM@, KE, @B:O, .:KEN,
O;9NKE;MM=,QK<:9,QBKCB,CFIM<,M:;<,@F,;,HMKNB@M=,9:<IC:<,C;99K;N:Q;=,QK<@B>,
,
#B:9:, ;9:, ;, EIO.:9, FX, F-@KFEH, @B;@, CFIM<, .:, :O-MF=:<, @F, H@9:EN@B:E, !FE@, ;9, ?=XKV,
BFQ:G:9V,;H, @B:,H@9IC@I9:,B;H,;ECK:E@,OFEIO:E@,H@;@IH,FEM=,O:@BF<H,QBKCB,QKMM,B;G:,;,
OKEKO;M,:XX:C@,FE,@B:,:[@:9E;M,;--:;9;EC:,FX,@B:,.9K<N:,HBFIM<,.:,CFEHK<:9:<>,
,
4E, F9<:9, @F, -9FGK<:, ;, H:9GKC:;.M:, C9FHHKEN, @B:, -9:X:99:<, H@9:EN@B:EKEN, O:@BF<, HBFIM<,
:EHI9:,@B;@8,

•, @B:,;9CB,.;99:MH,;9:,H@9:EN@B:E:<c,

•, H@;.KMK@=, KH,-9FGK<:<,@F,@B:,H-;E<9:M,Q;MMHV,;MMFQKEN,@B:,9:OFG;M,FX,@B:,@:O-F9;9=,,
.:;OH, HI--F9@KEN, -K:9, FE:, ;E<, @B:, -M;@:H, @B;@, B:M-, @F, H@;.KMKH:, @B:, H-;E<9:M,
Q;MMHc,

•, Q;@:9-9FFXKEN,FX,@B:,;9CB,.;99:MH,KH,IE<:9@;D:Ec,

•, KEN9:HH,FX,Q;@:9,KH,-9:G:E@:<c,;E<,

•, @B:, -;9;-:@H, ;9:, H@9:EN@B:E:<, ;E<, KEC9:;H:<, KE, B:KNB@, @F, O::@, CI99:E@,
H@;E<;9<H>,

,
#B:,H-M;=:<,;<<K@KFEH,;@, @B:,EF9@B,:E<,FX, @B:,H@9IC@I9:V, @BFINB,;HH:HH:<,;H,HIK@;.M:, @F,
C;99=, XIMM, BKNBQ;=, MF;<KEN, ;9:, HBFQKEN, HKNEH, FX, <KH9:-;K9, QK@B, H-;MMKEN, CFEC9:@:, ;E<,
:[-FH:<,;E<,CF99F<KEN,H@::MQF9D>,/E=,H@9:EN@B:EKEN,F-@KFE,QFIM<,;MHF,E::<,@F,;<<9:HH,
@BKH,-9F.M:O>,
,
4E,F9<:9,@F,-9:G:E@,@B:,C;-;CK@=,FX,@B:,.9K<N:,9:<ICKEN,HKNEKXKC;E@M=,<I9KEN,XMFF<KEN,:G:E@H,
K@,QKMM,.:,E:C:HH;9=,@F,I@KMKH:,;,CFEC9:@:,H;<<M:,HFMI@KFE,FG:9,@B:,;9CB:H>,
,

5.3.4 Impact Damage 

/E=, H@9:EN@B:EKEN, F-@KFE, ;MFE:, QKMM, EF@, ;<<9:HH, @B:, KHHI:H, FX, BKNBQ;=, N:FO:@9=, ;E<,
-:<:H@9K;E, H;X:@=, ;E<, @B:, H@9IC@I9:,QKMM, CFE@KEI:, @F, HIH@;KE, KO-;C@, <;O;N:>,#B:,.9K<N:,
QKMM, ;MHF,E::<, @F,.:, CMFH:<,<I9KEN, XMFF<KEN,FX, @B:,/%SU, @F, @B:,HFI@B, @F,-9:G:E@,;CC:HHV,
;M@BFINB,@B:,.9K<N:,K@H:MX,QKMM,N:E:9;MM=,.:,IE;XX:C@:<>,
,
,
,
,

Page 32



,

,
,

!FE@,;9,?=XK,4O-9FG:O:E@,',2-@KFEH,?:G:MF-O:E@,3:-F9@,

,  

*%,

,

5.3.5 Traffic Implications Whilst Undertaking Works 

?I:,@F,@B:,E;@I9:,FX, @B:,QF9DH,;,9F;<,CMFHI9:,QKMM,.:,9:]IK9:<,@B9FINBFI@,@B:K9,<I9;@KFEV,
-FHHK.M=, I-, @F, @QF, =:;9H, <:-:E<KEN, FE, "/, 9:]IK9:O:E@H>, #BKH, QKMM, 9:HIM@, KE, HKNEKXKC;E@,
<KG:9HKFEH,XF9,MFC;M,;E<,MFEN,<KH@;EC:,@9;XXKC>,4@,O;=,.:,-FHHK.M:,@F,CFEH@9IC@,;,@:O-F9;9=,
.9K<N:, XF9, @B:,<I9;@KFE,FX, @B:,QF9DHV, BFQ:G:9V, @BKH, KH, :H@KO;@:<, @F, CFH@, KE, @B:, 9:NKFE,FX,
`R((V(((,;E<, @B:,BKNBQ;=,;MKNEO:E@,QFIM<,B;G:,Q:MM,.:MFQ,H@;E<;9<, _IEC@KFEH,QK@B, @B:,
:[KH@KEN, 9F;<,E:@QF9D>,/--9FG;M,QFIM<,;MHF,.:, 9:]IK9:<, X9FO, @B:,"/, XF9,;E=,.9K<N:,;E<,
@B:K9,H-:CKXKC,9:]IK9:O:E@H,QFIM<,E::<,@F,.:,@;D:E,KE@F,CFEHK<:9;@KFE>,
,

5.3.6  Traffic Signals 

#9;XXKC,HKNE;MH,O;=,;MHF,.:,KECF9-F9;@:<,KE@F,@BKH,F-@KFE>,
,

Page 33



,

,
,

!FE@,;9,?=XK,4O-9FG:O:E@,',2-@KFEH,?:G:MF-O:E@,3:-F9@,

,  

*R,

5.4 OPTION 4 – WIDENING AND STRENGTHENING OF THE EXISTING BRIDGE  

5.4.1 Introduction 

#BKH, F-@KFE, CFEHKH@H, FX, @B:, QK<:EKEN, FX, @B:, :[KH@KEN, .9K<N:, FE, @B:, <FQEH@9:;O, HK<:, @F,
KECF9-F9;@:, ;, QK<:9, C;99K;N:Q;=, ;E<, E:Q, XFF@Q;=, -9FGKHKFE>, "[@:EHKFEH, @F, @B:,
<FQEH@9:;O,HK<:,QKMM,;GFK<,CFO-M:[, M;E<,-I9CB;H:, KHHI:H,QBKCB,QFIM<,;9KH:, KX,QK<:EKEN,
Q;H, IE<:9@;D:E, @F, @B:, I-H@9:;O, HK<:>, YF9, @BKH, QF9D, @F, -9FC::<V, CFEHIM@;@KFE, ;E<,
;I@BF9KH;@KFE, X9FO, A/?L, QKMM, .:, E:C:HH;9=>, 4@, KH, -9F-FH:<, @B;@, @B:, :[@:EHKFE, QKMM, .:,
XF9O:<, KE,O;HFE9=V,F9,.:,O;HFE9=,CM;<V, @F,9:-MKC;@:,@B:,F9KNKE;M, XF9O,FX, @B:,H@9IC@I9:>, 4X,
9:]IK9:<, @B:, <:@;KMKEN, C;E, HICB, @B;@, @B:, F9KNKE;M, ;E<, E:Q, H:C@KFEH, C;E, .:, CM:;9M=,
<:MKE:;@:<>,,

5.4.2 Proposed Works 

#B:,:[KH@KEN,.9K<N:,QKMM,.:,QK<:E:<,.=,U>TO,@F,-9FGK<:,;,U>)O,C;99K;N:Q;=V,;,@QF,O:@9:,
B;@CB:<,H:-;9;@KFE,H@9K-,.:@Q::E,@9;XXKC,M;E:H,;E<,XFF@Q;=H,+>(O,QK<:,FE,:;CB,HK<:>,5::,
?9;QKEN,6F>,()aT^Y^*+>,,
,

LF9DH,C;E,.:,IE<:9@;D:E,QK@BFI@, @B:,E::<,XF9,;,9F;<,CMFHI9:V, @B:9:XF9:,:MKOKE;@KEN,@B:,
E::<, XF9,;, M:EN@B=,<KG:9HKFE,F9, @:O-F9;9=,.9K<N:>,1FQ:G:9V, @B9::,Q;=, @9;XXKC,CFE@9FM,QKMM,
.:, 9:]IK9:<>, #B:, :[@:EHKFE, QKMM, .:, CFEH@9IC@:<, XK9H@, ;E<, @9;XXKC, <KG:9@:<, FE@F, @B:, E:Q,
H:C@KFE,QBKMH@,@B:,F9KNKE;M,.9K<N:,KH,H@9:EN@B:E:<,;E<,9:XI9.KHB:<>,
,

LK<:EKEN, FX, @B:, H@9IC@I9:, QKMM, 9:]IK9:, QF9DKEN, QK@BKE, @B:, 9KG:9, ;E<, QKMM, @B:9:XF9:, B;G:,
;HHFCK;@:<, 9KHDHV, KECMI<KEN, XMFF<KENV, QBKCB, QKMM, 9:]IK9:, O;E;N:O:E@, ;E<, OK@KN;@KFE>,
AFEHIM@;@KFE,QK@B, @B:,"EGK9FEO:E@,/N:EC=, KH, MKD:M=, @F, K<:E@KX=,;<<K@KFE;M, CFEH@9;KE@H, @B;@,
QKMM,E::<,@F,.:,@;D:E,KE@F,;CCFIE@,<I9KEN,@B:,<:HKNE,;E<,CFEH@9IC@KFE,-9FC:HH>,#B:H:,O;=,
KECMI<:,-:9KF<H,QB:E,QF9D, KH,EF@,;MMFQ:<,FE, @B:,.9K<N:,F9, 9:H@9KC@KFEH,FE, @B:,EIO.:9,FX,
;9CB,:[@:EHKFEH,@F,.:,CFEH@9IC@:<,HKOIM@;E:FIHM=>,
,

#B:, :[@:EHKFE, KH, -9F-FH:<, @F, .:, FX, ;, HKOKM;9, XF9O, @F, @B:, F9KNKE;M, .9K<N:V, K>:>, ;, R, H-;E,
O;HFE9=,F9,O;HFE9=, X;C:<,;9CB,.I@,QK@B,;,CM:;9,<:O;9C;@KFE,.:@Q::E, @B:,:[KH@KEN,;E<,
E:Q, H@9IC@I9:H>, #B:, I-H@9:;O,H-;E<9:M,Q;MMH,QKMM, .:, 9:@;KE:<,QB:9:,-FHHK.M:V, F9, 9:.IKM@,
IHKEN,:[KH@KEN,F9,HKOKM;9,H@FE:>,!;9;-:@H,QKMM,.:,9:.IKM@,QK@B,;,9:KEXF9C:<,CFEC9:@:,CF9:,@F,
H@;E<;9<, B:KNB@>, "[KH@KEN, H@::M, .:;O, ;E<, CFEC9:@:, :[@:EHKFEH, @F, @B:, EF9@B, HK<:,QKMM, .:,
9:OFG:<,;E<,9:-M;C:<,QK@B,B;MX,;9CB:H,KE,D::-KEN,QK@B,@B:,9:H@,FX,@B:,H@9IC@I9:>,#B:,E:Q,
-K:9H,;E<,;.I@O:E@H,QKMM,.:,XF9O:<,KE,O;HH,F9,9:KEXF9C:<,CFEC9:@:,;E<,CM;<,KE,H@FE:QF9D,
@F,O;@CB,@B:,F9KNKE;M>,,
,

2E, CFO-M:@KFE, FX, @B:, ;.I@O:E@H, ;E<, -K:9H, @B:, E:Q, ;9CB, .;99:MH, C;E, .:, CFEH@9IC@:<>,
#9;<K@KFE;M, CFEH@9IC@KFE,QFIM<, 9:]IK9:, @B:, IH:, FX, ;9CB, HI--F9@, XF9, @B:, CFEH@9IC@KFE, FX, ;,
@9;<K@KFE;M, O;HFE9=, ;9CB, .;99:M, F9, FE:, O;<:, X9FO, 9:KEXF9C:<, CFEC9:@:>, LBKCB:G:9,
O:@BF<^O;@:9K;M, KH,IH:<,@BKH,QFIM<,.:,;,HMFQ,-9FC:HHV,:H-:CK;MM=,KX,@B:,"/,9:H@9KC@:<,@B:,
IH:,FX,;E=,;9CB,HI--F9@,H=H@:O,@F,FE:,;9CB,;@,;,@KO:>,2EC:,@B:,;9CB,.;99:MH,;9:,CFO-M:@:,
@B:,H-;E<9:M,;E<,-;9;-:@,Q;MMH,C;E,.:,CFEH@9IC@:<,KE,:K@B:9,O;HFE9=,F9,H@FE:QF9D,X;C:<,
9:KEXF9C:<, CFEC9:@:>, #F, H-::<, I-, @B:, -9FC:HH, K@, KH, X:;HK.M:, @F, IH:, -9:C;H@, CFEC9:@:,
H:C@KFEH,XF9,@B:,;9CB,.;99:MHV,HKOKM;9M=,@B:,H-;E<9:M,;E<,-;9;-:@,Q;MMH,C;E,.:,-9:C;H@,;E<,
X;C:<, QK@B, H@FE:QF9D, @F, O;@CB, @B:, F9KNKE;M, H@9IC@I9:>, 2E, CFO-M:@KFE, FX, @B:, ;9CB, ;E<,
H-;E<9:M,Q;MMH,@B:,;9CB:H,QFIM<,.:,Q;@:9-9FFX:<V,.;CDXKMM:<,;E<,HI9X;CKEN,M;K<>,,
,

#B:, E:[@, H@;N:, QFIM<, .:, @F, HQK@CB, @9;XXKC, FE@F, @B:, E:Q, H:C@KFE, @F, :E;.M:, QF9DH, @F,
H@9:EN@B:E, ;E<, 9:XI9.KHB, @B:, F9KNKE;M, H@9IC@I9:, @F, -9FC::<>, 2EC:, CFO-M:@:, @B:, F9KNKE;M,
<FQEH@9:;O, -;9;-:@, QFIM<, .:, 9:OFG:<, ;E<, @B:, HI9X;CKENV, ;E<, XFF@Q;=H, ;E<, 9F;<,
O;9DKENH,CFO-M:@:<>,,
,
#B:,H-M;=:<,;<<K@KFEH,;@,@B:,EF9@B,:;H@,:E<,FX,@B:,H@9IC@I9:V,@BFINB,;HH:HH:<,;H,HIK@;.M:,
@F, C;99=, XIMM, BKNBQ;=, MF;<KEN, ;9:, HBFQKEN, HKNEH, FX, <KH9:-;K9, QK@B, H-;MMKEN, CFEC9:@:, ;E<,

Page 34



,

,
,

!FE@,;9,?=XK,4O-9FG:O:E@,',2-@KFEH,?:G:MF-O:E@,3:-F9@,

,  

*T,

:[-FH:<,;E<,CF99F<KEN,H@::MQF9D>, 4@, KH,-9F-FH:<,@B;@, @B:H:,HBFIM<,.:,9:-M;C:<,QK@B,B;MX,
;9CB:H,@F,.:,OF9:,KE,D::-KEN,QK@B,@B:,:[KH@KEN,H@9IC@I9:>,,

5.4.3 Outcome of Works 

#B:,:[KH@KEN,.9K<N:,QKMM,.:,H@9:EN@B:E:<,;E<,9:XI9.KHB:<,;E<,@FN:@B:9,QK@B,@B:,KEC9:;H:<,
QK<@B, @B:, H@9IC@I9:, QKMM, -9FGK<:, ;, MKED, ;C9FHH, @B:,3KG:9,?=XK, @B;@, C;E, C;99=, XIMM, BKNBQ;=,
@9;XXKC,MF;<KENV,9:<IC:,CFMMKHKFEH,;E<,-9FGK<:,;,H;X:,C9FHHKEN,XF9,-:<:H@9K;EH>,,

Page 35



, , ,
!
F
E
@,
;
9,
?
=
XK
,4
O
-
9F
G
:
O
:
E
@,
',
2
-
@K
F
E
H
,?
:
G
:
MF
-
O
:
E
@,
3
:
-
F
9@
,

,
 

*
U
,

6
. 

A
D

V
A

N
T

A
G

E
S

/D
IS

A
D

V
A

N
T

A
G

E
S

 O
F

 O
P

T
IO

N
S

 

O
p

ti
o

n
 

1
 –

 D
o

 N
o

th
in

g
 

2
 –

 T
ra

ff
ic

 S
ig

n
a
ls

 
3
 –

 D
o

 M
in

im
u

m
 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

in
g

 W
o

rk
s
 O

n
ly

4
 –

 W
id

e
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 S

tr
e
n

g
th

e
n

in
g

 

A
d

v
a
n

ta
g

e
s
,

J
KE
KO
;
M,
C
;
-
K@
;
M,
KE
-
I
@,

J
;
[
KO
I
O
,9
:
@:
E
@K
F
E
,F
X,

B
KH
@F
9K
C
,.
9K
<
N
:
,

J
KE
KO
;
M,
:
E
G
K9
F
E
O
:
E
@;
M,

KO
-
;
C
@,

J
KE
KO
;
M,
C
;
-
K@
;
M,
KE
-
I
@,

4O
-
9F
G
:
O
:
E
@,
XF
9,

-
:
<
:
H
@9
K;
E
H
,

!
F
H
H
K.
M:
,9
:
<
I
C
@K
F
E
,K
E
,

C
F
MMK
H
KF
E
H
,Q
K@
B
,H
@9
I
C
@I
9:
,

J
;
[
KO
I
O
,9
:
@:
E
@K
F
E
,F
X,

B
KH
@F
9K
C
,.
9K
<
N
:
,

J
KE
KO
;
M,
:
E
G
K9
F
E
O
:
E
@;
M,

KO
-
;
C
@,

4O
-
9F
G
:
<
,E
:
@Q
F
9D
,9
:
H
KMK
:
E
C
:
,

3
:
O
F
G
:
H
,I
E
H
KN
B
@M
=
,9
:
-
;
K9
H
,

!
9:
H
:
9G
;
@K
F
E
,F
X,
:
[
KH
@K
E
N
,

.
9K
<
N
:
,

"
MKO
KE
;
@:
H
,@
B
:
,E
:
:
<
,X
F
9,

Q
:
KN
B
@,
9:
H
@9
KC
@K
F
E
H
,

J
;
=
,;
MMF
Q
,Q
;
@:
9-
9F
F
XK
E
N
,F
X,

;
9C
B
,.
;
99
:
M,

3
:
<
I
C
:
H
,9
KH
D
,<
I
9K
E
N
,X
MF
F
<
,

:
G
:
E
@H
,

!
9F
G
K<
:
H
,;
,C
F
O
-
MK;
E
@,

-
;
9;
-
:
@,

J
KE
KO
;
M,
:
E
G
K9
F
E
O
:
E
@;
M,

KO
-
;
C
@,
KX
,@
:
O
-
F
9;
9=
,

.
9K
<
N
:
,K
H
,E
F
@,
I
@K
MKH
:
<
,

7
I
;
9;
E
@:
:
H
,M
F
E
N
,@
:
9O
,G
K;
.
KMK
@=
,F
X,

.
9K
<
N
:
,

!
;
9@
M=
,-
9:
H
:
9G
:
H
,@
B
:
,F
9K
N
KE
;
M,
.
9K
<
N
:
,

!
9F
G
K<
:
H
,-
:
<
:
H
@9
K;
E
,X
;
C
KMK
@K
:
H
,

"
MKO
KE
;
@:
H
,@
B
:
,E
:
:
<
,X
F
9,
Q
:
KN
B
@,

9:
H
@9
KC
@K
F
E
H
,

3
:
O
F
G
:
H
,I
E
H
KN
B
@M
=
,9
:
-
;
K9
H
,

3
:
<
I
C
:
<
,B
;
j
;
9<
H
,<
I
9K
E
N
,

C
F
E
H
@9
I
C
@K
F
E
^X
I
@I
9:
,O
;
KE
@:
E
;
E
C
:
,

3
:
<
I
C
:
<
,9
KH
D
,F
X,
C
F
MMK
H
KF
E
H
,;
E
<
,

.
9K
<
N
:
,<
;
O
;
N
:
,

!
9F
G
K<
:
H
,K
O
-
9F
G
:
<
,-
:
<
:
H
@9
K;
E
^,

G
:
B
KC
I
M;
9,
-
;
9;
-
:
@,
-
9F
@:
C
@K
F
E
,

4E
C
9:
;
H
:
,K
E
,O
;
E
F
:
I
G
9;
.
KMK
@=
,X
F
9,

@I
9E
KE
N
,;
@,
E
F
9@
B
,:
E
<
,

Page 36



, , ,
!
F
E
@,
;
9,
?
=
XK
,4
O
-
9F
G
:
O
:
E
@,
',
2
-
@K
F
E
H
,?
:
G
:
MF
-
O
:
E
@,
3
:
-
F
9@
,

,
 

*
S
,

,

O
p

ti
o

n
 

1
 –

 D
o

 N
o

th
in

g
 

2
 –

 T
ra

ff
ic

 S
ig

n
a
ls

 
3
 –

 D
o

 M
in

im
u

m
 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

in
g

 W
o

rk
s
 O

n
ly

 

4
 –

 W
id

e
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

in
g

 

D
is

a
d

v
a
n

ta
g

e
s
 
6
F
,Q
;
@:
9-
9F
F
XK
E
N
,@
F
,H
@9
I
C
@I
9:
,

3
:
N
I
M;
9,
9:
O
:
<
K;
M,
Q
F
9D
H
,@
F
,

9:
-
;
K9
,K
O
-
;
C
@,
<
;
O
;
N
:
,;
E
<
,

;
H
H
F
C
K;
@:
<
,I
E
;
C
C
:
-
@;
.
M:
,9
KH
D
,

@F
,Q
F
9D
XF
9C
:
,

P
KD
:
MKB
F
F
<
,F
X,
Q
:
KN
B
@,
MKO
K@
,

.
:
KE
N
,;
-
-
MK:
<
,

5
I
.
H
@;
E
<
;
9<
,B
:
KN
B
@,
-
;
9;
-
:
@H
,

A
F
E
@K
E
I
:
<
,<
:
@:
9K
F
9;
@K
F
E
,F
X,

@B
:
,X
;
.
9K
C
,F
X,
@B
:
,.
9K
<
N
:
,

3
:
<
I
C
:
<
,C
F
E
XK
<
:
E
C
:
,K
E
,

MF
E
N
:
G
K@
=
,F
X,
H
@9
I
C
@I
9:
,

A
F
E
@K
E
I
:
<
,H
:
G
:
9;
E
C
:
,F
X,

H
@9
;
@:
N
KC
,B
KN
B
Q
;
=
,M
KE
D
,<
I
:
,@
F
,

XM
F
F
<
KE
N
,

A
F
E
@K
E
I
:
<
,9
KH
D
H
,;
@,
@K
O
:
H
,F
X,

XM
F
F
<
KE
N
,@
F
,-
I
.
MKC
,;
E
<
,

H
@9
I
C
@I
9:
,

6
F
,B
KN
B
Q
;
=
,H
;
X:
@=
,F
9,

;
MKN
E
O
:
E
@,
KO
-
9F
G
:
O
:
E
@H
,

6
F
,K
O
-
9F
G
:
O
:
E
@,
@F
,

-
:
<
:
H
@9
K;
E
,X
;
C
KMK
@K
:
H
,

6
F
@,
;
E
,;
C
C
:
-
@;
.
M:
,M
F
E
N
,@
:
9O
,

-
F
H
K@
KF
E
,

P
;
C
D
,F
X,
E
:
@Q
F
9D
,9
:
H
KMK
:
E
C
:
,

P
KD
:
M=
,:
[
@:
E
H
KG
:
,@
9;
XX
KC
,<
:
M;
=
H
,

:
H
-
:
C
K;
MM=
,<
I
9K
E
N
,@
B
:
,H
I
O
O
:
9,

O
F
E
@B
H
,

g
KH
I
;
M,
KO
-
;
C
@,
F
X,
@9
;
XX
KC
,H
KN
E
;
MH
,F
E
,

@B
:
,H
I
99
F
I
E
<
KE
N
,;
9:
;
,

6
F
,Q
;
@:
9-
9F
F
XK
E
N
,@
F
,H
@9
I
C
@I
9:
,

3
:
N
I
M;
9,
9:
O
:
<
K;
M,
Q
F
9D
H
,@
F
,9
:
-
;
K9
,

KO
-
;
C
@,
<
;
O
;
N
:
,;
E
<
,;
H
H
F
C
K;
@:
<
,

I
E
;
C
C
:
-
@;
.
M:
,9
KH
D
,@
F
,Q
F
9D
XF
9C
:
,

P
KD
:
MKB
F
F
<
,F
X,
Q
:
KN
B
@,
MKO
K@
,.
:
KE
N
,

;
-
-
MK:
<
,

5
I
.
H
@;
E
<
;
9<
,B
:
KN
B
@,
-
;
9;
-
:
@H
,

A
F
E
@K
E
I
:
<
,<
:
@:
9K
F
9;
@K
F
E
,F
X,
@B
:
,

X;
.
9K
C
,F
X,
@B
:
,.
9K
<
N
:
,

3
:
<
I
C
:
<
,C
F
E
XK
<
:
E
C
:
,K
E
,M
F
E
N
:
G
K@
=
,F
X,

H
@9
I
C
@I
9:
,

A
F
E
@K
E
I
:
<
,H
:
G
:
9;
E
C
:
,F
X,
H
@9
;
@:
N
KC
,

B
KN
B
Q
;
=
,M
KE
D
,<
I
:
,@
F
,X
MF
F
<
KE
N
,

A
F
E
@K
E
I
:
<
,9
KH
D
H
,;
@,
@K
O
:
H
,F
X,
XM
F
F
<
KE
N
,

@F
,-
I
.
MKC
,;
E
<
,H
@9
I
C
@I
9:
,

6
F
,B
KN
B
Q
;
=
,H
;
X:
@=
,F
9,
;
MKN
E
O
:
E
@,

KO
-
9F
G
:
O
:
E
@H
,

6
F
@,
;
E
,;
C
C
:
-
@;
.
M:
,M
F
E
N
,@
:
9O
,

-
F
H
K@
KF
E
,

P
;
C
D
,F
X,
E
:
@Q
F
9D
,9
:
H
KMK
:
E
C
:
,

A
F
E
@K
E
I
KE
N
,E
:
:
<
,X
F
9,
9:
O
:
<
K;
M,

Q
F
9D
H
,@
F
,9
:
-
;
K9
,K
O
-
;
C
@,
<
;
O
;
N
:
,

@F
,-
;
9;
-
:
@H
,;
E
<
,;
H
H
F
C
K;
@:
<
,

<
KH
9I
-
@K
F
E
,@
F
,@
9;
XX
KC
,

2
E
N
F
KE
N
,O
;
KE
@:
E
;
E
C
:
,M
K;
.
KMK
@=
,

;
E
<
,;
H
H
F
C
K;
@:
<
,C
F
H
@H
,

6
F
,B
KN
B
Q
;
=
,H
;
X:
@=
,;
MKN
E
O
:
E
@,

F
9,
-
:
<
:
H
@9
K;
E
,X
;
C
KMK
@=
,

KO
-
9F
G
:
O
:
E
@H
,

3
F
;
<
,C
MF
H
I
9:
,9
:
]
I
K9
:
<
,X
F
9,
I
-
,

@F
,@
Q
F
,=
:
;
9H
,9
:
H
I
M@
KE
N
,K
E
,

:
[
@:
E
H
KG
:
,<
KH
9I
-
@K
F
E
,@
F
,@
9;
XX
KC
,

J
:
<
KI
O
,@
F
,H
B
F
9@
,

@:
9O
,,
:
E
G
K9
F
E
O
:
E
@;
M,

KO
-
;
C
@c
,,

5
KN
E
KX
KC
;
E
@,
C
F
H
@c
,;
E
<
,

P
KD
:
M=
,@
F
,;
XX
:
C
@,

C
B
;
9;
C
@:
9,
F
X,
:
[
KH
@K
E
N
,

.
9K
<
N
:
>,

,

Page 37



,

,
,

!FE@,;9,?=XK,4O-9FG:O:E@,',2-@KFEH,?:G:MF-O:E@,3:-F9@,

,  

*a,

7. COMPARISON OF COSTS FOR EACH OPTION 

Option 
Works Budget 

Estimate,
Description 

*, `%(V(((,->;>, ?F,6F@BKEN8',3:;C@KG:,;E<,9FI@KE:,O;KE@:E;EC:,FEM=,,,,,

+,
`aRV(((,-MIH,`+V(((,
->;>,9IEEKEN,CFH@H,

4EH@;MM;@KFE,FX,!:9O;E:E@,#9;XXKC,5KNE;MH,

),
`*V*((V(((,-MIH,;EEI;M,
-;9;-:@,9:-;K9,CFH@H,FX,
`%(V(((,

?F,JKEKOIO8',5@9:EN@B:EKEN,;E<,9:XI9.KHBO:E@,QF9DH,
;HHIOKEN,.9K<N:,CMFHI9:,

%, `)V(((V(((,
LK<:EKEN,;E<,H@9:EN@B:EKEN,FX,:[KH@KEN,.9K<N:,$a>)O,
C;99K;N:Q;=,QK@B,+O,XFF@Q;=H&,

,
#B:,:H@KO;@:HV,;H,HBFQEV,;9:,XF9,CFEH@9IC@KFE,QF9DH,FEM=,;E<,<:HKNEV,M;E<,CFH@H,:@C,;9:,
EF@,KECMI<:<,;@,@BKH,H@;N:>,#B:,CFH@H,;9:,FX,;,-9:MKOKE;9=,E;@I9:,;E<,;H,HICB,;9:,MKD:M=,@F,
G;9=, HKNEKXKC;E@M=, X9FO, @BKH, X:;HK.KMK@=, H@;N:, @F, @B:, CFEH@9IC@KFE, H@;N:, ;H, <:HKNE, ;E<,
CFEH@9IC@KFE,@:CBEK]I:H,;9:,XKE;MKH:<>,3;@:H,XF9,KE<KGK<I;M,K@:OH,FX,QF9DV,HICB,;H,CFEC9:@:,
;E<, @B:,;HHFCK;@:<,]I;E@K@K:H,;9:,:H@;.MKHB:<, @F,;E,;--9F-9K;@:, M:G:M,FX,;CCI9;C=,;@, @BKH,
H@;N:>,1FQ:G:9V, @B:, 9KHD,;HHFCK;@:<,QK@B,IE<:9@;DKEN,;C@KGK@K:H,HICB,;H, KE, 9KG:9,QF9DH, KE,
@BKH, H:OK'@K<;M, MFC;@KFE, B;H, EF@, .::E, :H@;.MKHB:<>, #B:, @=-:, FX, QF9DH, 9:]IK9:<, O;D:H,
;CCI9;@:, -9KCKEN, <KXXKCIM@, @F, :H@;.MKHBV, BFQ:G:9V, K@, KH, .:MK:G:<, @B:, -9KCKEN, FX, :;CB, F-@KFE,
CFO-;9;@KG:, @F, :;CB, F@B:9, KH, 9:;HFE;.M:>, 2EC:, ;, -9:X:99:<, F-@KFE, KH, CBFH:E, ;E<, @B:,
9:]IK9:O:E@H, FX, @B:, CFEHIM@::H, ;9:, DEFQE, K@, KH, 9:CFOO:E<:<, @B;@, ;, XF9O, FX, :;9M=,
AFE@9;C@F9,KEGFMG:O:E@,KH,:H@;.MKHB:<>,#BKH,QKMM,NKG:,@B:,;<G;E@;N:,FX,IHKEN,;,AFE@9;C@F9bH,
:[-:9@KH:, KE,CFEH@9IC@KFE,O:@BF<H,;E<,B:M-,@F,;CBK:G:,;E,;CCI9;@:,CFH@,FX,@B:,-9F-FH:<,
KO-9FG:O:E@,@BIH,9:<ICKEN,XKE;ECK;M,9KHDH>,

,
,

8. CONSULTATION AND CONSENTS 

7.1 Environment Agency 

#B:,/XFE,?=XK, KH,;,5@;@I@F9=,J;KE,3KG:9V,;E<, @B:9:XF9:, X;MMH,IE<:9, @B:, _I9KH<KC@KFE,FX, @B:,
"EGK9FEO:E@, /N:EC=, $"/&, ;H, -9FGK<:<, XF9, KE, @B:, L;@:9, 3:HFI9C:H, /C@, *aa*>, YMFF<,
?:X:EC:,AFEH:E@V, IE<:9, @B:, -9FGKHKFEH,FX, @B:,P;E<,?9;KE;N:,/C@, $*aa*&V,OIH@, ;MHF,.:,
F.@;KE:<,X9FO,@B:,"/,XF9,;E=,QF9DH,;C9FHH,F9,;<_;C:E@,@F,;,O;KE,9KG:9>,#B:H:,-9FC:<I9:H,
:EHI9:,@B;@, @B:,"EGK9FEO:E@,/N:EC=,KH,CFEHIM@:<,9:N;9<KEN,;E=,O;_F9,HCB:O:,@B;@,O;=,
KE<IC:,XIE<;O:E@;M,CB;EN:,KE,@B:,XMFF<-M;KE,:EGK9FEO:E@>,
,
YFMMFQKEN, KEK@K;M, <KHCIHHKFEH, QK@B, @B:, "/, FE, *H@, Y:.9I;9=, +(**, K@, Q;H, ;N9::<, @B;@, ;E,
;E;M=HKH,FX,@B:,XMFF<,9KHDH,9:HIM@KEN,X9FO,@B:,QK<:EKEN,;E<,H@9:EN@B:EKEN,F-@KFE,QFIM<,.:,
IE<:9@;D:E,IHKEN,EIO:9KC;M,OF<:MMKEN,@:CBEK]I:H,KX,@BKH,F-@KFE,Q;H,-9:X:99:<>,,
,

7.2 Countryside Council for Wales 

#B:,/XFE,?=XK,;E<,K@H,XMFF<,-M;KE,B;G:,;,EIO.:9,FX,:EGK9FEO:E@;M,<:HKNE;@KFEH,H@;9@KEN,;@,
;,-FKE@,;--9F[KO;@:M=,%,DO,<FQEH@9:;O,FX,!FE@';9'?=XK>,#B:=,KECMI<:8,
,

•, 5554, $5-:CK;M, 5K@:, FX, 5CK:E@KXKC, 4E@:9:H@&, #B:,?=XK, 5554, B;H, .::E, <:HKNE;@:<, KE,
H@;N:H,HKEC:,*aR%V,++T+,,B:C@;9:H,,FX,,@B:,,HK@:,,XF9O,,@B:,,?=XK,,6;@KFE;M,,6;@I9:,,
3:H:9G:>,

•, 5/A, $5-:CK;M,/9:;,FX,AFEH:9G;@KFE&>,#B:,5/AV,PM:=E,!:EKEHIM;,;E<, @B:,5;9E;I,
Q:9:,<:HKNE;@:<,FE,*)

@B
,?:C:O.:9,+((%,;E<,EF@,FEM=,KECMI<:,@B:,?=XK,"H@I;9=,.I@,

;,M;9N:,-;9@,FX,@B:,6F9@B,L;M:H,CF;H@>,,

•, 5!/,$5-:CK;M,!9F@:C@KFE,/9:;&,?=XK,"H@I;9=,5!/,Q;H,CM;HHKXK:<,FE,+a
@B
,eIE:,*aa+,,

Page 38



,

,
,

!FE@,;9,?=XK,4O-9FG:O:E@,',2-@KFEH,?:G:MF-O:E@,3:-F9@,

,  

+(,

•, 3;OH;9,$/,Q:@M;E<,FX,KE@:9E;@KFE;M,4O-F9@;EC:&,;E<,KECMI<:H,AF9H,YFCBEF,;E<,@B:,
?=XK>,

,
#BFINB, FX, F.GKFIH, KO-F9@;EC:, @B:, -9F-FH:<, QF9DH, ;@, !FE@, ;9, ?=XK, ;9:V, ;@, @BKH, H@;N:V,
.:MK:G:<,@F,.:,IEMKD:M=,@F,B;G:,;,<K9:C@,:XX:C@,FE,@B:,5554,F9,5/A,;E<,HBFIM<,X;MM,FI@HK<:,
@B:, HCF-:, FX, 9:]IK9KEN, ;, XIMM, :EGK9FEO:E@;M, KO-;C@, ;HH:HHO:E@>, #BKH,QFIM<, E::<, @F, .:,
CFEXK9O:<, <I9KEN, @B:, -9:MKOKE;9=, <:HKNE, H@;N:, QB:E, CFEHIM@;@KFE, QK@B, AAL, ;E<, F@B:9,
.F<K:H,QKMM,.:,IE<:9@;D:E>,

7.3 CADW 

#B:,E::<,@F,-9:H:9G:,@B:,.:H@,:[;O-M:H,FX,;ECK:E@,OFEIO:E@H,B;H,MFEN,.::E,9:CFNEKH:<,
.=,!;9MK;O:E@>,P:NKHM;@KFE,NKGKEN,H@;@I@F9=,-9F@:C@KFE,.:N;E,KE,*SS+,QK@B,@B:,XK9H@,/ECK:E@,
JFEIO:E@H, !9F@:C@KFE, /C@>, 5:G:9;M, HI.H:]I:E@, /C@H, FX, !;9MK;O:E@, ;XXF9<:<, QK<:9,
-9F@:C@KFE, @F,;ECK:E@,OFEIO:E@H,;E<,;9CB;:FMFNKC;M, 9:O;KEH,FX,E;@KFE;M, KO-F9@;EC:V,I-,
@F,@B:,-9:H:E@,/ECK:E@,JFEIO:E@H,;E<,/9CB;:FMFNKC;M,/9:;H,/C@,*aUa>,,
,

#B:, /ECK:E@, JFEIO:E@H, ;E<, /9CB;:FMFNKC;M, /9:;H, /C@, *aUa, -9FGK<:H, @B:, M:NKHM;@KG:,
X9;O:QF9D,XF9, @B:,-9F@:C@KFE,FX,;ECK:E@,OFEIO:E@H,;E<,;MHF,:O.9;C:H,-9F-:9@K:H,KE,@B:,
<K9:C@,C;9:,FX,@B:,5@;@:>,/H-:C@H,FX,@BKH,QF9D,;9:,CFG:9:<,KE,L:MHB,2XXKC:,AK9CIM;9,T*^aT>,
#B:, L:MHB, /HH:O.M=, 7FG:9EO:E@, 9:C:KG:H, ;<GKC:, FE, O;@@:9H, 9:M;@:<, @F, ;ECK:E@,
OFEIO:E@H,X9FO,@B:,/ECK:E@,JFEIO:E@H,\F;9<,XF9,L;M:H>,

\:XF9:, ;E=, QF9D, F9, ;M@:9;@KFEH, C;E, .:, IE<:9@;D:E, ;@, ;, HCB:<IM:<, ;ECK:E@, OFEIO:E@V,
5CB:<IM:<,JFEIO:E@,AFEH:E@,B;H,@F,.:,F.@;KE:<,X9FO,@B:,6;@KFE;M,/HH:O.M=,XF9,L;M:H>,
#BKH,XIEC@KFE,KH,;<OKEKH@:9:<,.=,A;<Q>,#B:,CFEH:E@,KH,IHI;MM=,;CCFO-;EK:<,.=,;,EIO.:9,
FX,CFE<K@KFEH>,4@,O;=V,XF9,:[;O-M:V,H@K-IM;@:,QB;@,.IKM<KEN,O;@:9K;M,B;H,@F,.:,IH:<V,F9,@B:,
Q;=, KE, QBKCB, QF9D, OIH@, .:, <FE:>, A:9@;KE, QF9DH, O;=, B;G:, @F, .:, HI-:9GKH:<, .=, ;E,
;9CB;:FMFNKH@V,;E<,@B:,QF9D,OIH@,.:,KEH-:C@:<,.=,A;<Q,H@;XX>,4@, KH,-9F-FH:<,@F,O;KE@;KE,
MK;KHFE,QK@B,A/?LV, @B:,AMQ=<,!FQ=H,/9CB;:FMFNKC;M,#9IH@,;E<,F@B:9, 9:M:G;E@,-;9@K:H, @F,
CFO:,@F,;,HFMI@KFE,QBKCB,QKMM,;CBK:G:,@B:,;KO,FX,-9FGK<KEN,;,H;X:,;E<,MFEN,MKG:<,H@9IC@I9:,
HIK@;.M:,XF9,@F<;=bH,IH:,QBKM:,-9:H:9GKEN,K@H,BKH@F9KC,E;@I9:>,,
,
\:XF9:, :;CB, ;--MKC;@KFE, KH, <:@:9OKE:<V, CFOO:E@H, ;9:, HFINB@, X9FO,:[@:9E;M, CFEHIM@::H>,
#B:H:, KECMI<:, MFC;M, ;I@BF9K@K:HV, @B:, AFIECKM, XF9, \9K@KHB, /9CB;:FMFN=V, @B:, XFI9, 9:NKFE;M,
L:MHB,/9CB;:FMFNKC;M, #9IH@HV, ;E<, @B:,3F=;M,AFOOKHHKFE, FE, @B:,/ECK:E@, ;E<,1KH@F9KC;M,
JFEIO:E@H, FX, L;M:H>, A;<QlH, 4EH-:C@F9H, FX, /ECK:E@, JFEIO:E@H, ;E<, AFEH:9G;@KFE,
/9CBK@:C@H,;MHF,O;D:,@B:K9,FQE,;HH:HHO:E@H>,
,

7.4 Snowdonia National Park 

#B:,.FIE<;9=,FX, @B:,5EFQ<FEK;,6;@KFE;M,!;9D,C9FHH:H,!FE@,;9,?=XK>, 4@, KH, MKD:M=, @B;@,;E=,
:[@:EHKG:, CB;EN:H, @F, !FE@, ;9, ?=XK, QKMM, .:, HI._:C@, @F, @B:, -M;EEKEN, -9FC:HH, IE<:9, @B:,
;I@BF9K@=,FX,@B:,6;@KFE;M,!;9D>,,
,

Page 39



,

,
,

!FE@,;9,?=XK,4O-9FG:O:E@,',2-@KFEH,?:G:MF-O:E@,3:-F9@,

,  

+*,

,

9. ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS – ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT 

/,5@;N:,44,"EGK9FEO:E@;M,/HH:HHO:E@,$"/&,Q;H,IE<:9@;D:E,KE,+((),QBKCB,CFEHK<:9:<,@B:,
?F, 6F@BKENV, H@9:EN@B:EKEN, ;E<, 9:XI9.KHBO:E@, ;E<, G;9KFIH, FXX'MKE:, F-@KFEH>, #B:, O;KE,
-FKE@H,;9KHKEN,X9FO,@B:,;HH:HHO:E@,Q:9:,@B;@8',
,

•, "EGK9FEO:E@;M,:XX:C@H,FX,IE<:9@;DKEN,QF9DH, @F, @B:,.9K<N:,Q:9:, MKOK@:<, @F,!FE@,;9,
?=XK, .9K<N:, QBKCB, B;H, .::E, K<:E@KXK:<, ;H, ;, HK@:, FX, E;@KFE;M, KO-F9@;EC:, ;E<, KH, ;,
5CB:<IM:<,/ECK:E@,JFEIO:E@>,#B:,9FQ,FX,HK[,CF@@;N:H,F--FHK@:,@B:,EF9@B,:E<,FX,
!FE@,;9,?=XK,;9:,79;<:,44,PKH@:<c,

•, 2E'MKE:,F-@KFEH,QKMM,B;G:,G:9=,MK@@M:,:XX:C@,FE,@B:,:CFMFN=,FX,@B:,;9:;c,

•, /,-FHK@KG:,.:E:XK@,@B;@,QKMM,9:HIM@,X9FO,@B:,QK<:EKEN,F-@KFE,KH,@B;@,!FE@,;9,?=XK,QFIM<,
.:CFO:,OF9:, ;CC:HHK.M:, @F, -:<:H@9K;EHV, KO-9FGKEN, ;CC:HH, @F, E:;9.=, -9F-:9@K:H,
;E<,XF9,M:KHI9:,-I9-FH:Hc,,

•, 4EC9:;H:<,HKNB@,MKE:H,;E<,GKHK.KMK@=,H-M;=H,QKMM,B:M-,@F,9:<IC:,<9KG:9,X:;9,;E<,<9KG:9,
IEC:9@;KE@=c,;E<,

•, L:MM,:H@;.MKHB:<,CFEH@9IC@KFE,-9;C@KC:H,QKMM,.:,IH:<,;E<, @B:, 9:]IK9:O:E@H,FX, @B:,
"EGK9FEO:E@, /N:EC=, ;E<, F@B:9, .F<K:H, KECF9-F9;@:<, KE@F, @B:, CFE@9;C@,
<FCIO:E@;@KFE,@F,OKEKOKH:,-F@:E@K;M,KO-;C@H>,/@,;MM,@KO:H,:G:9=,:XXF9@,QKMM,.:,O;<:,
@F,-9:G:E@,-FMMI@KFE,FX,@B:,9KG:9>,

Page 40



,

,
,

!FE@,;9,?=XK,4O-9FG:O:E@,',2-@KFEH,?:G:MF-O:E@,3:-F9@,

,  

++,

10. DISCUSSION/CONCLUSION 

10.1 Issues Outside Scope of Report 

#B:9:,;9:,;,EIO.:9,FX,KHHI:H,@B;@,;9:,9:M:G;E@,@F,@B:,/XFE,?=XK,XMFF<-M;KE,;E<,K@H,C9FHHKEN,
;E<,QB:E, CFEHK<:9KEN, ;E=, KO-9FG:O:E@,QKMM, E::<, @F, .:, @;D:E, KE@F, ;CCFIE@>, 4E,F9<:9, @F,
:MKOKE;@:,H:G:9;EC:,<I:,@F,XMFF<KEN,;,O;_F9,HCB:O:,QKMM,.:,9:]IK9:<,QBKCB,KH,FI@HK<:,@B:,
HCF-:,FX,@BKH,9:-F9@>,
,
4EK@K;M, H@I<K:H, B;G:, .::E, IE<:9@;D:E, KE@F, @B:, X:;HK.KMK@=, FX, -9FGK<KEN, ;, E:Q, H@9IC@I9:,
;<_;C:E@, @F, @B:,:[KH@KENV,BFQ:G:9V,<I:,@F,@B:,:[KH@KEN,;MKNEO:E@,;@, @B:, MKD:M=,@K:'KE,-FKE@H,
;E<,"/,9:]IK9:O:E@H,XF9,Q;@:9Q;=,;9:;,.:E:;@B,;E=,E:Q,H@9IC@I9:,MKD:M=,@F,9:HIM@, KE,@B:,
E:Q, HFXXK@, .:KEN, %>R,O:@9:H, BKNB:9, @B;E, @B:, :[KH@KEN, .9K<N:, HFXXK@V, @BKH, F-@KFE, B;H, .::E,
<KHCFIE@:<>,
,

10.2 Summary of Options 

/,HIOO;9=,FX,@B:,;<G;E@;N:H,;E<,<KH;<G;E@;N:H,FX,:;CB,F-@KFE,KH,KECMI<:<,KE,5:C@KFE,T>,,
,

10.2.1 Option 1 - Do Nothing 

#B:,d?F,6F@BKENb,2-@KFE,*,QKMM,9:HIM@,KE,@B:,<:@:9KF9;@KFE,FX,@B:,.9K<N:,QK@B,@B:,MKD:MKBFF<,FX,
;E,KO-FH:<,Q:KNB@,MKOK@,;E<,:G:9,KEC9:;HKEN,IEHKNB@M=,9:-;K9H,@F,;,GK@;M,9KG:9,C9FHHKEN>,#B:,
-FF9,CFE<K@KFE,FX,@B:,-;9;-:@H,QKMM,-9FN9:HHKG:M=,H-9:;<,<FQE,@B9FINB,@B:,H-;E<9:M,Q;MMH>,
#B:9:, KH, ;E, KEC9:;HKEN, -F@:E@K;M, XF9, @B:, CFO-M:@:, MFHH, FX, @B:, H@9IC@I9:, ;H, <:@:9KF9;@KFE,
-9FN9:HH:H>,#B:9:XF9:,d?F,6F@BKENb,KH,EF@,;,GK;.M:,F-@KFE>,
,

10.2.2 Option 2 – Permanent Traffic Signals 

/M@BFINB, @B:, KEH@;MM;@KFE,FX, @9;XXKC,HKNE;MH,B;H,.::E,CFEHK<:9:<,;H,;,-FHHK.M:,F-@KFE, K@, KH,
9:CFNEKH:<,@B;@,@B:,9:HIM@KEN,<:M;=H,QKMM,.:,HKNEKXKC;E@,;E<,@B:9:XF9:,@BKH,F-@KFE,B;H,.::E,
<KHCFIE@:<>,
,

10.2.3 Option 3 – Do Minimum, Strengthening Works Only 

#B:, k?F, JKEKOIOh, 2-@KFE, ), QKMM, ;99:H@, @B:, <:@:9KF9;@KFE, FX, @B:, .9K<N:, ;E<, ;MMFQ, ;MM,
G:BKCM:H, QK@BKE, @B:, M:N;M, Q:KNB@, MKOK@H, @F, IH:, @B:, C9FHHKENV, BFQ:G:9V, @B:, -FF9, _IEC@KFE,
;MKNEO:E@,QKMM,EF@,.:,;<<9:HH:<,;E<,-;9;-:@,H@9KD:H,;E<,OKEF9,CFMMKHKFEH,QKMM,CFE@KEI:,@F,
.:,;E, KHHI:>,!:<:H@9K;E,H;X:@=,B;H,EF@,.::E,;<<9:HH:<,;E<, @B:, M;CD,FX,;E=,<:HKNE;@:<,
XFF@Q;=,QKMM,H@KMM,.:,;,-F@:E@K;M,B;j;9<,XF9,-:<:H@9K;EH,Q;E@KEN,@F,C9FHH,@B:,.9K<N:>,
,
4E,F9<:9, @F,CFEH@9IC@, @BKH,F-@KFE,;,9F;<,CMFHI9:,QKMM,.:,9:]IK9:<,XF9,;,-:9KF<,FX,I-,@F,@QF,
=:;9H>,4@,O;=,.:,-FHHK.M:,@F,:9:C@,;,@:O-F9;9=,.9K<N:V,BFQ:G:9V,@BKH,QKMM,.:,CFH@M=V,9:HIM@,KE,
;,HI.'H@;E<;9<,;MKNEO:E@,;E<,9:]IK9:,;--9FG;M,X9FO,@B:,"/,,
,

10.2.4 Option 4 – Widening and Strengthening of Existing Bridge 

4@, KH, 9:CFNEKH:<, @B;@, HI.H@;E@K;M,QF9DH, ;9:, 9:]IK9:<, @F, @B:, :[KH@KEN, .9K<N:, @F,O;KE@;KE,;,
GK;.M:V, H;X:, @9IED, 9F;<, C9FHHKEN, FX, @B:, ?=XK, "H@I;9=, ;E<, -9:H:9G:, @B:, KE@:N9K@=, FX, @B:,
H@9IC@I9:>, AFEHIM@;@KFE, QK@B, @B:, "/, QKMM, .:, 9:]IK9:<, QB:E, <:CK<KEN, FE, ;E=, -9:X:99:<,
F-@KFE>, 4X, @B:, EIO.:9, FX, CFMMKHKFEH, ;E<, ;HHFCK;@:<, 9:-;K9, ;E<, CMFHI9:, CFH@H, ;9:, @F, .:,
9:<IC:<,@B:E,QK<:EKEN,FX,@B:,:[KH@KEN,H@9IC@I9:,KH,:HH:E@K;M>,
,
#BKH, F-@KFE, QKMM, :MKOKE;@:, @B:, @9;XXKC, CFEXMKC@, ;E<, C;99K;N:Q;=, -9F.M:OH, FE, @B:, .9K<N:>,
#B:9:, KH, MKD:M=, @F, .:, ;E, KOO:<K;@:, .:E:XK@, XF9, G:BKCM:H, O;DKEN, ;E=, FX, @B:, -FHHK.M:,
O;EF:IG9:H,;@,@B:,_IEC@KFE>,#B:,-9FGKHKFE,FX,XFF@Q;=H,QKMM,KO-9FG:,-:<:H@9K;E,H;X:@=,;E<,
;O:EK@=,QK@BKE,@B:,;9:;>,,,
,
5Q:-@, -;@BH, HBFQ, @B;@, @B:9:, ;9:, .:E:XK@H, @F, O;EF:IG9;.KMK@=, ;M@BFINB, K@, Q;H, H@KMM,
E:C:HH;9=, XF9, ;9@KCIM;@:<, G:BKCM:H, @F, :E@:9, @B:, F--FHKEN, @9;XXKC, M;E:, @F, CFO-M:@:, @B:,

Page 41



,

,
,

!FE@,;9,?=XK,4O-9FG:O:E@,',2-@KFEH,?:G:MF-O:E@,3:-F9@,

,  

+),

@I9EKEN,OFG:O:E@H>, 4@, KH,IEMKD:M=,@B;@, @B:, _IEC@KFE,CFIM<,.:,<:HKNE:<,@F,CFO-M=,XIMM=,QK@B,
@B:,9:]IK9:O:E@H,FX,@B:,?J3\,QK@BFI@,F.@;KEKEN,;<<K@KFE;M,M;E<>,,
,
#B:, -9F-FH:<, 9:XI9.KHBO:E@H, ;E<,QK<:EKEN,QKMM, 9:OFG:, IEHKNB@M=, 9:-;K9H, ;E<, ;<<K@KFEH,
;E<, M:;G:, @B:, .9K<N:, KE, ;, CFE<K@KFE,QBKCBV, @BFINB, CB;EN:<V,QKMM, .:, KE, D::-KEN,QK@B, @B:,
<:HKNE,;E<,;:H@B:@KCH,FX, @B:,F9KNKE;M,H@9IC@I9:>, 4O-;C@,<;O;N:, X9FO,G:BKCM:H, KH, MKD:M=, @F,
.:,9:<IC:<>,,
,
,

11. RECOMMENDATIONS 

4@,KH,9:CFOO:E<:<,@B;@,2-@KFE,%,.:,;<F-@:<,;H,K@,B;H,@B:,;<G;E@;N:,FX,O;DKEN,@B:,.9K<N:,
XK@,XF9,-I9-FH:,;E<,:EHI9:H,@B:,-9F@:C@KFE,FX,@BKH,BKH@F9KC,H@9IC@I9:,;E<,-9:H:9G:H,;H,OICB,
;H, KH,-9;C@KC;.M:>, 4E,:G;MI;@KEN,@B:,-9F-FH:<,H@9:EN@B:EKEN,;E<,9:XI9.KHBO:E@,K@,OIH@,.:,
9:CFNEKH:<,@B;@,@B:,;9:;,KH,<:HKNE;@:<,;H,:EGK9FEO:E@;MM=,H:EHK@KG:,;E<,N9:;@,C;9:,QKMM,.:,
E::<:<,KE,<:MKG:9KEN,@B:,HFMI@KFE>,,
,
#B:,QK<:EKEN,;E<,H@9:EN@B:EKEN,F-@KFE,B;H,;,O:<KIO,M:G:M,FX, XKE;ECK;M, 9KHD,.I@,B;H, @B:,
<I;M, .:E:XK@H, FX, -9:H:9GKEN, @B:, :[KH@KEN, .9K<N:, ;E<, -9FGK<KEN, ;, H;X:, @9;XXKC, 9FI@:, QK@B,
F-@KOIO,:EGK9FEO:E@;M,KO-;C@>,2EC:,CFO-M:@:<,@B:,H@9IC@I9:bH,MFEN,@:9O,GK;.KMK@=,QKMM,.:,
H:CI9:,QK@B,9:M;@KG:M=,MFQ,O;KE@:E;EC:,CFH@H>,
,
4@, HBFIM<, .:, EF@:<, @B;@, XMFF<, H:G:9;EC:, FX, @B:, @9IED, 9F;<, @F, @B:, HFI@B, QKMM, CFE@KEI:V,
-FHHK.M=,I-,@F,XFI9,@KO:H,;,=:;9,;E<,@B:9:XF9:,@B:,KEH@;MM;@KFE,FX,.;99K:9H,QKMM,.:,:HH:E@K;M,
@F,OK@KN;@:,9KHDH,@F,G:BKCM:H,C9FHHKEN,@B:,XMFF<,-M;KE,<I9KEN,XMFF<,CFE<K@KFEH>,
,
0E@KM, ;E=, KO-9FG:O:E@H, ;9:, .9FINB@, KE@F, :XX:C@, K@, KH, 9:CFOO:E<:<, @B;@, @B:, KE@:9KO,
O:;HI9:H,9:CFOO:E<:<,KE,;CCF9<;EC:,QK@B,\?Ua,;9:,KO-M:O:E@:<,@F,KO-9FG:,BKNBQ;=,
H;X:@=>,
,

Page 42



,

,

,

,

12. APPENDIX A – PHOTOGRAPHS 

Photograph 1:-  View Looking West Towards Pont Ar Dyfi 

Photograph 2:-  View Of Southern A487 Approach To Pont Ar Dyfi 

Photograph 3:-  View Of Southern A487 Approach To Pont Ar Dyfi 

Photograph 4:-  View Looking North Along A487 On Pont Ar Dyfi 

Photograph 5:-  View Looking East Along A493 Towards A487junction 

Photograph 6:-  View Looking West Along A487 Towards A493 Junction 

Photograph 7:-  Upstream View Showing Collision Damage To Bridge  

Photograph 8:-  View Showing Unsightly Collision Repair Works 

Photograph 9:-  View Showing Temporary Bracing To Spandrel Walls 

Photograph 10:- View Showing Collision On Bridge  

Photograph 11:-  View Showing Flood Event At Pont Ar Dyfi 

Photograph 12:-  View Showing Flooding On A487 In Pont Ar Dyfi Area 

Photograph 13:- View Showing Vehicle Trapped In Floodwater On A487 

Photograph 14:-  View Showing Flooding Under Cambrian Line Railway Bridge 

Photograph 15:-  View Showing Collision Damage To Parapet June 2010 

Photograph 16:- View Showing Collision Damage To Parapet June 2010 

,

Page 43



,

,

,

,

13. APPENDIX B – DRAWINGS 

Page 44



,

,

,

,

,
,
,
,
,

,
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
,

,

,

Asiantaeth Cefnffyrdd Canolbarth 
Cymru 

Page 45



PET(4)-03-12 p6c 
 
Petitioner’s Response to Letter dated 8 January 2012 from the Minister for 
Local Government and Communities  
 
We thank you for your e-mail of the 12th.  Unfortunately  we were not around 
to reply sooner. 
We understand that the petition is going before the committee, for which we 
are grateful. 
The fact that the bridge has been damaged again rercently emphasises 
the urgency of the whole subject. 
 and the overall effect it has on the local and South Meirionnydd 
communities.  We look forward  to a positive outcome on this matter. 
Thank you again,  
Regards,  
Gerald   for  Gwen Stevens  Chairperson South Meirionnydd Older People's 
Forum 

Page 46



PET(4)-03-12 p8a 

P-03-085 Surgeries in Flintshire 

Petition wording 

We, the doctors at the Laurels Surgery, Eyton Place Surgery and Allt 
Goch Medical Centre are frustrated (as we are sure you are) by our 
difficulties in offering enough appointments for our patients. 

 
As you will be aware, we are totally constrained by the size of our 
building and desperately need to move to larger premises — 
preferably in a new Primary Care Centre. 

 
Progress towards this has stopped following the recent appointment of 
the new Health Minister and we wish to bring our concerns to her 
notice. 

 
We would ask that you sign this petition to support our efforts to have 
this process speeded up; 

 
“As a patient at a GP Surgery in Flint, we would ask that our Assembly 
Member, Mrs Sandy Mewies, applies pressure at the Welsh Assembly 
Government for the development of a new Primary Care Centre as a 
matter of urgency.” 
 
Petition raised by: Gillian Robinson 
 
Date petition first considered by Committee: 21 February 2008 
 
Number of signatures: 412 
 
 

Agenda Item 3.5

Page 47



!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!
!
!

"#$%%&'!(')*+,!-!(')*+,!.&&/01!!
!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!22!34$5!6'57')!-!22!68157)97!6+9,7!

:&+,%%!$,!;',0!
;',0!<1)'/!

(')*+,!
=#$)1%%!
33>?!@:A!

!
:&B)!-C14D!E2F@G!H?I!FG@!

!
JKL+57!-!JKM'/4D!;'7N(/44/)*8'MOL0080N+,*N9P!

###N0+MM9)/7$81'4780+9)0/45N+,*N9P!
!

!
! !

!

QQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQ!
6'%1/,$%%!-!68'/,D!<,!R'S/%!6++T1,!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!;,/&!"#$%%+*!-!68/1&!.&&/01,D!<,5!;'7!(/44/)*8'M!
!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

U+9,!,1&D!;KEVKG>!
!
2>!R101ML1,!FE22!
!
<,!W/44/'M!;+#144!X<!
68'/,Y!;17/7/+)5!6+MM/7711!
Z'7/+)'4!X551ML4$!&+,!W'415!
6',%/&&!('$!
6:II!2ZX!
!
R1',!<,!;+#144!
!
Re: P-03-85 Surgeries in Flint 
!
C8')P!$+9!&+,!$+9,!41771,!+&!FV!Z+S1ML1,!4'57N!C81!(175/!6'%#'4'%,!6+MM9)/7$!A1'478!6+9)0/4!
[(66A6\!#140+M15!781!+TT+,79)/7$!7+!*/S1!+9,!S/1#5!+)!781!0+)71)7!+&!781!T17/7/+)N!
!
W1!&114!/7!#+94%!L1!951&94Y!8+#1S1,Y!7+!T,+S/%1!5+M1!L'0P*,+9)%!5/)01!781!+,/*/)'4!T17/7/+)!#'5!
4+%*1%!/)!FEE?N!!
!
U+9!#/44!L1!'#',1!78'7!6+MM9)/7$!A1'478!6+9)0/45!/)!W'415!#1,1!,10+)&/*9,1%!/)!XT,/4!FE2EN!!
C8/5!,10+)&/*9,'7/+)!%/55+4S1%!781!&+,M1,!5/]!6A65!/)!Z+,78!W'415!')%!157'L4/581%!781!5/)*41!
(66A6N!^)!FEE?Y!:4/)758/,1!&+,M1%!T',7!+&!781!64#$%!6A6N!.9,!,15T+)51!/5!781,1&+,1!L'51%!+)!
%+09M1)7'7/+)!&,+M!781!64#$%!6A6!',08/S1!')%!09,,1)7!/)&+,M'7/+)!'0_9/,1%!%9,/)*!6A6!
M+)/7+,/)*!S/5/75!7+!781!T,'07/015!0+)01,)1%!')%!&,+M!T'7/1)7!&11%L'0P!T'551%!7+!6A6!M1ML1,5!
L'51%!/)!781!:4/)758/,1!4+0'4/7$N!!
!
R9,/)*!FEE@`E>!:4/)758/,1!3+0'4!A1'478!(+',%!9)%1,7++P!'!,1S/1#!+&!0+MM9)/7$!8+5T/7'4!')%!
T,/M',$!0',1!51,S/015!/)!:4/)7![#8/08!/)049%1%!781!78,11!=;!T,'07/015!+&!781!3'9,145Y!J$7+)!;4'01!
')%!X447!=+08!#/78!'!0+ML/)1%!4/57!+&!5+M1!2@YEEEK2>YEEE!,1*/571,1%!T'7/1)75\!#/78!/)S+4S1M1)7!+&!
'44!57'P18+4%1,5!/)049%/)*!781!6A6N!!:+44+#/)*!781!,1S/1#Y!781!81'478!L+',%!9)%1,7++P!'!
0+)5947'7/+)!+)!'!T,+T+51%!51,S/01!M+%14!&+,!:4/)7!#/78!7#+!+T7/+)5Y!L+78!+&!#8/08!T,+T+51%!'!
)1#!L9/4%!/)71*,'71%!T,/M',$!')%!0+MM9)/7$!,15+9,01!01)7,1!1/781,!/)!'!01)7,'4!4+0'7/+)!/)!:4/)7!+,!
+)!781!1]/57/)*!:4/)7!8+5T/7'4!5/71N!
!
R9,/)*!781!,1S/1#!')%!0+)5947'7/+)!T1,/+%Y!64#$%!6A6!'07/S14$!5+9*87!781!S/1#5!+)!781!T,+T+5'45!
&,+M!781!T9L4/0Y!T'7/1)75!')%!+781,!57'P18+4%1,5!/)!781!:4/)7!0'708M1)7!S/'!T9L4/0!M117/)*5Y!
4/571)/)*!1S1)75!')%!'!_9157/+))'/,1N!!64#$%!6A6a5!,15T+)51!7+!781!0+)5947'7/+)!')%!T1,7/)1)7!
'TT1)%/015!',1!1)04+51%!&+,!/)&+,M'7/+)N!
!

;JC[@\KEVK2F!T!L

Page 48



!
!
!
!
C81!/55915!+&!T,+S/5/+)!+&!781!T,/M',$!0',1!,15+9,01!01)7,1!')%!781!&979,1!+&!:4/)7!6+MM9)/7$!
A+5T/7'4!#1,1!/)1]7,/0'L4$!4/)P1%!78,+9*8+97!781!T,+0155N!^)!781!,15T+)51!7+!781!0+)5947'7/+)!
64#$%!6A6!&147!78'7!781!7#+!T,+T+5'45!58+94%!8'S1!L11)!%/S+,01%!')%!9)%1,7'P1)!'5!51T','71!
0+)5947'7/+)5N!
!
X478+9*8!781!/5591!+&!04+59,1!+&!781!:4/)7!6+MM9)/7$!A+5T/7'4!#'5!'7!781!&+,1&,+)7!+&!781!&11%L'0P!
7+!781!0+)5947'7/+)Y!781,1!#'5!,10+*)/7/+)!+&!'!)11%!&+,!08')*1!7+!781!%14/S1,$!+&!T,/M',$!0',1!/)!
:4/)7!')%!'!*++%!59TT+,7!&+,!781!T,+T+5'4!+&!'!T,/M',$!')%!0+MM9)/7$!,15+9,01!01)7,1N!!
!
<1ML1,5!+&!781!6+MM/7711!M'$!,10'44!781!S',/+95!0+)5947'7/+)5!+)!08')*15!7+!ZA"!51,S/015!
78,+9*8+97!W'415!')%!781!57,1)*78!+&!&114/)*!S+/01%!L$!781!T9L4/0!78'7!1)591%N!"9L51_91)74$!
T,+T+51%!08')*15Y!T',7/094',4$!7+!T,/M',$!')%!0+MM9)/7$!0',1Y!#1,1!)+7!7'P1)!&+,#',%N!!
!
C81!(66A6!8'5!)+7!9)%1,7'P1)!')$!0+)5947'7/+)!5/)01!FEE?!59,,+9)%/)*!781!09,,1)7!=;!
T,'07/015!/)!:4/)7!L97!8'5!L11)!'07/S14$!1)*'*1%N!6A6!M1ML1,5!&,+M!781!:4/)758/,1!4+0'4/7$!')%!
781!T,'07/01!M')'*1,!+&!781!3'9,145!59,*1,$!8'S1!'%S/51%!78'7!781!/)'%1_9'0/15!+&!781!78,11!
T,1M/515!'5!)+71%!/)!T,1S/+95!6A6!1)*'*1M1)7!'07/S/7$!')%!&,+M!6A6!M+)/7+,/)*!S/5/75!7+!781!
T,'07/015Y!',1!57/44!S1,$!M908!'TT',1)7N!C81!%1S14+TM1)7!+&!'!T,/M',$!,15+9,01!01)7,1!b!/)!'!
01)7,'4!4+0'7/+)!/)!:4/)7!K!/5!59TT+,71%!L$!T'7/1)75!+&!781!T,'07/015N!!W1!',1!'#',1!78'7!781!T17/7/+)!
0+)7/)915!7+!*1)1,'71!59TT+,7!5T+,'%/0'44$!')%!/5!57/44!0+)5/%1,1%!c4/S1aN!
!
W1!&9,781,!9)%1,57')%!78'7!%/50955/+)5!L17#11)!781!3'9,145!"9,*1,$!')%!781!(175/!6'%#'4'%,!
d)/S1,5/7$!A1'478!(+',%!8'S1!L11)!+)*+/)*!L97!781,1!'TT1',5!7+!L1!5+M178/)*!+&!'!57'41M'71!'5!
,1*',%5!781!'S'/4'L/4/7$!+&!&9)%/)*!&+,!')$!5908!%1S14+TM1)7!')%!'!_9157/+)!+&!#8+!58+94%!&9)%!
781!'TT+/)7M1)7!+&!&9,781,!=;5!')%!'55+0/'71%!T1,5+))14N!
!
C81!(66A6!/5!09,,1)74$!'#'/7/)*!')!9T%'71!&,+M!781!81'478!L+',%!+)!781!+S1,'44!5/79'7/+)!
,1*',%/)*!')$!%1S14+TM1)7!+&!781!T,'07/015!')%!#/44!'%S/51!781!;17/7/+)5!6+MM/7711!&9,781,!+)01!
,101/S1%N!
!
U+9,5!5/)01,14$!
!

!
;'7!(/44/)*8'M![<,5\!
68/1&!.&&/01,!
!

!

Page 49



! 2!

CLWYD COMMUNITY HEALTH COUNCIL’S RESPONSE TO THE FLINTSHIRE 
LOCAL HEALTH BOARD’S CONSULTATION ON THE MODERNISING AND 

IMPROVING OF HEALTH SERVICES IN FLINT, INCLUDING FLINT COMMUNITY 
HOSPITAL !

C81! S/5/+)! %150,/L1%! /)!Designed for North Wales! ')%! /)!Designed for Life! 5115!
M+,1!')%!M+,1!51,S/015!L1/)*!7,')5&1,,1%!&,+M!781!'0971!5177/)*!/)7+!781!0+MM9)/7$N!!
X!5900155&94!M+S1!+&!51,S/015!&,+M!781!'0971!8+5T/7'45!7+!781!0+MM9)/7$!,14/15!+)!
781!'S'/4'L/4/7$!+&!*++%Y!'TT,+T,/'71Y!0+MM9)/7$!&'0/4/7/15!#8/08!#/44!1)'L41!/)%/S/%9'45!
7+! 4/S1!#/78!0+)&/%1)01! /)! 781/,!+#)!0+MM9)/7$! ')%!')! /)&,'57,9079,1! 78'7!#+94%!L1!
'%'T7'L41! 7+! 781! 7,')5&1,!+&!M+,1!')%!M+,1!51,S/015! &,+M! 781!'0971!5177/)*! 7+! 781!
0+MM9)/7$!'5!7108)+4+*$!'%S')015!')%!781!T+T94'7/+)!+&!:4/)7!/)0,1'515N!!!

69,,1)74$Y! 781! T1+T41! +&! :4/)7! ,101/S1! 781/,! T,/M',$! 0',1! ')%! 0+MM9)/7$! 0',1! &,+M!
78,11!=;!T,'07/015Y!(+,+9*8!=,+S1!64/)/0!')%!:4/)7!6+MM9)/7$!A+5T/7'4Y!'44!+&!#8/08!
,1_9/,1!,1&9,L/58M1)7!')%!M+%1,)/5'7/+)N! !X%S')015! /)! 781! 7,1'7M1)7!+&!T'7/1)75! /)!
T,/M',$!0',1!8'S1!T,+*,1551%!0+)5/%1,'L4$!')%!781!09,,1)7!0',1!T,+S/%1,5!8'S1!)+!
0'T'0/7$!7+!1]T')%!7+!T,+S/%1!')$!)1#!51,S/015N!!!
!
C81!T+T94'7/+)!+&!:4/)7!/5!/)0,1'5/)*Y!#/78!0+)51)7!8'S/)*!L11)!*/S1)!&+,!781!L9/4%!+&!
'TT,+]/M'714$!IEE!)1#!8+9515N! !C8/5!#/44! /MT'07!*,1'74$!+)!T,/M',$!0',1!51,S/015Y!
15T10/'44$!=;5!#8+!',1!09,,1)74$!#+,P/)*!7+!0'T'0/7$N! !W1!8'S1!L11)!'%S/51%!78'7!
5+M1!+&!781!=;5!/)!:4/)7!',1!9)'L41!7+!'001T7!')$!)1#!T'7/1)75!')%!1]/57/)*!T'7/1)75!
',1! 0+MT4'/)/)*! 78'7! 781$! 8'S1! %/&&/0947$! /)! *177/)*! ')! 'TT+/)7M1)7! 7+! 511! 781/,!
%+07+,N!!
!
C81! ,1S/1#! +&! 781! Community Hospital and Primary Care Services in Flint!
9)%1,7'P1)! L$! C,/L'4! "107'! /)! FEE>! [7+! L1! ,1&1,,1%! 7+! &,+M! 81,1! +)! '5! 781! C,/L'4!
"107'!e1S/1#\!'%S/51%!78'7!T,/M',$!')%!0+MM9)/7$!81'478!0',1!51,S/015!58+94%!L1!
/)71*,'71%!7+!1)'L41! 781M!7+!T,+S/%1! 781!M+57!1&&107/S1!')%!1&&/0/1)7!0',1!')%!781/,!
,10+MM1)%'7/+)!#'5!78'7!78+51!51,S/015!#+94%!L1!L157!T,+S/%1%!+)!'!5/)*41!5/71N!!!
!
C81,1!#1,1!I!+T7/+)5!&+,!%14/S1,/)*!T,/M',$!0',1!58+,7!4/571%!')%!1'08!#'5!'#',%1%!
50+,15! '*'/)57! 781! L1)1&/7! 0,/71,/'! L$! T',7/0/T'7/)*! 57'P18+4%1,5N! ! C81! ^)71*,'71%!
6+MM9)/7$!A+5T/7'4!')%!;,/M',$!6',1!61)7,1!'7!'!01)7,'4!4+0'7/+)!/)!:4/)7!0'M1!+97!
'5! 781! 041',Y! T,1&1,,1%! 08+/01! #/78! GGH! T+/)75N! ! C8/5! /5! 781! +T7/+)! 78'7! 64#$%!
6+MM9)/7$! A1'478! 6+9)0/4! #+94%! 8'S1! &944$! 59TT+,71%Y! L97! 78/5! +T7/+)! #'5!
%/5,1*',%1%!L$!:4/)758/,1!3+0'4!A1'478!(+',%!')%!781!7#+!+T7/+)5!#8/08!#1,1!08+51)!
&+,!T9L4/0!0+)5947'7/+)!#1,1D!
!
Option 1: 
Z1#! (9/4%! ^)71*,'71%! ;,/M',$! ')%! 6+MM9)/7$! e15+9,01! 61)7,1! in a central 
location in Flint #/78! 2E! )9,51! 41%! L1%5! T,+S/%1%! L$! 781! ZA"! #/78/)! +781,!
6+MM9)/7$!A+5T/7'45!/)!:4/)758/,1!b!#8/08!,')P1%!'5!H78!08+/01!#/78!>V2T+/)75N!
!
Option 2: 
Z1#! (9/4%! ^)71*,'71%! ;,/M',$! ')%! 6+MM9)/7$! e15+9,01! 61)7,1! on the existing 
Community Hospital site #/78!2E!)9,51!41%!L1%5!T,+S/%1%!L$!781!ZA"!#/78/)!+781,!
6+MM9)/7$!A+5T/7'45!/)!:4/)758/,1!b!#8/08!,')P1%!'5!G78!08+/01!#/78!>EH!T+/)75N!

Page 50



! F!

64#$%! 6+MM9)/7$! A1'478! 6+9)0/4Y! /)! T',7/094',! :4/)758/,1! X,1'! 6+MM/7711Y! 8'5!
579%/1%!L+78!+&!781!+T7/+)5!0+)7'/)1%!/)!781!0+)5947'7/+)!%+09M1)7!Designed for Flint!
')%!8'5!4/571)1%!7+!781!S/1#5!')%!+T/)/+)5!1]T,1551%!L$!781!T1+T41!+&!:4/)7Y!L+78!'7!
781!T9L4/0!M117/)*5!')%!'7!781!4/571)/)*!1S1)7!#8/08!781!6+MM9)/7$!A1'478!6+9)0/4!
814%! /)! :4/)7! 3/L,',$! +)! G78! f')9',$! FEE?N! !W1!8'S1! '45+! 579%/1%! 781!C,/L'4!"107'!
e1S/1#!T,+%901%! /)!Z+S1ML1,!FEE>Y!#8/08! 9)%1,7++P!'! ,1S/1#!+&! 781! 0+MM9)/7$!
8+5T/7'4!51,S/015! /)!W,1]8'M!')%!:4/)758/,1!')%!')! /)%1T1)%1)7!e151',08!;,+g107!
0',,/1%!+97!'7!:4/)7!3/L,',$!L$!Z'78')!=,/&&/785Y!'!,15/%1)7!+&!:4/)7N!!!

.97!+&!781!2F2!,15T+)515!7+!+9,!_9157/+))'/,1![511!XTT1)%/]!2\Y!G@!%/%!)+7!59TT+,7!
1/781,!+T7/+)!')%!22@!5'/%!78'7!781$!0+94%!)+7!59TT+,7!781!04+59,1!+&!781!0+MM9)/7$!
8+5T/7'4N!W8/457! 7'4P/)*!7+!T1+T41! /7!5++)!L10'M1!S1,$!041',!78'7!M')$!T1+T41!#1,1!
)+7! '*'/)57! 781! %1S14+TM1)7! +&! ')! ^)71*,'71%! ;,/M',$! ')%! 6+MM9)/7$! e15+9,01!
61)7,1Y!/)%11%!/7!#'5!59TT+,71%!7+!'!4',*1!1]71)7Y!L97!78'7!781$!#+94%!4/P1!7+!511!781!
^)71*,'71%!;,/M',$!')%!6+MM9)/7$!e15+9,01!61)7,1!'5!#144!'5Y!)+7!/)571'%!+&Y!781!
0+MM9)/7$!8+5T/7'4N!!!W8'7!'45+!L10'M1!'TT',1)7!#'5!78'7!T1+T41!#1,1!)+7!'#',1!
+&! 781! /MT,+S1M1)7! /)! 81'478! 51,S/015! 78'7! 781$! #+94%! ,101/S1! /)! 781! ^)71*,'71%!
;,/M',$!')%!6+MM9)/7$!e15+9,01!61)7,1!L10'951!781!&+095!+&! 781/,!'771)7/+)!#'5!
+)!781!04+59,1!+&!781!8+5T/7'4N!!^)!78/5!,15T107!64#$%!6+MM9)/7$!A1'478!6+9)0/4!&1145!
78'7! 781! 0+)5947'7/+)!#+94%! 8'S1! L11)! /MT,+S1%! /&! /7! 8'%! L11)! 0',,/1%! +97! '5! 7#+!
51T','71!0+)5947'7/+)5D!!

one!7+!%/50955!781!,+41!+&!781!0+MM9)/7$!8+5T/7'4!')%!8+#!')%!#81,1!781!51,S/015!
T,+S/%1%!781,1!0+94%!L1!,1KT,+S/%1%!/)!'!5'&1,!')%!M+,1!'TT,+T,/'71!5177/)*!!')%!

!two!781!/)71*,'7/+)!+&!781!09,,1)7!81'478!51,S/015!')%!4+0'7/+)!+&!781!)1#!^)71*,'71%!
;,/M',$!')%!6+MM9)/7$!e15+9,01!61)7,1N!

64#$%!6+MM9)/7$!A1'478!6+9)0/4! 'TT,10/'715! 78'7! )1#!M+%145! +&! 81'478! 0',1! ',1!
0+)7/)9+954$!L1/)*!%1S14+T1%! 7+!59TT+,7! /)%/S/%9'45! 7+!0',1! &+,! 781M514S15! /)! 781/,!
+#)!8+M15!')%!78'7!78/5!58+94%!,1%901!%1M')%!&+,!8+5T/7'4!L1%5Y!L97!781!)11%!&+,!
5+M1!L1%5!#/44!'4#'$5!L1!781,1N!!C81!C,/L'4!"107'!e1S/1#!57'71%!78'7!781!T+T94'7/+)!
+&!:4/)7!#/44!*,+#!%,'M'7/0'44$!+S1,!781!)1]7!2E!$1',5N!!C81!/)0,1'51!/)!781!)9ML1,!+&!
14%1,4$!T'7/1)75!#/44!'45+!*,+#Y!1)59,/)*!78'7!781,1!#/44!L1!'!0+)57')7!%1M')%!&+,!L+78!
)9,5/)*!')%!/)71,M1%/'71!0',1!L1%5!/)!:4/)7N!!C81!)11%5!'55155M1)7!0',,/1%!+97!L$!
C,/L'4!"107'!/%1)7/&/1%!78'7!781,1!#+94%!L1!'!&979,1!)11%!/)!:4/)7!&+,!2E!)9,5/)*!L1%5!
')%! 2E! /)71,M1%/'71! 0',1! L1%5N! ! ^7! #'5! ,10+*)/51%! 78'7! 7+! T,+S/%1! '! 9)/7! &+,! 2E!
)9,5/)*!L1%5!+)4$!0+94%!)+7!L1!')!+T7/+)!&,+M!'!04/)/0'4!5'&17$!T+/)7!+&!S/1#Y!L97! /&!
781!)9,5/)*!L1%5!')%!/)71,M1%/'71!0',1!L1%5!#1,1!0+ML/)1%!/)!'!5/)*41!9)/7!781)!/7!
0+94%!L1!'!S/'L41!+T7/+)N!!C8/5!#+94%!,1_9/,1!'!T',7)1,58/T!'TT,+'08!L$!81'478!')%!
"+0/'4!"1,S/015!')%!#+94%!T,+S/%1!'!M979'44$!L1)1&/0/'4!&'0/4/7$N!

:+,!M')$!$1',5!:4/)7!6+77'*1!A+5T/7'4!8'5!T,+S/%1%!'!5+0/'4!0',1!5'&17$!)17!T'/%!&+,!
L$!781!ZA"!L97!,1'44$!781!&/)')0/'4!,15T+)5/L/4/7$!+&!:4/)758/,1!6+9)7$!6+9)0/4N!!64#$%!
6+MM9)/7$! A1'478! 6+9)0/4! #+94%! 4/P1! 7+! 511! '! M908! 57,+)*1,! ')%! +)K*+/)*!
0+MM/7M1)7! &,+M! :4/)758/,1! 3+0'4! A1'478! (+',%! ')%! :4/)758/,1! 6+9)7$! 6+9)0/4! 7+!
#+,P!7+*1781,Y!/)!4/)1!#/78!Making the Connections – Delivering Beyond Boundaries 
(November 2006), !7+!1)59,1!'!&944$!/)71*,'71%!81'478!')%!5+0/'4!0',1!51,S/01!&+,!781!
T1+T41!+&!:4/)7N! !6+)01,)5!8'S1!L11)!1]T,1551%!'L+97! 781! /MT'07!')%! 781!0+57! 7+!
"+0/'4!"1,S/015!+&!T,+S/%/)*!M+,1!0',1! /)!781!0+MM9)/7$!')%! 78151!0+)01,)5!)11%!

Page 51



! V!

7+!L1!'%%,1551%!7+!1)'L41!A1'478!')%!"+0/'4!"1,S/015!7+!#+,P!7+*1781,!7+!T,+S/%1!'!
,+L957Y!5957'/)'L41!51,S/01!7+!781!T1+T41!+&!:4/)7N!!64#$%!6+MM9)/7$!A1'478!6+9)0/4!
')%!781!#/%1,!T9L4/0!',1!)+7!0+)S/)01%!78'7!:4/)758/,1!6+9)7$!6+9)0/4!#/44!8'S1!781!
,15+9,015! ')%! 781! 0+MM/7M1)7! 7+! T,+S/%1! 781! 41S14! +&! 5+0/'4! 0',1! #8/08! #/44! L1!
,1_9/,1%! /)!:4/)7! /&! 781! c5+0/'4!0',1a!L1%5!T,+S/%1%!L$!:4/)7!6+MM9)/7$!A+5T/7'4!',1!
4+57N!!X!4'0P!+&!g+/)1%!9T!#+,P/)*!L17#11)!4+0'4!'978+,/7$!')%!81'478!0',1!T,+S/%1,5!
%+15!)+7!/)5T/,1!781!T1+T41!+&!:4/)7!#/78!0+)&/%1)01!78'7!781!T,+T+5'45!+)!+&&1,!8'S1!
L11)!#144!78+9*87!+97!')%!',1!,1'4/57/0N!
!
69,,1)74$Y!781!T1+T41!+&!:4/)7!8'S1!)+!0+)&/%1)01!/)!781!T,+M/515!+&!)1#Y!/)0,1'51%!
')%! /MT,+S1%! T,/M',$! 0',1! 51,S/015N! ! <')$! T1+T41! 0+MM1)71%! 78'7! T,+M/515! +&!
/MT,+S1M1)75! 7+! 81'478! 51,S/015! /)! :4/)7! 8'S1! L11)! M'%1! L1&+,1! ')%! 78+51!
/MT,+S1M1)75!8'S1!)+7!M'71,/'4/51%h!781,1&+,1Y! 781!T1+T41!+&!:4/)7Y!9)%1,57')%'L4$Y!
#')7!7+!,17'/)!781!51,S/015!781$!09,,1)74$!8'S1N!!:4/)7!6+MM9)/7$!A+5T/7'4!8'5!'!4+)*!
8/57+,$!+&!51,S/)*!/75!0+MM9)/7$!')%!78'7!0+MM9)/7$! /)!,179,)Y! &1145!S1,$!T,+7107/S1!
7+#',%5! 781! 8+5T/7'4N! ! A+#1S1,Y! 781! 09,,1)7! 5$571M! /5! &'/4/)*! 781! M'g+,/7$! +&! /75!
T'7/1)75h! /)%11%! 781! M'/)! 0+MT4'/)7! &,+M! T'7/1)75! L1/)*! 781! /)'L/4/7$! 7+! +L7'/)! '!
%+07+,a5! 'TT+/)7M1)7N! ! 68')*15! )11%! 7+! L1! M'%1! ')%! ')$! %14'$! #/44! M1')! 78'7!
'00155!7+!T,/M',$!81'478!0',1!51,S/015!#/44!g957!*17!#+,51N!
!
C81!T1+T41!+&!:4/)7!)11%!7+!511!T,++&!78'7!781!08')*15!L1/)*!T,+T+51%!',1!'079'44$!
*+/)*! 7+!8'TT1)!')%!78'7!T,/M',$!81'478!0',1!51,S/015!#/44!L1! /MT,+S1%N! !C8/5!#'5!
'45+!781!S/1#!+&!781!W1458!X551ML4$!=+S1,)M1)7!#8+Y!'7!'!M/)+,/7$!;',7$!R1L'71!
+)!V,%!.07+L1,!FEEHY!T'551%!'!M+7/+)!#8/08!,1'%D!
!
The National Assembly believes that no reconfiguration of hospital services should 
take place without adequately planned community provision; and believes that 
before any reconfiguration occurs there must be genuine public consultation, with 
the views of local communities not only listened to but taken on board. 
!
C8/5!#/44!)10155/7'71!58+,7!71,M!/)S157M1)7!7+!'44+#!781!,9))/)*!+&!L+78!781!+4%!')%!
781!)1#!51,S/015! '5! '471,)'7/S1! &+,M5!+&! 0',1! [#8/08! ,1%901! 781!)11%! &+,! 8+5T/7'4!
'%M/55/+)\!',1!%1S14+T1%!')%!T97!/)!T4'01N!!=;!'00155!M957!L1!/MT,+S1%!')%!+781,!
51,S/015Y!09,,1)74$!T,+S/%1%!L$!781!8+5T/7'4Y!M957!L1!,1K4+0'71%!before!781!8+5T/7'4!/5!
04+51%N! !.)01!78151!)1#!51,S/015!',1! /)!T4'01!781!,1%9)%')7!51,S/015!T,+S/%1%!L$!
781!8+5T/7'4!0')!781)!L1!'44+#1%!7+!04+51!%+#)N!!!
!
A+#1S1,Y! '478+9*8! /MT,+S1M1)75! 7+! ;,/M',$! 6',1! "1,S/015! ',1! 9,*1)74$! )11%1%Y!
64#$%!6+MM9)/7$!A1'478!6+9)0/4! /5!0+)01,)1%!781,1!',1!)+!T4')5!7+!,1KT,+S/%1!781!
L1%5! &,+M! :4/)7! 6+MM9)/7$! A+5T/7'4! 1451#81,1! /)! :4/)7! 7+! ,1&4107! 781! 09,,1)7! ')%!
&979,1! /%1)7/&/1%! )11%N! ! ! X478+9*8! #1! #+94%! 4/P1! 7+! 511! '! Z1#! (9/4%! ^)71*,'71%!
;,/M',$!')%!6+MM9)/7$!e15+9,01!61)7,1! in a central location in Flint, #1!#+94%!
'5P!:4/)758/,1!3+0'4!A1'478!(+',%!7+!,10+)5/%1,!/75!T+5/7/+)!+)!T,+S/%/)*!L1%5!/)!:4/)7N!!
^&!A1'478!')%!"+0/'4!"1,S/015!',1!)+7!T,1T',1%!7+!#+,P!7+*1781,!7+!T,+S/%1!'! g+/)74$!
&9)%1%!9)/7Y! 781)!#1!#+94%!'5P!:4/)758/,1!3+0'4!A1'478!(+',%!7+!T,+S/%1!ZA"!L1%5!
4+0'44$!/)!:4/)7!'7!+)1!+,!M+,1!+&!781!Z9,5/)*!A+M15Y!T',7/094',4$!&+,!T1+T41!#8+!',1!
)1',!781!1)%!+&!781/,!4/&1!')%!#8+!0'))+7Y!+,!%+!)+7!#/58!7+Y!%/1!'7!8+M1N!
!
64#$%! 6+MM9)/7$! A1'478! 6+9)0/4! #+94%! 4/P1! 7+! ,1K/71,'71! 781! W1458! X551ML4$!
=+S1,)M1)7!M+7/+)!78'7!781!S/1#5!+&!781!4+0'4!0+MM9)/7$!M957!L1!7'P1)!+)!L+',%N!!

Page 52



2
N!
C
8
1
!6
+
)
5
9
47
'
7/
+
)
!%
+
0
9
M
1
)
7!
+
9
74
/)
1
5
!'
!

)
1
#
!M
+
%
1
4!
+
&!
0
'
,1
!&
+
,!
:
4/)
7!
#
8
/0
8
!

/)
0
49
%
1
5
!M
+
,1
!5
9
T
T
+
,7
!'
)
%
!7
,1
'
7M
1
)
7!
/)
!

78
1
!0
+
M
M
9
)
/7
$!
'
)
%
!M
+
,1
!'
0
0
1
5
5
!7
+
!

5
T
1
0
/'
4/5
7!
5
P
/44
5
!#
8
1
)
!$
+
9
!)
1
1
%
!7
8
1
M
!K
!

%
+
!$
+
9
!'
*
,1
1
!#
/7
78
!7
8
/5
!)
1
#
!M
+
%
1
4i

F
N!
R
+
!$
+
9
!7
8
/)
P
!7
8
'
7!
78
1
!

T
,+
T
+
5
1
%
!0
8
'
)
*
1
5
!#
/44
!

T
,+
S
/%
1
!:
4/)
7!
,1
5
/%
1
)
75
!#
/7
8
!

78
1
!8
1
'
47
8
0
'
,1
!5
1
,S
/0
1
5
!

78
1
$
!)
1
1
%
i

O
p

ti
o

n
 1

O
p

ti
o

n
 2

N
e
it

h
e
r

Y
e
s

N
o

t 
S

u
re

N
o

Y
e
s
 C

o
m

p
le

te
ly

2
E

V

Y
e
s
 w

it
h

 s
o

m
e
 c

h
a
n

g
e
s

>
>

>
F

N
o

t 
s
u

re
/ 
d

o
n

't
 k

n
o

w
H

G

N
o

 N
o

t 
a
t 

a
ll

@
G

>
H

T
o

ta
l

2
2
I

2
2
I

2
H

H
G
@

F
F

2
2
@

d
)
%
1
,!
F
>

F

F
H
!K
!@
>

2
I

@
H
!K
!H
@

V
I

.
S
1
,!
H
>

>
G

Z
+
7!
5
7'
71
%

V

C
+
7'
4

2
F
2

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 t

o
 T

h
e

 F
u

tu
re

 o
f 

H
e

a
lt

h
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 i

n
 F

li
n

t

A
g

e
 G

ro
u

p
s

V
N!
W
8
/0
8
!+
&!
78
1
!.
T
7/
+
)
5
!5
1
7!
+
9
7!

/)
!7
8
1
!0
+
)
5
9
47
'
7/
+
)
!%
+
0
9
M
1
)
7!

%
+
!$
+
9
!M
+
5
7!
5
9
T
T
+
,7
i

@
N!
^)
!+
,%
1
,!
7+
!M
+
%
1
,)
/5
1
!8
1
'
47
8
!

"
1
,S
/0
1
5
!/
)
!:
4/)
7!
/7
!#
/44
!L
1
!)
1
0
1
5
5
'
,$
!

7+
!0
4+
5
1
!:
4/)
7!
6
+
M
M
9
)
/7
$!
A
+
5
T
/7
'
4!

'
)
%
!T
,+
S
/%
1
!L
1
%
5
!/
)
!+
78
1
,!

0
+
M
M
9
)
/7
$!
8
+
5
T
/7
'
45
!/
)
!:
4/)
75
8
/,
1
!K
!

%
+
!$
+
9
!7
8
/)
P
!7
8
/5
!/
5
!'
0
0
1
T
7'
L
41
i

Page 53



C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

 R
E

C
E

IV
E

D

C
8
1
!L
1
%
5
!/
)
0
49
5
/S
1
!+
&!
78
+
5
1
!7
8
'
7!
8
'
S
1
!L
1
1
)
!T
,+
S
/%
1
%
!L
$
!7
8
1
!4
+
0
'
4!
T
1
+
T
41
!'
)
%
!7
8
1
!Z
A
"
!5
8
+
9
4%
!L
1
!P
1
T
7!
/)
!7
8
1
!:
4/)
7!
0
+
M
M
9
)
/7
$
!K
!+
)
0
1
!7
8
1
$
!

'
,1
!*
+
)
1
!7
8
1
$
!'
,1
!*
+
)
1

:
4/)
7!
6
+
77
'
*
1
!A
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
/5
!S
/7
'
4!
7+
!7
8
1
!,
1
5
/%
1
)
75
!+
&!
:
4/)
7Y
!(
'
*
/44
7!
'
)
%
!Z
+
,7
8
+
T
N!
!Z
+
)
1
!+
&!
78
1
5
1
!,
1
5
/%
1
)
75
!#
'
)
7!
7+
!7
,'
S
1
4!
7+
!'
)
$
!+
&!
78
1
!+
78
1
,!

T
,+
T
+
5
1
%
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
45
K!
M
+
,1
!5
+
!#
8
1
)
!7
8
1
$
!8
'
S
1
!)
+
7!
*
+
7!
'
)
$
!7
,'
)
5
T
+
,7
N!
!C
8
1
!:
4/)
7!
6
+
77
'
*
1
!A
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
8
'
5
!T
,+
S
/%
1
%
!*
+
+
%
!8
1
'
47
8
!0
'
,1
!&
+
,!
'
5
!4
+
)
*
!

'
5
!^
!0
'
)
!,
1
M
1
M
L
1
,!
'
)
%
!T
'
,1
)
75
!L
1
&+
,1
N!
!^
&!
#
1
!#
'
)
71
%
!X
M
1
,/
0
'
)
!,
9
L
L
/5
8
!/
%
1
'
5
!#
1
!0
+
9
4%
!*
+
!'
)
%
!4
/S
1
!7
8
1
,1
N

W
1
!)
1
1
%
!1
]
7,
'
!&
'
0
/4/
7/
1
5
!/
)
!:
4/)
7!
'
)
%
!#
/7
8
!7
8
1
!&
+
,1
0
'
5
7!
/)
0
,1
'
5
1
!/
)
!T
+
T
9
4'
7/
+
)
Y!
8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
L
1
%
5
!'
5
!#
1
44

C
8
1
!L
1
%
5
!5
8
+
9
4%
!L
1
!,
1
7'
/)
1
%
!'
5
!7
8
1
$
!'
,1
!)
1
1
%
1
%
!L
$
!7
8
1
!T
1
+
T
41
!+
&!
:
4/)
7

^&
!)
1
%
!7
+
!'
77
1
)
%
!<
+
4%
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
/)
!1
S
1
)
/)
*
!S
1
,7
9
'
44$
!)
+
!T
9
L
4/0
!7
,'
)
5
T
+
,7
N!
^&
!)
1
1
%
1
%
!7
+
!'
77
1
)
%
!R
1
1
5
/%
1
!/
)
!1
S
1
)
/)
*
!+
)
4$
!2
!L
9
5
!1
S
1
,$
!8
+
9
,!
C
8
1
)
!

M
9
5
7!
1
/7
8
1
,!
#
'
4P
!+
,!
#
'
/7
!&
+
,!
'
)
+
78
1
,N
!A
+
4$
#
1
44!
5
'
M
1
!'
5
!R
1
1
5
/%
1
N!

^!
8
'
S
1
!,
1
4/1
%
!+
)
!7
8
1
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
+
S
1
,!
78
1
!4
'
5
7!
$
1
'
,5
!8
'
S
/)
*
!L
1
1
)
!'
!T
'
7/
1
)
7!
78
1
1
,1
!5
1
S
1
,'
4!
7/
M
1
5
N!
^!
%
+
!,
1
4$
!+
)
!7
8
/5
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
'
5
!/
7!
/5
Y!
T
'
,7
/0
9
4'
,4
$
!

=
;
!"
9
,*
1
,/
1
5
!/
)
!:
4/)
7!
6
1
)
7,
1

X
0
0
1
5
5
!7
+
!=
;
!5
9
,*
1
,/
1
5
!)
1
1
%
5
!7
+
!L
1
!/
)
!:
4/)
7!
C
+
#
)
!6
1
)
7,
1

/%
1
'
44$
!^
!#
+
9
4%
!4
/P
1
!7
8
1
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
7+
!L
1
!P
1
T
7!
+
T
1
)
!#
/7
8
!7
8
1
!L
1
%
5
!!
'
5
!^
!7
8
/)
P
!/
7!
/5
!)
1
1
%
1
%
!/
)
!:
4/)
7

3
1
'
S
1
!7
8
1
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
#
8
1
,1
!/
7!
/5

X
4,
1
'
%
$
!M
'
%
1
!M
$
!0
+
M
M
1
)
75
!/
)
!,
1
T
4$
/)
*
!7
+
!7
8
1
!0
+
)
5
9
47
'
7/
+
)
!%
+
0
9
M
1
)
7N
!Z
(
!'
7!
78
1
!4
1
/5
9
,1
!0
1
)
7,
1
!M
1
1
7/
)
*
!#
1
!#
1
,1
!7
+
4%
!:
4/)
7!
A
+
9
5
1
!#
'
5
!

'
4,
1
'
%
$
!5
+
4%
!L
9
7!
/7
!/
5
!9
T
!&
+
,!
5
'
41
!+
,!
41
7N
!!
A
+
#
!0
'
)
!#
1
!L
1
4/1
S
1
!#
8
'
7!
$
+
9
!7
1
44!
9
5
j!
X
45
+
!0
'
,1
!/
)
!7
8
1
!0
+
M
M
9
)
/7
$
!/
5
!)
+
7!
#
+
,P
/)
*
N!
!C
8
/5
!0
+
M
M
9
)
/7
$
!

)
1
1
%
5
!L
1
%
5
!/
)
!/
75
!+
#
)
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4N
!!
X
!&
1
#
!$
1
'
,5
!'
*
+
!#
1
!#
1
,1
!T
,+
M
/5
1
%
!7
8
'
7!
:
4/)
7!
8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
#
+
9
4%
!)
+
7!
L
1
!0
4+
5
1
%
!L
9
7!
/M
T
,+
S
1
%
!#
/7
8
!0
4/)
/0
!,
+
+
M
5
!

'
)
%
!'
)
!k
,'
$
!%
1
T
'
,7
M
1
)
7N
!!
W
8
1
,1
!/
5
!7
8
1
!k
,'
$
!%
1
T
'
,7
M
1
)
7i
!!
X
*
'
/)
!8
+
#
!0
'
)
!#
1
!L
1
4/1
S
1
!#
8
'
7!
$
+
9
!5
'
$
N!
U
+
9
!'
)
%
!7
8
1
!*
+
S
1
,)
M
1
)
7!
'
,1
!)
+
7!

4/5
71
)
/)
*
!7
+
!#
8
'
7!
T
1
+
T
41
!5
'
$
!+
,!
#
'
)
7N
!W
8
1
,1
!8
'
5
!'
44!
78
1
!M
+
)
1
$
!*
+
)
1
i
!!
^5
!/
7!
/)
!,
1
%
9
)
%
'
)
0
/1
5
!1
S
1
,$
!7
/M
1
!0
8
'
)
*
1
!7
'
P
1
5
!T
4'
0
1
!+
,!
/5
!/
7!
M
+
S
1
%
!

/)
7+
!+
78
1
,!
L
9
%
*
1
75
!#
8
/0
8
!'
,1
!7
8
1
)
!9
)
)
1
*
/+
7/
'
L
41
!#
8
1
)
!M
+
)
1
$
!/
5
!)
1
1
%
1
%
!/
)
!'
)
+
78
1
,!
'
,1
'
!1
N*
N!
7+
!0
+
S
1
,!
%
1
L
75
!+
&!
=
1
)
1
,'
4!
8
+
5
T
/7
'
45
!,
'
78
1
,!

C
8
1
!7
+
#
)
!+
&!
:
4/)
7!
)
1
1
%
5
!L
1
%
5
!/
)
!7
8
1
!0
+
M
M
9
)
/7
$

:
4/)
7!
)
1
1
%
5
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
L
1
%
5

^)
!'
*
,1
1
M
1
)
7!
#
/7
8
!0
1
)
7,
'
4!
0
4/)
/0
!L
9
7!
)
+
7!
8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
0
4+
5
9
,1
N!
;
41
'
5
1
!4
/5
71
)
!7
+
!7
8
1
!T
1
+
T
41
N!
^&
!:
4/)
7!
T
1
+
T
41
!'
,1
!1
]
T
1
0
71
%
!7
+
!7
,'
S
1
4!
7+
!R
1
1
5
/%
1
!+
,!

A
+
4$
#
1
44!
78
1
)
!L
9
/4%
!)
1
#
!0
4/)
/0
!+
,!
4'
)
%
!'
%
g+
/)
/)
*
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
'
)
%
!4
1
7!
:
4/)
7!
8
'
S
1
!L
+
78
!&
'
0
/4/
7/
1
5
N

J
M
T
7$
!;
,+
M
/5
1
5
N!
C
8
/5
!/
5
!A
+
L
5
+
)
l5
!0
8
+
/0
1
N!
W
1
!0
'
)
)
+
7!
4+
5
1
!+
9
,!
8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
L
1
%
5
!K
!:
3
A
(
!T
4'
)
!K
!5
8
+
,7
!7
1
,M
!*
'
/)
5
!&
+
,!
4+
)
*
!7
1
,M
!%
/5
'
5
71
,

Z
1
#
!&
'
0
/4/
7/
1
5
!#
/7
8
+
9
7!
0
4+
5
9
,1
!+
&!
8
+
5
T
/7
'
4

X
5
!'
!*
,+
#
/)
*
!7
+
#
)
!#
/7
8
!&
9
79
,1
!8
+
9
5
/)
*
!/
)
0
,1
'
5
1
5
!7
+
!+
S
1
,!
'
!2
E
E
E
!M
+
,1
Y!
%
+
0
7+
,5
!'
)
%
!5
1
,S
/0
1
5
!,
1
_
9
/,
1
%
!L
9
7!
)
+
7!
'
7!
78
1
!1
]
T
1
)
5
1
!+
&!

^!
'
M
!'
*
'
/)
5
7!
0
4+
5
/)
*
!7
8
1
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4

W
1
!#
'
)
7!
78
1
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
41
&7
!+
T
1
)

Page 54



:
4/)
7!
6
+
M
M
9
)
/7
$
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
8
'
5
!'
4#
'
$
5
!L
1
1
)
!'
S
'
/4'
L
41
!'
)
%
!'
!)
1
0
1
5
5
'
,$
!'
)
%
!M
9
0
8
!)
1
1
%
1
%
!T
'
,7
!+
&!
78
1
!0
+
M
M
9
)
/7
$
N

^!
#
+
9
4%
!4
/P
1
!7
8
1
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
P
1
T
7!
+
T
1
)

C
8
1
!,
1
S
/1
#
!/
%
1
)
7/
&/
1
%
!7
8
1
!)
1
1
%
!&
+
,!
2
E
!/
)
71
,M
1
%
/'
71
!L
1
%
5
!'
)
%
!2
E
!)
9
,5
1
!4
1
%
!L
1
%
5
N!
C
8
1
)
!7
8
/5
!3
A
(
!'
%
g9
%
*
1
%
!7
8
'
7!
78
1
!/
)
71
,M
1
%
/'
71
!0
'
,1
!L
1
%
5
!

0
+
9
4%
!L
1
!0
'
71
,1
%
!&
+
,!
/)
!7
8
1
!0
+
M
M
9
)
/7
$
!'
)
%
!7
8
'
7!
)
9
,5
1
!4
1
%
!L
1
%
5
!0
+
9
4%
!)
+
7N
!!
"
+
!7
8
1
!/
)
71
,M
1
%
/'
71
!0
'
,1
!L
1
%
5
!'
,1
!5
7/
44!
,1
_
9
/,
1
%
!#
8
1
,1
S
1
,!
78
1
$
!

'
,1
!0
'
,1
%
!&
+
,N
!!
C
8
1
!&
/*
9
,1
5
!*
/S
1
)
!&
+
,!
78
1
!,
9
)
)
/)
*
!0
+
5
7!
&+
,!
:
4/)
7!
A
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
#
+
,P
5
!+
9
7!
'
7!
m
I
>
E
YE
E
E
!C
8
/5
!/
5
!'
T
T
,+
]
/M
'
71
4$
!m
>
E
YE
E
E
!T
1
,!
L
1
%
!T
1
,!

$
1
'
,!
&+
,!
2
I
!L
1
%
5
N!
!.
)
!'
!L
1
5
7!
S
'
49
1
!0
,/
71
,/
'
!)
+
7!
M
'
)
$
![
/&
!'
)
$
\!
8
+
5
T
/7
'
45
!0
'
)
!0
+
M
T
1
71
!#
/7
8
!7
8
/5
!&
+
,!
S
'
49
1
!'
5
!&
+
,!
78
1
!V
E
!L
1
%
!0
,/
71
,/
'
!7
8
/5
!M
'
P
1
5
!

&/
)
'
)
0
/'
4!
M
+
0
P
1
,$
!+
&!
78
1
!M
/)
/M
9
M
!L
1
%
!)
9
M
L
1
,5
!'
)
%
!0
+
M
T
'
,1
5
!7
+
!7
8
1
!+
78
1
,!
4+
0
'
4!
0
+
M
M
9
)
/7
$
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
45
N!
!C
8
1
!,
1
S
/1
#
!'
)
%
!0
+
)
5
9
47
'
7/
+
)
!8
'
%
!

+
)
4$
!+
)
1
!,
1
5
9
47
!'
)
%
!7
8
'
7!
#
'
5
!7
8
1
!0
4+
5
/)
*
!+
&!
:
4/)
7!
6
+
M
M
9
)
/7
$
!A
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
T
,/
+
,!
7+
!/
7!
7'
P
/)
*
!T
4'
0
1
N!
!e
1
*
'
,%
41
5
5
!+
&!
78
1
!W
'
)
41
5
5
!'
)
%
!+
78
1
,!

,1
T
+
,7
5
N!
X
5
!8
+
4$
#
1
44!
8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
#
'
5
!%
1
0
/%
1
%
!9
T
+
)
!+
S
1
,!
2
E
!$
1
'
,5
!'
*
+
!'
)
%
!)
+
7!
+
S
1
,!
78
1
!T
'
5
7!
@
!$
1
'
,5
![
+
&!
78
1
5
1
!,
1
T
+
,7
5
\!
)
+
!T
9
L
4/0
!

0
+
)
5
9
47
'
7/
+
)
5
Y!
*
4+
5
5
$
!L
,+
0
8
9
,1
5
N!
!C
8
1
!+
)
4$
!7
/M
1
!'
!0
+
)
5
9
47
'
7/
+
)
!8
'
5
!7
'
P
1
)
!T
4'
0
1
!/
5
!#
8
1
)
!&
'
0
/4/
7/
1
5
!'
,1
!L
1
/)
*
!7
'
P
1
)
!'
#
'
$
!&
,+
M
!7
8
/5
!

0
+
M
M
9
)
/7
$
N!
!C
8
1
!6
A
6
!5
8
+
9
4%
!,
1
g1
0
7!
78
1
!0
4+
5
9
,1
!+
&!
:
4/)
7!
6
+
M
M
9
)
/7
$
!A
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
7+
!'
44+
#
!7
8
1
!W
1
45
8
!X
5
5
1
M
L
4$
!7
+
!M
'
P
1
!7
8
1
!%
1
0
/5
/+
)
!'
5
!7
8
1
!

^!
#
+
9
4%
!4
/P
1
!7
8
1
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
P
1
T
7!
+
T
1
)

^!
#
+
9
4%
!4
/P
1
!7
8
1
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
7+
!5
7'
$
!+
T
1
)

<
$
!M
'
/)
!0
+
)
0
1
,)
!/
5
!7
8
'
7!
)
+
K+
)
1
!/
5
!4
/5
71
)
/)
*
!7
+
!7
8
1
!T
1
+
T
41
!+
&!
:
4/)
7!
K!
W
1
!'
,1
!1
%
9
0
'
71
%
!T
1
+
T
41
!'
)
%
!%
+
!)
+
7!
4/P
1
!7
+
!L
1
!7
8
+
9
*
8
7!
+
&!
'
5
!5
79
T
/%
N!
!

C
8
1
!0
'
,1
!/
)
!7
8
1
!0
+
M
M
9
)
/7
$
!/
5
!0
1
,7
'
/)
4$
!)
+
7!
#
+
,P
/)
*
N!
X
5
!5
+
M
1
!T
+
/)
7!
/)
!+
9
,!
4/S
1
5
!#
1
!#
/44
!)
1
1
%
!'
!5
7'
$
!'
7!
:
4/)
7!
6
+
77
'
*
1
!A
+
5
T
/7
'
4N
!!
^!
'
77
1
)
%
1
%
!'
!

M
1
1
7/
)
*
!'
!&
1
#
!$
1
'
,5
!'
*
+
!'
)
%
!#
1
!#
1
,1
!7
+
4%
!7
8
'
7!
78
1
!5
1
,S
/0
1
5
!/
)
!:
4/)
7!
8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
#
+
9
4%
!L
1
!/
M
T
,+
S
1
%
!L
$
!/
)
5
7'
44/
)
*
!k
!,
'
$
!1
_
9
/T
M
1
)
7!
K!
78
/5
!8
'
5
!

)
+
7!
L
1
1
)
!%
+
)
1
N!
!X
!4
+
7!
+
&!
M
+
)
1
$
!8
'
5
!L
1
1
)
!5
T
1
)
7!
'
4,
1
'
%
$
!,
1
&9
,L
/5
8
/)
*
!7
8
/5
!4
/7
74
1
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
/5
!/
)
!S
1
,$
!*
+
+
%
!0
+
)
%
/7
/+
)
N!
!X
&7
1
,!
2
E
!$
1
'
,5
!/
)
!+
&&
/0
1
Y!
^!

,1
'
%
!/
)
!7
8
1
!T
'
T
1
,!
7+
%
'
$
!7
8
'
7!
)
+
#
!7
8
1
!*
+
S
1
,)
M
1
)
7!
#
/44
!)
+
#
!5
7'
,7
!7
+
!&
+
0
9
5
!+
)
!;
'
7/
1
)
7!
"
1
,S
/0
1
5
jj
!!
W
8
'
7!
M
+
,1
!0
'
)
!^
!5
'
$
i
!!
W
8
1
,1
!8
'
5
!'
44!
78
1
!

W
1
!)
1
1
%
!L
1
%
5
!/
)
!:
4/)
7!
&+
,!
78
1
!4
+
0
'
4!
T
1
+
T
41

^!
#
+
9
4%
!4
/P
1
!7
+
!P
1
1
T
!7
8
1
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
/)
!:
4/)
7

;
1
+
T
41
!#
/5
8
!7
+
!%
/1
!/
)
!7
8
1
/,
!+
#
)
!0
+
M
M
9
)
/7
$
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4

^!
#
+
9
4%
!4
/P
1
!7
+
!P
1
1
T
!7
8
1
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
/)
!:
4/)
7

^!
T
,1
&1
,!
7+
!P
1
1
T
!7
8
/)
*
5
!'
5
!7
8
1
$
!'
,1

"
8
+
9
4%
!)
+
7!
8
'
S
1
!7
+
!7
,'
S
1
4!
+
9
75
/%
1
!:
4/)
7!
&+
,!
'
!L
1
%
N!
:
4/)
7!
8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
/5
!&
9
44!
[0
+
)
7,
'
,$
!7
+
!#
8
'
7!
3
A
(
!5
'
$
5
\

^!
#
+
9
4%
!4
/P
1
!7
8
1
!8
+
5
T
7'
4!
L
1
%
5
!P
1
T
7!
+
T
1
)

C
8
1
!T
+
T
9
4'
7/
+
)
!+
&!
:
4/)
7!
8
'
5
!'
!4
+
7!
+
&!
1
4%
1
,4
$
!T
1
+
T
41
!'
)
%
!#
1
!)
1
1
%
!7
+
!P
1
1
T
!7
8
1
!L
1
%
5
N

.
4%
1
,!
T
1
+
T
41
!8
'
S
1
!T
,+
L
41
M
5
!#
/7
8
!7
,'
)
5
T
+
,7
!'
)
%
!#
+
9
4%
!)
+
7!
L
1
!'
L
41
!7
+
!7
,'
S
1
4!
'
5
!T
9
L
4/0
!7
,'
)
5
T
+
,7
!/
5
!)
+
7!
S
1
,$
!*
+
+
%
N

:
4/)
7!
0
+
M
M
9
)
9
)
/7
$
!)
1
1
%
5
!7
8
1
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
L
1
%
5
N

3
1
'
S
1
!7
8
1
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
+
T
1
)
!'
)
%
!1
]
T
'
)
%
!7
8
1
!5
1
,S
/0
1
5
N

^!
#
'
)
7!
7+
!P
1
1
T
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
L
1
%
5
!/
)
!:
4/)
7!
5
+
!7
8
'
7!
T
1
+
T
41
!0
'
)
!5
1
1
!'
)
%
!S
/5
/7
!7
8
1
/,
!&
,/
1
)
%
5
!'
)
%
!&
'
M
/4$

Page 55



(
$
!0
4+
5
/)
*
!7
8
1
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
/7
!/
5
!4
1
'
S
/)
*
!,
1
5
/%
1
)
75
!+
&!
:
4/)
7!
#
/7
8
+
9
7!
78
1
!0
'
,1
!5
+
M
1
!,
1
_
9
/,
1
N

;
9
77
/)
*
!7
8
1
!8
1
'
47
8
!0
1
)
7,
1
!/
)
!7
8
1
!M
/%
%
41
!+
&!
:
4/)
7!
/5
!)
+
7!
'
!*
+
+
%
!/
%
1
'
!'
5
!/
7!
#
/44
!L
1
!S
'
)
%
'
4/5
1
%
N

(
1
%
5
!'
,1
!)
1
1
%
1
%
!/
)
!:
4/)
7

X
!)
1
#
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
^!
#
+
9
4%
!'
*
,1
1
!7
+
N

:
4/)
7!
)
1
1
%
5
!/
75
!+
#
)
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
&'
0
/4/
7/
1
5

n
1
1
T
!L
1
%
5
!/
)
!:
4/)
7

^!
#
+
9
4%
!4
/P
1
!7
8
1
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
79
,)
1
%
!/
)
7+
!'
!8
+
5
T
/0
1

C
1
,M
/)
'
44$
!/
44!
T
'
7/
1
)
75
!)
1
1
%
!7
+
!L
1
!/
)
!'
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
)
1
'
,!
78
1
/,
!&
'
M
/4/
1
5
N

^!
#
+
9
4%
!4
/P
1
!:
3
A
(
!7
+
!*
+
!L
'
0
P
!7
+
!7
8
1
!%
,'
#
/)
*
!L
+
'
,%
!'
)
%
!0
+
M
1
!9
T
!#
/7
8
!'
!)
1
#
!T
,+
T
+
5
'
4!
7+
!5
'
7/
5
&$
!'
44!
78
1
!T
1
+
T
41
!+
&!
:
4/)
7!
'
)
%
!7
8
1
!5
9
,,
+
9
)
%
/)
*
!

'
,1
'
N!
!^
!5
1
1
!)
+
!,
1
'
5
+
)
!#
8
$
!$
+
9
!0
'
)
)
+
7!
T
,+
S
/%
1
!'
!L
,'
)
%
!)
1
#
!6
+
M
M
9
)
/7
$
!A
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
&+
,!
78
1
!7
+
#
)
!#
/7
8
!'
44!
78
1
!4
'
71
5
7!
&'
0
/4/
7/
1
5
![
M
9
0
8
!+
)
!7
8
1
!

4/)
1
5
!+
&!
<
+
4%
Y!
R
1
1
5
/%
1
!'
)
%
!1
S
1
)
79
'
44$
!A
+
4$
#
1
44\
!!
X
0
0
+
,%
/)
*
!7
+
!7
8
1
!T
,1
5
5
!,
1
T
+
,7
5
Y!
78
1
!*
+
S
1
,)
M
1
)
7!
8
'
5
!'
44+
71
%
!1
]
7,
'
!M
+
)
1
$
!7
+
!7
8
1
!W
1
45
8
!

X
5
5
1
M
L
4$
!&
+
,!
Z
'
7/
+
)
'
4!
A
1
'
47
8
!5
1
,S
/0
1
5
N!
"
+
!#
8
$
!0
'
)
)
+
7!
5
+
M
1
!+
&!
78
/5
!M
+
)
1
$
!L
1
!5
T
1
)
7!
+
)
!T
,+
S
/%
/)
*
!:
4/)
7!
#
/7
8
!'
!)
1
#
!6
+
M
M
9
)
/7
$
!A
+
5
T
/7
'
4N
!!

C
8
1
!T
,1
5
1
)
7!
0
+
77
'
*
1
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
['
5
!/
7!
/5
!4
+
0
'
44$
!P
)
+
#
)
\!
+
)
0
1
!8
'
%
!'
)
!+
T
1
,'
7/
)
*
!7
8
1
'
7,
1
!'
)
%
!+
78
1
,!
&'
0
/4/
7/
1
5
!'
)
%
!'
!)
9
,5
1
5
l!8
+
M
1
Y!
L
9
7!
+
S
1
,!
78
1
!

$
1
'
,5
!7
8
1
$
!#
1
,1
!,
1
M
+
S
1
%
N!
!d
)
4/P
1
!$
+
9
,!
6
8
/1
&!
J
]
1
0
9
7/
S
1
Y!
^!
L
1
4/1
S
1
!7
8
'
7!
'
!7
+
#
)
!7
8
1
!5
/o
1
!+
&!
:
4/)
7!
5
8
+
9
4%
!8
'
S
1
!+
)
!7
8
1
!%
+
+
,5
71
T
Y!
8
1
'
47
8
!

(
1
%
5
!5
8
+
9
4%
!L
1
!P
1
T
7!
4+
0
'
4!
&+
,!
&,
/1
)
%
5
!'
)
%
!&
'
M
/4$
!7
+
!S
/5
/7
!'
)
%
!'
45
+
!T
9
L
4/0
!7
,'
)
5
T
+
,7
!/
5
!'
!L
/*
!T
,+
L
41
M
N

X
5
!:
4/)
7!
/5
!*
,+
#
/)
*
!1
S
1
)
!L
/*
*
1
,!
/)
!T
+
T
9
4'
7/
+
)
!/
7!
/5
!S
/7
'
4!
78
'
7!
#
1
!%
+
!8
'
S
1
!M
+
,1
!5
1
,S
/0
1
5
!&
+
,!
78
1
!8
1
'
47
8
!+
&!
+
9
,!
0
+
M
M
9
)
/7
$
!T
49
5
!#
1
!%
+
!)
1
1
%
!7
8
1
!

C
8
1
!,
1
5
+
9
,0
1
!0
1
)
7,
1
!M
9
5
7!
L
1
!/
)
!7
8
1
!0
1
)
7,
1
!+
&!
:
4/)
7!
&+
,!
+
4%
1
,!
T
1
+
T
41
!#
8
+
!0
'
)
)
+
7!
#
'
4P
!7
+
!7
8
1
!0
+
77
'
*
1
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4

^!
8
'
S
1
!@
!0
8
/4%
,1
)
!'
)
%
!1
'
0
8
!8
'
5
!L
1
1
)
!'
!M
/)
+
,!
T
'
7/
1
)
7!
/)
!:
4/)
7!
8
+
5
T
/7
'
4N
!(
+
78
!M
$
!#
/&
1
!'
)
%
!^
!8
'
S
1
!'
45
+
!L
1
1
)
!T
'
7/
1
)
75
!7
8
1
,1
N

C
8
1
$
!8
'
%
!7
+
!5
8
9
7!
=
4'
)
!6
4#
$
%
!L
1
0
'
9
5
1
!+
&!
)
+
!L
1
%
5
Y!
:
4/)
7!
#
+
9
4%
!8
'
S
1
!L
1
1
)
!'
)
!'
47
1
,)
'
7/
S
1
N

^!
78
+
9
*
8
7!
#
1
!4
/S
1
%
!/
)
!'
!%
1
M
+
0
,'
0
$
N!
Z
+
)
1
!+
&!
78
1
!,
1
5
/%
1
)
75
!+
&!
:
4/)
7!
^!
8
'
S
1
!5
T
+
P
1
)
!7
+
!#
'
)
75
!7
+
!4
+
5
1
!7
8
1
!L
1
%
5
!/
)
!:
4/)
7!
8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
+
)
4$
!7
8
1
!3
A
(
!

'
,1
!/
)
!&
'
S
+
9
,N
!W
8
'
7!
'
L
+
9
7!
78
1
!7
,'
)
5
T
+
,7
!7
+
!7
8
1
5
1
!+
78
1
,!
8
+
5
T
/7
'
45
i
!(
9
5
1
5
!%
+
)
l7!
*
+
!%
/,
1
0
7!
7+
!<
+
4%
!'
)
%
!4
+
0
'
4!
0
8
'
,/
7$
!7
,'
)
5
T
+
,7
!/
5
!+
S
1
,5
7,
70
8
1
%
N!

Z
+
#
!)
+
!T
,+
S
/5
/+
)
!8
'
5
!L
1
1
)
!M
'
%
1
!&
+
,!
T
1
+
T
41
!#
8
+
!%
+
)
l7!
8
'
S
1
!0
'
,5
!N
!(
9
/4%
!'
!)
1
#
!L
$
!'
44!
M
1
'
)
5
!L
9
7!
P
1
1
T
!L
1
%
5
!/
)
!:
4/)
7N
!!
C
8
1
!)
1
#
!&
'
0
/4/
7$
!

)
1
1
%
5
!7
+
!L
1
!M
+
%
/&
/1
%
!7
+
!/
)
0
49
%
1
!L
1
%
5
N!
!X
7!
78
1
!M
1
1
7/
)
*
!/
)
!"
7!
X
5
'
T
8
!,
1
*
'
,%
/)
*
!7
8
1
!M
'
/)
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
45
!#
1
!#
1
,1
!7
+
4%
!7
8
'
7!
M
+
,1
!7
,1
'
7M
1
)
7!
#
+
9
4%
!

^!
78
/)
P
!/
7!
/5
!%
/5
*
,'
0
1
&9
4!
78
'
7!
$
+
9
!7
8
/)
P
!7
8
'
7!
:
4/)
7!
%
+
1
5
!)
+
7!
%
1
5
1
,S
1
!'
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
#
8
1
)
!/
7!
/5
!7
8
1
!4
'
,*
1
5
7!
7+
#
)
!/
)
!7
8
1
!0
+
9
)
7$
!'
)
%
!$
1
7!
$
+
9
!'
,1
!

5
T
1
)
%
/)
*
!M
/44
/+
)
5
!+
&!
T
+
9
)
%
5
!/
)
!A
+
4$
#
1
44N

2
N!
W
/7
8
!7
8
1
!'
%
S
1
)
7!
+
&!
78
1
!.
'
P
1
)
8
+
47
!L
9
/4%
/)
*
!:
4/)
7!
#
/44
!L
1
0
+
M
1
!'
!4
'
,*
1
!0
1
)
7,
1
!+
&!
T
+
T
9
4'
7/
+
)
Y!
,1
71
)
7/
+
)
!+
&!
'
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
/5
!'
!M
9
5
7N
F
N!
C
8
1
!

'
44+
0
'
7/
+
)
!+
&!
L
1
%
5
!7
+
!7
8
1
!S
'
,/
+
9
5
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
45
!/
5
!'
!S
'
,/
'
L
41
!5
+
!/
7!
/5
!T
+
5
5
/L
41
!7
+
!8
'
S
1
!7
8
1
!M
1
M
L
1
,5
!+
&!
'
!&
'
M
/4$
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4/5
1
%
!/
)
!%
/&
&1
,1
)
7!
4+
0
'
4/7
/1
5
N!

V
N!
p
/5
/7
/)
*
!,
1
4'
7/
S
1
5
!0
+
9
4%
!L
1
!'
!M
'
g+
,!
T
,+
L
41
M
!'
\!
'
,1
!7
8
1
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
45
!+
)
!'
!L
9
5
!,
+
9
71
!!
L
\!
&,
1
_
9
1
)
0
$
!+
&!
L
9
5
!5
1
,S
/0
1
5
!1
5
T
1
0
/'
44$
!+
)
!#
1
1
P
1
)
%
5
!0
\!

W
1
!8
'
S
1
!'
44!
79
,)
1
%
!7
+
!:
4/)
7!
8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
'
7!
+
)
1
!7
/M
1
!+
,!
'
)
+
78
1
,!
'
)
%
!'
,1
!S
1
,$
!*
,'
71
&9
4!
7+
!7
8
1
M
N!
!W
1
!)
1
1
%
!/
7!
7+
!5
7'
$
!+
T
1
)
!'
)
%
!P
1
1
T
!7
8
1
!L
1
%
5
!

Page 56



C
,'
)
5
T
+
,7
'
7/
+
)
!7
+
!7
8
1
!'
47
1
,)
'
7/
S
1
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
45
!/
5
!T
,'
0
7/
0
'
44$
!)
+
)
K1
]
/5
71
)
7!
'
)
%
!0
9
,,
1
)
7!
0
8
'
,/
7'
L
41
`S
+
49
)
7'
,$
!+
,*
'
)
/5
'
7/
+
)
5
!0
'
)
)
+
7!
T
,+
S
/%
1
!&
+
,!
'
)
$
!

1
]
7,
'
!7
,'
)
5
T
+
,7
N!
6
9
,,
1
)
74
$
!7
8
1
!&
9
)
%
5
!&
+
,!
78
1
!T
,+
T
+
5
'
45
!8
'
S
1
!)
+
7!
L
1
1
)
!'
44+
0
'
71
%
!'
)
%
!#
/44
!+
)
4$
!L
1
!,
1
_
9
1
5
71
%
!'
&7
1
,!
:
4/)
7!
8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
8
'
5
!*
+
)
1
N!
!

.
)
0
1
!'
*
'
/)
!'
!0
'
,7
!L
1
&+
,1
!'
!8
+
,5
1
!5
/7
9
'
7/
+
)
N!
^&
!&
9
)
%
/)
*
!/
5
!)
+
7!
'
S
'
/4'
L
41
!'
&7
1
,!
+
9
,!
8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
8
'
5
!0
1
'
5
1
%
Y!
/7
!#
/44
!L
1
!7
+
+
!4
'
71
!7
+
!,
1
/)
5
7'
1
!/
7N
!!
C
8
1
,1
!

/5
!)
+
!*
9
'
,'
)
71
1
!&
9
)
%
5
!#
/44
!1
S
1
,!
L
1
!'
S
'
/4'
L
41
N!
C
8
/5
!/
5
!'
44!
T
/1
!/
)
!7
8
1
!5
P
$
N

:
4/)
7!
/5
!'
!*
,+
#
/)
*
!7
+
#
)
!'
)
%
!)
1
1
%
5
!7
8
1
!L
1
%
5
N!
F
@
!8
+
9
,!
0
'
,1
!#
/44
!L
1
!7
'
P
1
)
!'
#
'
$
!/
&!
:
4/)
7!
6
+
M
M
9
)
/7
$
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
0
4+
5
1
5
N!
C
8
1
!0
+
)
5
9
47
'
7/
+
)
!

T
,+
S
/%
1
%
!L
$
!7
8
1
!3
A
(
!/
)
!M
$
!S
/1
#
!#
'
5
!)
+
7!
'
!0
+
)
5
9
47
'
7/
+
)
!L
1
0
'
9
5
1
!7
8
1
$
!8
'
S
1
!T
,+
T
+
5
1
%
!7
8
1
!0
8
+
/0
1
5
!&
+
,!
78
1
!,
1
5
/%
1
)
75
!+
&!
:
4/)
7N

^!
#
/5
8
!5
7,
+
)
*
4$
!&
+
,!
L
1
%
5
!7
+
!L
1
!P
1
T
7!
/)
!7
8
1
!0
+
M
M
9
)
/7
$
N

W
1
!#
1
40
+
M
1
!)
1
#
!5
1
,S
/0
1
5
!L
9
7!
)
+
7!
'
7!
78
1
!0
+
5
7!
+
&!
4+
5
5
!+
&!
8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
L
1
%
5
!'
)
%
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4

W
1
!#
1
40
+
M
1
!)
1
#
!'
)
%
!/
M
T
,+
S
1
%
!5
1
,S
/0
1
5
!/
)
!:
4/)
7!
L
9
7!
)
+
7!
'
7!
78
1
!4
+
5
5
!+
&!
L
1
%
5
!+
,!
78
1
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4N
!!
R
+
0
7+
,5
!#
+
9
4%
!8
'
S
1
!'
!)
/0
1
!)
1
#
!T
,1
M
/5
1
!'
7!

78
1
!0
+
5
7!
+
&!
Z
A
"
Y!
L
9
7!
78
1
$
!8
'
S
1
!7
8
1
/,
!+
#
)
!L
9
%
*
1
7N

^!
'
*
,1
1
!#
/7
8
!7
8
1
!/
M
T
,+
S
1
)
M
1
)
7!
+
&!
=
;
!5
9
,*
1
,/
1
5
!/
)
!:
4/)
7!
L
9
7!
#
1
!5
7/
44!
)
1
1
%
!/
)
T
'
7/
1
)
7!
L
1
%
5
N

:
4/)
7!
%
+
1
5
!)
1
1
%
!'
)
!/
M
T
,+
S
1
%
!5
1
,S
/0
1
!L
9
7!
/)
T
'
7/
1
)
7!
L
1
%
5
!5
8
+
9
4%
!L
1
!,
1
7'
/)
1
%
!/
)
!:
4/)
7N
!!
X
5
!7
8
1
!7
+
#
)
!*
1
75
!4
'
,*
1
,Y
!7
8
1
!1
4%
1
,4
$
!T
+
T
9
4'
7/
+
)
!'
,1
!7
8
1
!

M
'
/)
!9
5
1
,5
!+
&!
L
1
%
5
!'
)
%
!%
1
M
'
)
%
!#
/44
!/
)
0
,1
'
5
1
N

R
+
!)
+
7!
0
4+
5
1
!:
4/)
7!
6
+
M
M
9
)
/7
$
!A
+
5
T
/7
'
4

^7
!/
5
!'
!%
/5
*
,'
0
1
!7
8
1
!T
1
+
T
41
!+
&!
:
4/)
7!
#
/44
!L
1
!4
+
5
/)
*
!7
8
1
/,
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
/&
!7
8
1
!T
,+
T
+
5
'
45
!'
,1
!'
0
0
1
T
71
%
N

A
'
S
1
!$
+
9
!7
8
+
9
*
8
7!
8
+
#
!T
1
+
T
41
!'
,1
!*
+
/)
*
!7
+
!*
1
7!
7+
!+
78
1
,!
8
+
5
T
/7
'
45
!#
8
+
!8
'
S
1
!)
+
!7
,'
)
5
T
+
,7
!'
)
%
!'
45
+
!7
8
1
!T
'
7/
1
)
75
!#
+
)
a7
!*
1
7!
78
1
!0
'
,1
!7
8
'
7!
78
1
$
!

X
5
!7
8
!T
+
T
9
4'
7/
+
)
!+
&!
:
4/)
7!
/5
!4
/P
1
4$
!7
+
!/
)
0
,1
'
5
1
!#
/7
8
!7
8
1
!L
9
/4%
/)
*
!+
&!
I
E
E
!)
1
#
!8
+
9
5
1
5
!/
)
!.
'
P
1
)
8
+
47
Y!
#
1
!)
1
1
%
!M
+
,1
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
5
T
'
0
1
!)
+
7!
41
5
5
N

:
+
,!
78
1
!5
/o
1
!+
&!
:
4/)
7!
L
1
%
5
!'
,1
!%
1
5
T
1
,'
71
4$
!)
1
1
%
1
%
!/
)
!:
4/)
7N

C
8
1
!T
1
+
T
41
!+
&!
:
4/)
7!
)
1
1
%
!L
1
%
!5
T
'
0
1
!/
)
!7
8
1
/,
!4
+
0
'
4!
8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
/N
1
N!
:
4/)
7!
6
+
77
'
*
1
!A
+
5
T
/7
'
4N

C
8
/5
!7
+
#
)
!)
1
1
%
5
!/
75
!+
#
)
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
L
1
%
5
!/
)
!7
8
1
!7
+
#
)
N

:
4/)
7!
)
1
1
%
5
!L
1
%
5
!/
)
!'
!0
+
M
M
9
)
/7
$
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
/)
!/
75
!+
#
)
!7
+
#
)
N!
!C
8
1
!,
1
5
/%
1
)
75
!+
&!
78
1
!7
+
#
)
!%
1
5
1
,S
1
!7
8
/5
N

W
1
!)
1
1
%
!'
!M
1
%
/0
'
4!
0
1
)
7,
1
!/
)
!7
8
1
!0
1
)
7,
1
!+
&!
:
4/)
7!
L
9
7!
#
1
!'
45
+
!)
1
1
%
!7
8
1
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
#
/7
8
!7
#
1
)
7$
!T
49
5
!L
1
%
5
N

Page 57



Q
u

e
s
ti

o
n

 1
: 

T
h

e
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 d
o

c
u

m
e
n

t 

o
u

tl
in

e
s
 a

 n
e
w

 m
o

d
e
l 

o
f 

c
a
re

 f
o

r 
F

li
n

t 
w

h
ic

h
 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 m

o
re

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 

a
n

d
 t

re
a
tm

e
n

t 
in

 t
h

e
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 m
o

re
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 s

p
e
c
ia

li
s
t 

s
k
il
ls

 w
h

e
n

 y
o

u
 n

e
e
d

 

th
e
m

 -
 d

o
 y

o
u

 a
g

re
e
 

w
it

h
 t

h
is

 n
e
w

 m
o

d
e
l?

Q
u

e
s
ti

o
n

 2
: 

D
o

 y
o

u
 

th
in

k
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 c

h
a
n

g
e
s
 

p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 d
o

c
u

m
e
n

t 

w
il
l 
p

ro
v

id
e
 F

li
n

t 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

h
e
a
lt

h
c
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

th
e
y
 n

e
e
d

?

Q
u

e
s
ti

o
n

 3
: 

W
h

ic
h

 o
f 

th
e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 s
e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 t
h

e
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 

d
o

c
u

m
e
n

t 
d

o
 

y
o

u
 m

o
s
t 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

?

Q
u

e
s
ti

o
n

 4
: 

In
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 

m
o

d
e
rn

is
e
 h

e
a
lt

h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

in
 F

li
n

t,
 i
t 

w
il
l 
b

e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 

to
 c

lo
s
e
 F

li
n

t 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

H
o

s
p

it
a
l 
a
n

d
 p

ro
v

id
e
 1

0
 

N
u

rs
e
 l
e
d

 b
e
d

s
 i
n

 o
th

e
r 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 h

o
s
p

it
a
ls

 i
n

 

F
li
n

ts
h

ir
e
 (

M
o

ld
, 
D

e
e
s
id

e
 o

r 

H
o

ly
w

e
ll
).

  
D

o
 y

o
u

 t
h

in
k
 t

h
a
t 

th
is

 i
s
 a

c
c
e
p

ta
b

le
?

Z
+
Y!
)
+
7!
'
7!
'
44

Z
+
Y!
)
+
7!
'
7!
'
44

Z
1
/7
8
1
,

Z
+

Z
+
Y!
)
+
7!
'
7!
'
44

Z
+
Y!
)
+
7!
'
7!
'
44

Z
1
/7
8
1
,

Z
+

Z
+
Y!
)
+
7!
'
7!
'
44

Z
+
Y!
)
+
7!
'
7!
'
44

Z
1
/7
8
1
,

Z
+

K
K

Z
1
/7
8
1
,

Z
+

Z
+
Y!
)
+
7!
'
7!
'
44

Z
+
Y!
)
+
7!
'
7!
'
44

Z
1
/7
8
1
,

Z
+

K
U
1
5
!#
/7
8
!5
+
M
1
!0
8
'
)
*
1
5

Z
1
/7
8
1
,

Z
+

U
1
5
!#
/7
8
!5
+
M
1
!0
8
'
)
*
1
5

Z
+
Y!
)
+
7!
'
7!
'
44

K
Z
+

U
1
5
!#
/7
8
!5
+
M
1
!0
8
'
)
*
1
5

Z
+
Y!
)
+
7!
'
7!
'
44

Z
1
/7
8
1
,

Z
+

Page 58



K
Z
+
Y!
)
+
7!
'
7!
'
44

K
K

U
1
5
!#
/7
8
!5
+
M
1
!0
8
'
)
*
1
5

Z
+
7!
5
9
,1
`%
+
)
l7!
P
)
+
#

Z
1
/7
8
1
,

Z
+

U
1
5
!#
/7
8
!5
+
M
1
!0
8
'
)
*
1
5

U
1
5
!#
/7
8
!5
+
M
1
!0
8
'
)
*
1
5

Z
1
/7
8
1
,

Z
+

U
1
5
!#
/7
8
!5
+
M
1
!0
8
'
)
*
1
5

U
1
5
!#
/7
8
!5
+
M
1
!0
8
'
)
*
1
5

Z
1
/7
8
1
,

Z
+

U
1
5
!#
/7
8
!5
+
M
1
!0
8
'
)
*
1
5

U
1
5
!#
/7
8
!5
+
M
1
!0
8
'
)
*
1
5

Z
1
/7
8
1
,

Z
+

U
1
5
Y!
0
+
M
T
41
71
4$

U
1
5
!#
/7
8
!5
+
M
1
!0
8
'
)
*
1
5

;
,+
T
+
5
'
4!
F

U
1
5

Z
+
Y!
)
+
7!
'
7!
'
44

Z
+
Y!
)
+
7!
'
7!
'
44

Z
1
/7
8
1
,

Z
+

Z
+
Y!
)
+
7!
'
7!
'
44

Z
+
Y!
)
+
7!
'
7!
'
44

Z
1
/7
8
1
,

Z
+

Z
+
Y!
)
+
7!
'
7!
'
44

Z
+
Y!
)
+
7!
'
7!
'
44

Z
1
/7
8
1
,

Z
+

Page 59



Q
u

e
s
ti

o
n

 5
: 

D
o

 y
o

u
 h

a
v

e
 a

n
y
 c

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 y

o
u

 w
o

u
ld

 l
ik

e
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
?

Q
u

e
s
ti

o
n

 

6
: 

P
le

a
s
e
 

in
d

ic
a
te

 

y
o

u
r 

a
g

e
 

g
ro

u
p

:

C
8
'
)
P
!*
+
+
%
)
1
5
5
!5
+
M
1
+
)
1
!/
5
!4
/5
71
)
/)
*
!7
+
!7
8
1
!T
1
+
T
41
!+
&!
:
4/)
7N
!!
C
8
1
!0
+
)
5
9
47
'
7/
+
)
!/
5
!'
!5
8
'
M
!

'
)
%
!5
8
+
9
4%
!8
'
S
1
!L
1
1
)
!#
/7
8
%
,'
#
)
N!
!"
+
M
1
+
)
1
!5
8
+
9
4%
!L
1
!'
0
0
+
9
)
7'
L
41
!&
+
,!
78
1
!T
9
L
4/0
!

M
+
)
1
$!
78
'
7!
8
'
5
!L
1
1
)
!#
'
5
71
%
!+
)
!7
8
/5
!1
]
1
,0
/5
1
N

F
H
!7
+
!@
>

3
+
0
'
4!
e
1
5
/%
1
)
7

:
4/)
7!
A
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
'
)
%
!/
75
!L
1
%
5
!T
,+
S
/%
1
!S
/7
'
4!
5
1
,S
/0
1
5
!7
+
!7
8
1
!,
1
5
/%
1
)
75
!+
&!
78
1
!7
+
#
)
!'
)
%
!/
75
!

5
9
,,
+
9
)
%
/)
*
!'
,1
'
N!
!^
7!
/5
!'
!%
/5
*
,'
0
1
!7
8
'
7!
78
1
!3
A
(
!'
,1
!1
S
1
)
!7
8
/)
P
/)
*
!+
&!
,1
M
+
S
/)
*
!5
9
0
8
!S
/7
'
4!

5
1
,S
/0
1
5
N!
C
8
1
5
1
!5
1
,S
/0
1
5
!5
8
+
9
4%
!L
1
!,
1
7'
/)
1
%
Y!
1
)
8
'
)
0
1
%
!'
)
%
!%
1
S
1
4+
T
1
%
!)
+
7!
7'
P
1
)

@
H
!7
+
!H
@

3
+
0
'
4!
e
1
5
/%
1
)
7

^7
!/
5
!1
5
5
1
)
7/
'
4!
78
'
7!
78
1
!L
1
%
5
!'
,1
!P
1
T
7!
'
7!
78
1
!6
+
M
M
9
)
/7
$!
A
+
5
T
/7
'
4N

@
H
!7
+
!H
@

3
+
0
'
4!
e
1
5
/%
1
)
7

^7
!/
5
!)
+
7!
)
1
0
1
0
1
5
5
'
,$
!7
+
!0
4+
5
1
!:
4/)
7!
8
+
5
T
/7
'
4N
!!
^7
!/
5
!1
]
T
1
%
/0
/+
9
5
!&
+
,!
78
1
!3
+
0
4!
A
1
'
47
8
!(
+
'
,%
!7
+
!

0
4+
5
1
!/
7!
5
+
!7
8
1
$
!0
'
)
!,
1
%
9
0
1
!7
8
1
!Z
+
,7
8
!J
'
5
7!
W
'
41
5
!7
,9
5
75
!%
1
&/
0
/7
N

@
H
!7
+
!H
@

3
+
0
'
4!
e
1
5
/%
1
)
7

W
/7
8
!,
1
*
'
,%
!7
+
!_
9
1
5
7/
+
)
!2
!K
!^
!5
9
T
T
+
,7
!7
8
1
!)
1
1
%
!&
+
,!
/M
T
,+
S
1
%
!;
,/
M
'
,$
!6
'
,1
!/
)
!:
4/)
7!
L
9
7!
&1
1
4!

5
7,
+
)
*
4$
!7
8
'
7!
Z
A
"
!L
1
%
5
!5
8
+
9
4%
!)
+
7!
L
1
!,
1
M
+
S
1
%
!&
,+
M
!:
4/)
7N

K
3
+
0
'
4!
e
1
5
/%
1
)
7

:
4/)
7!
5
8
+
9
4%
!8
'
S
1
!'
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
#
/7
8
!L
1
%
5
!&
+
,!
78
1
!)
1
1
%
5
!+
&!
T
1
+
T
41
!/
)
!:
4/)
7N
!!
Z
1
#
!&
'
0
/4/
7/
1
5
!'
,1
!

)
1
1
%
1
!&
+
,!
%
+
0
7+
,5
!'
)
%
!0
4/)
/0
!L
9
7!
)
+
7!
'
7!
78
1
!1
]
T
1
)
5
1
!+
&!
78
1
!L
1
%
5
!'
)
%
!+
9
,!
8
+
5
T
/7
'
4N

F
H
!7
+
!@
>

3
+
0
'
4!
e
1
5
/%
1
)
7

^!
&1
1
4!
T
1
+
T
41
!#
/44
!8
'
S
1
!7
+
!T
'
$!
&+
,!
78
1
/,
!'
&7
1
,0
'
,1
Y!
78
1
,1
&+
,1
!/
7!
#
/44
!)
+
7!
0
+
M
T
4$
!#
/7
8
!7
8
1
!Z
A
"
!

,9
41
5
N!
!C
8
1
!)
9
,5
/)
*
!8
+
M
1
!/
)
S
1
5
7+
,5
!'
,1
!7
8
1
!+
)
4$
!#
/)
)
1
,5
!/
)
!$
+
9
,!
T
,+
T
+
5
'
45
!)
+
7!
78
1
!T
1
+
T
41
!

+
&!
)
:
4/)
7N

@
H
!7
+
!H
@

3
+
0
'
4!
e
1
5
/%
1
)
7

^7
!/
5
!)
+
7!
)
1
0
1
5
5
'
,$
!7
+
!0
4+
5
1
!:
4/)
7!
6
+
M
M
9
)
/7
$!
A
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
+
,!
4+
5
1
!7
8
1
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
L
1
%
5
!7
+
!

/M
T
,+
S
1
!=
N;
N!
5
1
,S
/0
1
5
N!
!W
1
!)
1
1
%
!'
T
,/
M
'
,$
!8
1
'
47
8
!0
1
)
7,
1
!L
9
7!
#
1
!'
45
+
!)
1
1
%
!'
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!

#
/7
8
!L
1
%
5
N

9
T
!7
+
!F
>

e
1
4'
7/
S
1
!+
,!
6
'
,1
,!
+
&!

T
'
7/
1
)
7!
D!
3
+
0
'
4!

e
1
5
/%
1
)
7

Q
u

e
s
ti

o
n

 7
: 

W
h

ic
h

 

o
f 

th
e
 f

o
ll
o

w
in

g
 

c
a
te

g
o

ri
e
s
 d

o
 y

o
u

 f
it

 

in
to

?

Page 60



C
8
1
,1
!/
5
!)
+
!%
+
9
L
7!
78
'
7!
&'
0
/4/
7/
1
5
!)
1
1
%
!/
)
S
1
5
7M
1
7!
'
)
%
!/
M
T
,+
S
1
M
1
)
7!
L
9
7!
#
8
$!
/5
!7
8
/5
!'
7!
78
1
!

1
]
T
1
)
5
1
!+
&!
78
1
!A
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
'
)
%
!/
75
!L
1
%
5
N!
!C
8
1
!7
#
+
!7
8
/)
*
5
!5
8
+
9
4%
)
+
7!
8
'
S
1
!L
1
1
)
!4
/)
P
1
%
N!
!W
1
!

#
'
)
7!
)
1
#
!&
'
0
/4/
7/
1
5
!L
9
7!
#
1
!'
45
+
!#
'
)
7!
7+
!P
1
1
T
Y!
/M
T
,+
S
1
!'
)
%
!%
1
S
1
4+
T
!+
9
,!
8
+
5
T
/7
'
4N

K
3
+
0
'
4!
e
1
5
/%
1
)
7

n
1
1
T
!7
8
1
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4!
+
T
1
)
N

F
H
!7
+
!@
>

+
78
1
,

^!
78
/)
P
!L
1
%
5
!'
,1
!)
1
1
%
1
%
!/
)
!:
4/)
7

@
H
!7
+
!H
@

Z
A
"
!M
1
M
L
1
,!
+
&!
5
7'
&&

6
+
M
M
9
)
/7
$!
)
1
1
%
5
!7
8
1
/,
!8
+
5
T
/7
'
4

@
H
!7
+
!H
@

+
78
1
,

K
@
H
!7
+
!H
@

3
+
0
'
4!
e
1
5
/%
1
)
7

K
+
S
1
,!
H
>

3
+
0
'
4!
e
1
5
/%
1
)
7

W
/7
8
!7
8
1
!4
'
,*
1
5
7!
8
+
9
5
/)
*
!%
1
S
1
4+
T
M
1
)
7!
1
S
1
,!
9
)
%
1
,7
'
P
1
)
!/
)
!:
4/)
75
8
/,
1
!5
8
+
,7
4$
!7
+
!

0
+
M
M
1
)
0
1
!'
7!
.
'
P
1
)
8
+
47
!8
'
5
!7
8
/5
!L
1
1
)
!7
'
P
1
)
!/
)
7+
!'
0
0
+
9
)
7i

@
H
!7
+
!H
@

3
+
0
'
4!
e
1
5
/%
1
)
7

K
@
H
!7
+
!H
@

3
+
0
'
4!
e
1
5
/%
1
)
7

^!
&/
)
%
!/
7!
7+
7'
44$
!9
)
'
0
0
1
T
7'
L
41
!7
8
'
7!
,1
5
/%
1
)
75
!+
&!
78
1
!5
/o
1
!+
&!
:
4/)
7!
'
,1
!1
]
T
1
0
71
%
!7
+
!7
,'
S
1
4!
7+
!

,1
0
1
/S
1
!M
1
%
/0
'
4!
7,
1
'
7M
1
)
7!
+
,!
0
+
)
S
'
41
5
0
1
)
0
1
!!
C
8
1
,1
!/
5
!'
!7
+
7'
4!
4'
0
P
!+
&!
0
+
)
5
/%
1
,'
7/
+
)
!&
+
,!

T
'
7/
1
)
75
!'
5
!#
1
44!
'
5
!&
'
M
/4/
1
5
!#
8
+
!T
,+
S
/%
1
!5
9
T
T
+
,7
!'
)
%
!0
+
M
&+
,7
N!
^!
8
'
S
1
!8
1
'
,%

+
S
1
,!
H
>

e
1
4'
7/
S
1
!+
,!
6
'
,1
,!
+
&!

T
'
7/
1
)
7!
D!
3
+
0
'
4!

e
1
5
/%
1
)
7

Page 61



!"#$%&'()'*+,-!.

Page 62



!"#$%&'()'*+,-!.

Page 63



PET(4)-03-12 p9a 

P-03-280 Cardiff Royal Infirmary 

 

Petition wording 
 
We the undersigned object in the strongest possible terms to the 
closure of the Cardiff Royal Infirmary. We call upon the National 
Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh Government to ensure that the 
commitment to redevelop the hospital is carried out using public 
money, and that the redevelopment will lead to the refurbishment and 
re-opening of the Cardiff Royal Infirmary as a fully working hospital, 
including an Accident and Emergency Unit and an Intensive Care Unit 
for the ever increasing population of Cardiff and the surrounding area. 
 
Petition raised by: Mrs Breen 
 
Petition first considered by Committee: March 2010 
 
Number of signatures: 4071 
 

Agenda Item 3.6

Page 64



!"#$%&'()'*+,-!.

Page 65



Page 66



PET(4)-03-12 p10a 

P-03-295 Kyle Beere – Paediatric Neuro Rehabilitation 
Services 

Petition wording 

 

We, the undersigned, call upon the National Assembly for Wales to 
urge the Welsh Government to recognise and deliver services for the 
rehabilitation of brain injured children. There is currently no facility in 
Wales to provide this vital service. Despite there being a purpose built 
children's hospital being built in Cardiff, there is still no provision 
included in its design 

 
Petition raised by: Kyle’s Goal 
 
Petition first considered by the Committee: June 2010 
 
Number of signatures: The petition was submitted by Kyle’s Goal. An 
associated petition collected 9,128 signatures.  
 

Agenda Item 3.7

Page 67



!"#$%&'()'*+,-!".

Page 68



Dear sirs

I apologise for the delay in replying, but I have been waiting on information from Aneurin Bevan and 
Hywel Dda Health boards, that have failed to comply with the freedom of information act. 

In the last 5 years there have been a total of 529 paediatric patients (between Abertawe Bro 
Morgannwg University, Betsi Cadwaladr University, Cardiff & Vale University and Cwm Taf Health 

Boards) that could have benefited from a paediatric neuro-rehabilitation centre in Wales.  Powys 
Teaching Health Board do not have any paediatric services which, although is concerning in itself, 

does not have any impact on this petition. 

Yours faithfully 
  

Katherine Simmons 

!"#$%&'()'*+,-!".

Page 69



!"#$%&'()'*+,-!".

Page 70



Page 71



Dear sirs 

 

We have now heard from Aneurin Bevan Health Board and they have had admitted 345 paediatric 

patients with acquired brain injury in the last five years.  This takes the overall total to 874.  We have 

still not heard from Hywel Dda. 

 

In response to WHSCC’s correspondence, there may have only been 8 children referred to Tadworth 

but is this due to cost or need?  It seems 8 patients out of a possible 874 does seem disproportionate 

which would bear out the comments made by Headway. 

 

Regards 

 

Chris Wools 

For and on behalf of Kyle and the trust. 

 

!"#$%&'()'*+,-!".

Page 72



PET(4)-03-12 p11a 

P-04-334 Petition for a new renal unit at Prince Charles Hospital 

Petition wording 

We call upon the National Assembly to urge the Welsh Government to 
build a new Renal Unit at Prince Charles Hospital, Merthyr Tydfil.  

The current unit was built in 1989 to treat up to 16 patients per week 
but that number has now grown to 52. With the number of renal 
patients rising annually we feel it is very important that a new unit is 
built now to cater for the increase. Also with a new upgraded unit it 
would mean that renal patients requiring minor surgical procedures 
could be dealt within the unit rather being transferred to other 
hospitals and taking up much needed bed space. 

The following are just a few problems that we have at present unit: 

1.  No Isolation area (which could lead to cross infection); 
2.  Only one toilet for male and female patients; 
3.  Cramped waiting area; 
4.  Poor air conditioning; 
5.  Unit has been flooded on a number of occasions 

Petition first considered: November 2011 

Petition raised by: Robert Kendrick 

Number of signatures: 56 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 3.8

Page 73



!"#$%&'()'*+,-*!.

Page 74



!"#$%&'()'*+,-*!.

Page 75



!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

"#$$#%&!'()*$$!+,!

-.%#/!'*0#0#(12!-(&&#00**!!
3%0#(1%$!+22*&4$5!6(/!"%$*2!
-%/7#66!8%5!
-%/7#66!
-9::!;3+!

!<=!3(>*&4*/!?=;;!
!
@*%/!,/!'()*$$!
!
P04-334 Petition for a New Renal Unit at Prince Charles Hospital 
!
A!/*6*/!0(!5(B/!$*00*/!(6!0.*!;C0.!DE0(4*/!?=;;!).#E.!)%2!/*E*#>*7!*$*E0/(1#E%$$5!(1!
;20!3(>*&4*/F!
!
G.*!2B4H*E0!(6!0.*!I*0#0#(1!.%2!4**1!%!E%B2*!(6!E(1E*/1!6(/!0.*!-J-!6(/!2(&*!0#&*F!
+2!%!/*2B$0K!%!>#2#0!)%2!%//%1L*7!#1!0.*!DE0(4*/!2E.*7B$*!(6!0.*!EB//*10!&(1#0(/#1L!
>#2#0#1L!/(0%F!
!
G.*!-)&!G%6!-(&&B1#05!J*%$0.!-(B1E#$!&%7*!%1!B1%11(B1E*7!/(B0#1*!#12I*E0#(1!
0(!0.*!M*1%$!@#%$52#2!N1#0!(1!G.B/27%5!;<0.!DE0(4*/!?=;;F!!G.#2!)%2!0.*!6#/20!>#2#0!(6!
-)&!G%6!-J-K!6($$()#1L!%!I/*>#(B2!>#2#0!45!0.*!6(/&*/!,*/0.5/!%17!-51(1!O%$$*5!
-J-F!!G.#2!>#2#0!/%0*7!0.*!6%E#$#05!>*/5!I((/!)#0.!/%#1!I*1*0/%0#(1!4*#1L!.#L.$#L.0*7!%0!
0.%0!0#&*F!
!
G.*!/*E*10!>#2#0!)%2!B17*/0%P*1!45!0)(!*QI*/#*1E*7!&*&4*/2!%17!0.*!P*5!#22B*2!6(/!
0.*!>#2#0!)*/*R!
!
S! M((6!%II*%/*7!B120%4$*K!EB//*10$5!$*%P#1LK!E(1E*/1*7!%4(B0!)#10*/!E(17#0#(12!

E%B2#1L!6B/0.*/!7%&%L*!%17!7*0*/#(/%0#(1!
S! 9%/!0((!2&%$$!6(/!0.*!1B&4*/!(6!I%0#*102!B2#1L!2*/>#E*!2(!I%0#*10!

7#L1#05TI/#>%E5!E(&I/(&#2*7!
S! U0(/%L*!#2!%!/*%$!I/(4$*&F!
!

!
Croesewir gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg a’r Saesneg

We welcome correspondence in English and Welsh 

!

-51L(/!A*E.57!-5&B1*7!-)&!G%6!

Cwm Taf Community Health Council

Prif Swyddog / Chief Officer:!@/!'%B$!"(/0.#1L0(1!
Caedeirydd / Chairman:  V*66!,((/*!

'WGXCYZ=<Z;?!I;!7

Page 76



G.#2!)%2!E(10%#1*7!#1!0.*!J(2I#0%$!O#2#0#1L!,(1#0(/#1L!M*I(/0F!!G.*!-J-!%$2(!
E(&I$*0*!%!J(2I#0%$!O#2#0#1L!6(/&!%17!%!1%//%0#>*!/*I(/0F!!G.*2*!/*I(/02!.%>*!4**1!
2*10!0(!0.*!-)&!G%6![(E%$!J*%$0.!8(%/7!6(/!%!/*2I(12*!0(!(B/!>#2#0F!
!
A!)#$$!7*%$!)#0.!0.*!I/(4$*&2!0.%0!%/*!1B&4*/*7!#1!0.*!I*0#0#(1!%17!)#$$!/*2I(17!)#0.!
/*6*/*1E*!0(!0.*!/*E*10!&(1#0(/#1L!>#2#0!/*I(/02!%17!0.*!&*&4*/2!E(1E*/1*7!
0.*/*)#0.F!!
!
1. No isolation area (which could lead to cross infection).   
!
G.*!/*I(/0!20%0*2!0.%0!0.*!%/*%!#1!L*1*/%$!#2!0((!2&%$$F!G.*/*!#2!1(0!*1(BL.!/((&!6(/!
0.*!4%2#E!6B1E0#(1!(6!0.*!B1#0F!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!
!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!
2. Only one toilet for male and female patients.     
!
G.*/*!#2!(1$5!(1*!0(#$*0!6(/!I%0#*102!#1!0.*!4B#$7#1LF!!G.#2!#2!6(/!B2*!(6!4(0.!&%$*!%17!
6*&%$*!I%0#*102F!!G.*/*!#2!%!20%66!0(#$*0!).#E.!#2!%$2(!B2*7!6(/!20(/%L*!(6!*\B#I&*10F!
G.#2!)%2!.#L.$#L.0*7!#1!0.*!1%//%0#>*!/*I(/0!%17!0.*!>#2#0#1L!6(/&F!
!
3. Cramped waiting area.   
!
G.*!#10*/1%$!%/*%2!%/*!0((!2&%$$!6(/!0.*!1B&4*/!(6!I%0#*102!1**7#1L!0.*!2*/>#E*F!!
G.*/*!%/*!]?!I%0#*102!#1!%$$!/*L#20*/*7!%17!0.*!N1#0!%EE(&&(7%0*2!;<!(6!0.*&!%0!
*%E.!2*22#(1!G.#2!#2!%!I/(4$*&!7B/#1L!0.*!E.%1L*(>*/!(6!&(/1#1L!%17!%60*/1((1!
I%0#*102!4*E%B2*!0.(2*!).(!.%>*!HB20!E(&*!(66!7#%$52#2!XC!./2!(/!2(Y!(60*1!)#2.!0(!
B2*!0.*!6%E#$#0#*2!%17!0.(2*!%4(B0!0(!20%/0!&%5!)#2.!0(!&%P*!0.*&2*$>*2!E(&6(/0%4$*!
4*6(/*!0.*5!20%/0F!!G.*!2I%E*!(B02#7*!0.*!0(#$*0!#2!$#&#0*7!).#$20!0.*!/*E*I0#(1T)%#0#1L!
%/*%!.%2!^!E.%#/2!(1$5K!%17!$#00$*!/((&!6(/!).**$E.%#/2F!!G.*!B1#0!)%2!7*2#L1*7!6(/!
%II/(Q#&%0*$5!%!0.#/7!(6!0.*!EB//*10!2*/>#E*!I/(>#2#(1F!!!
!
4. Poor air conditioning.   
!
@B/#1L!(B/!#12I*E0#(1!0.*!0*&I*/%0B/*!)%2!1(/&%$!4B0!)*!)*/*!#16(/&*7!0.%0!0.*!%#/!
E(17#0#(1#1L!B1#0!.%7!6%#$*7!#1!0.*!I%20!)**PF!"*!B17*/20%17!0.*!2520*&!#2!2(!($7!
0.%0!1*)!I%/02!E%11(0!4*!(40%#1*7!%17!0.*!2520*&!.%2!E(($#1L!L%2*2!).#E.!%/*!1()!
(B02#7*!0.*!$*L%$!6/%&*)(/PF!
!
5. Unit has been flooded on a number of occasions.  
!
G.#2!)%2!/*E(/7*7!%2!%!&%H(/!I/(4$*&!(1!0.#2!%17!I/*>#(B2!&(1#0(/#1L!>#2#02F!G.#2!#2!
4*E%B2*!(6!0.*!20%0*!(6!/*I%#/!%17!20/BE0B/*!(6!0.*!4B#$7#1LF!!!!
!
!
G.*!4(75!(6!0.*!I*0#0#(1!20%0*2!).5!%E0#(1!#2!/*\B*20*7F!!"*!.%>*!%$2(!7#2EB22*7!0.*!
#22B*!)#0.!0.*!-.#*6!WQ*EB0#>*!(6!-)&!G%6!J*%$0.!8(%/7!%17!)*!%/*!%)%/*!0.*5!
2.%/*!(B/!E(1E*/12!%17!%/*!)(/P#1L!%E0#>*$5!0(!6#17!%!2($B0#(1F!
!
G.*!I*0#0#(1*/2!/*6*/!0(!0.*!#1E/*%2*!#1!I%0#*10!1B&4*/2F!+2!%!/*2B$0!%!1*)!4B#$7#1L!#2!
/*\B#/*7!0(!E%0*/!6(/!0.#2!%77#0#(1%$!#1E/*%2*!%17!&(/*!I/(E*7B/*2!E(B$7!4*!
B17*/0%P*1!%0!0.#2!B1#0!#120*%7!(6!4*#1L!B17*/0%P*1!%0!%1(0.*/!6%E#$#05F!

Page 77



G.#2!N1#0!#2!2#0B%0*7!#1!%!5%/7!%/*%F!A0!#2!%!I/*6%4/#E%0*7!2#1L$*!20(/5!4B#$7#1L!
%II/(Q#&%0*$5!?=!5*%/2!($7F!!G.*!#10*/1%$!%/*%2!%/*!0((!2&%$$!6(/!0.*!1B&4*/!(6!
I%0#*102!1**7#1L!0.*!2*/>#E*F!!G.*/*!%/*!]?!I%0#*102!#1!%$$!/*L#20*/*7!%17!0.*!N1#0!
%EE(&&(7%0*2!;<!(6!0.*&!%0!*%E.!2*22#(1F!G.*!N1#0!#2!(I*1!,(17%5!0(!U%0B/7%5!
%17!]!20%66!%/*!(1!7B05!*%E.!7%5F!!!!
!
9(/!5(B/!#16(/&%0#(1!0.*!L/(B17T*20%0*2!%/*!0.*!/*2I(12#4#$#05!(6!-)&!G%6![(E%$!
J*%$0.!8(%/7!).#$20!-%/7#66!_!O%$*!N1#>*/2#05![(E%$!J*%$0.!8(%/7!%/*!0.*!2*/>#E*!
I/(>#7*/2F!+!I/#>%0*!E(&I%15!I/(>#7*2!0.*!7#%$52#2!&%E.#1*/5!I$B2!0.*!1B/2*2!).(!
%/*!2I*E#%$$5!0/%#1*7!0(!7*$#>*/!0.*!0/*%0&*10F!-(&&#22#(1#1L!(6!0.*!2*/>#E*!#2!0.*!
/*2I(12#4#$#05!(6!"*$2.!J*%$0.!UI*E#%$#2*7!U*/>#E*2F!
!
G.*!-(&&B1#05!J*%$0.!-(B1E#$!#2!(6!0.*!>#*)!0.%0!0.#2!N1#0!1**72!/*I$%E#1L!B/L*10$5!
%17!0.*/*!.%>*!4**1!I$%12!6(/!0.*!1*)!4B#$7K!).#E.!.%2!4**1!7*$%5*7!1B&*/(B2!
0#&*2!6(/!7#66*/*10!/*%2(12!6(/!%0!$*%20!]!5*%/2F!!A!B17*/20%17!0.%0!%1!%&*17*7!
8B2#1*22!VB20#6#E%0#(1!-%2*!6(/!%!1*)!/*1%$!B1#0!.%2!4**1!2B4&#00*7!0(!0.*!"*$2.!
`(>*/1&*10K!4B0!0.*/*!#2!%1!#22B*!%/(B17!0.*!%>%#$%4#$#05!(6!E%I#0%$!6B17#1LF!
!
G.*!&(1#0(/#1L!>#2#0#1L!0*%&!.%>*K!%2!%!/*2B$0!(6!0.*#/!>#2#0K!%2P*7!6(/!2(&*!B/L*10!
/*I%#/2!%17!.*$I!)#0.!2(&*!I%0#*102!E(&6(/02!I/#(/!0(!%15!1*)!4B#$7F!G.#2!#1!I%/0#EB$%/!
6(EB2*2!(1!0.*!20%0*!(6!0.*!4B#$7#1LK!1*)!P#0E.*1!6%E#$#0#*2!%17!2BII$*&*10%/5!
.*%0#1LF!!!!
!
G.*!-J-!&(1#0(/#1L!0*%&!2I(P*!0(!^!(6!0.*!;<!I%0#*102!I/*2*10!7B/#1L!0.*!>#2#0!%17!
%$$!I%0#*102K!)#0.(B0!*QE*I0#(1K!I/%#2*7!0.*!20%66!%17!E(12B$0%10!6(/!0.*#/!7*7#E%0#(1!0(!
0.*&!%17!2%#7!0.%0!0.*!0/*%0&*10!0.*5!/*E*#>*!#2!6#/20!E$%22F!!A0!#2!0.*!L*1*/%$!4B#$7#1L!
7*6*E02!0.%0!E%B2*2!0.*&!E(1E*/1F!!G.*5!)#2.!0(!2**!%$$!0.*!I/(&#2*2!(6!%!1*)!4B#$7!
E(&*!0(!6/B#0#(1F!
!!
G/%12I(/0!)%2!%$2(!%!4#L!#22B*!)#0.!0.*!I%0#*102F!!,*&4*/2!(6!0.*!-(B1E#$!.%>*!4**1!
#16(/&*7!0.%0!I%0#*102!(60*1!.%>*!0(!)%#0!BI!0(!%!.%$6Z.(B/!(/!2(!6(/!0.*!&(/1#1L!I#EPZ
BI!%17!%0!0.*!*17!(6!%!6(B/!%17!.%$6!.(B/!7#%$52#2!2*22#(1!0.*5!E%1!4*!)%#0#1L!%2!
&BE.!%2!%1!.(B/!%17!%!.%$6F!!U(&*!%/*!7#%4*0#E!%17!)#$$!.%>*!.%7!(1$5!0*%!%17!
4#2EB#02!7B/#1L!0.*#/!2*22#(1F!D0.*/!I%0#*102!%/*!6(/0B1%0*!0(!.%>*!>($B10**/!E%/!
7/#>*/2!6(/!0.*#/!I#EPZBI2!%17!0.*2*!%/*!%$)%52!(1!0#&*F!!J()*>*/!0.*/*!#2!1(!
>($B10**/!2*/>#E*!(1!%!U%0B/7%5F!G.*/*!%/*!1(!7*2#L1%0*7!E%/!I%/P#1L!2I%E*2!%17!%2!
0.*/*!%/*!(0.*/!4B#$7#1L2!%/(B17!0.*!%/*%!I%/P#1L!)%2!E(1L*20*7F!
!
!
a(B/2!2#1E*/*$5!
!

!
!
!

Page 78



PET(4)-03-12 p11e 
Petitions Committee Rapporteur Visit to Prince Charles Hospital 
Renal Unit, Merthyr 
 
19 January 2012 

 
Present: 

• William Powell AM, Chair  
• Bethan Jenkins AM  
• Robert Kendrick, lead petitioner and patient at the renal unit 
• Dr Mat Davies, renal unit clinician 
• Kathryn Amaro, nursing manager of the renal unit 
• Richard Parry, B Braun  
• Allison Williams Chief Executive, Cwm Taf Health Board 
• Dr Christopher Jones Chairman, Cwm Taf Health Board 
• Debbie Owen, Cwm Taf Health Board Communications Manager 
• Abigail Phillips, Clerk to the Petitions Committee  
• Sarita Marshall, Deputy Clerk to the Petitions Committee 
• Alex Feeney, NAW Press Officer 

 
Background: 
The Committee received a petition calling for a new renal unit at Prince 
Charles Hospital in November 2011. The petition was submitted by a 
renal patient and collected in the region of 1,150 signatures. The 
wording is as follows:  
 

Petition for a new renal unit at Prince Charles Hospital, 
Merthyr Tydfil  
The current unit was built in 1989 to treat up to 16 patients 
per week that number has now grown to 52. So with the rising 
number of renal patients rising annually it is really important 
that we have a new renal unit. 
The following are just a few of the problems that we have to 
put up with:  
1.  No Isolation Area (which could lead to cross infection) 
2.  Only one toilet for all patients both male and female 
3.  Cramped waiting room 
4.  Poor airconditioning 
5.  Unit has been flooded on a number of occasions 
  

During its first consideration of the petition, the Committee agreed to 
visit the unit before considering its next action. 
 
Existing Unit 
We chatted informally with patients and staff at the unit. We were told 
that the unit has been located in a portocabin since 1989 and that the 
‘life expectancy’ of the facility within the portocabin was seven years. 
The Chair of the Health Board told us that the number of patients 
requiring treatment at the unit has increased threefold since the unit 

Page 79



was opened, and that Merthyr has the highest incidence of renal illness 
in Wales. 
 
Clinicians and patients told us that dialysis takes up to 3.5 to 5 hours 
at a time, and that patients may require this treatment for three days a 
week for the rest of their lives. We were also told that some of the 
patients receiving treatment in this unit live as far away as Llandrindod 
Wells. With travel time, this can mean a 7.5 hour day for some 
patients. Given the amount of time patients spend in the unit, comfort 
and practicality are key concerns.  
 
We witnessed the close quarters within which patients are treated and 
staff operate. We were told how the lack of space impacts on the 
dignity of patients and how it is difficult to manoeuvre trolleys and 
equipment. There is no space for an isolation unit, meaning that 
patients with infectious illnesses, such as ‘flu, are treated in the main 
unit, which can lead to cross-contamination. 
 
Patients described some of the problems experienced in the unit. 
These included flooding and residual damp; condensation; 
inconsistent air conditioning, leaving patients cold; the fact that there 
is only one toilet for all patients and staff, and that this is also used by 
ambulance staff due to the nature of their job; and unsuitable 
fluorescent lighting. 
 
One patient told us that, two years ago, the unit was declared unfit for 
use and that the unit falls below the legal standards for space between 
beds/treatment chairs and toilet facilities.  This was confirmed by staff 
at the unit. She also pointed out the lack of canopy at the entrance, 
meaning that patients are at the mercy of the elements in transferring 
between ambulance/car and the entrance. This is a particular problem 
for those on stretchers. 
 
Staff told us that they found the working conditions cramped, which 
made manual handling difficult and that there is a lack of privacy for 
the patients. We were told that private consultations have to take place 
in a room that doubles up as a store cupboard. We were also told that 
the water treatment facilities at the unit were below par and that the 
conditions make it difficult for the cleaners to do their job, although 
they do very well under the circumstances. 
 
The unit has two televisions, which some patients watch. However, for 
those who want to sleep, the sound from the televisions can be a 
problem. Patients told us that, ideally, they would like individual 
television monitors, as in other renal units, but at the very least, they 
would like to have headphones so that people can choose whether 
they listen to the television or not. 
 

Page 80



We were told that there is a waiting list to receive treatment at the 
unit, and that many have to travel to Cardiff for treatment. Conversely, 
some patients opt to travel to Cardiff to receive treatment due to the 
condition and lack of facilities at the Prince Charles Hospital unit 
 
The waiting room has space for nine seats only, but there may be as 
many as 19 patients at the unit at any one time, and some of these 
patients are in wheelchairs, which require more space and room to 
manoeuvre.  
 
Partnership Arrangements at the Unit 
The Chief Executive outlined the partnership arrangements under 
which the unit is operated. The partners are: the Welsh Health 
Specialised Services Committee (which is made up of representatives 
of every health board), Cardiff and Vale University Health Board as the 
clinical service provider, Cwm Taf Health Board as the landlord, and B 
Braun, a private company commissioned to provide the consumables 
and fittings for the unit.  
 
We were told that commissioning a private company to provide this 
service saves the NHS up to £20 per person per dialysis session, 
compared with the cost to the NHS of providing this service through its 
own means. We were told that competitive tendering provides best 
value. 
 
Plans for New Unit 
The Chief Executive told us that WHSSC has decided unequivocally to 
retain a renal service in Merthyr. It had decided that Prince Charles 
Hospital was the preferred site due to the size of the unit required. 
Architectural plans were displayed in the waiting area for the new unit, 
which was proposed in 2010. The CE explained that any capital 
investment needs to be future-proof, so the proposed unit needed to 
have reinforced foundations and roof to support any storeys that may 
be added in the future. 
 
Due to a cut in NHS funding (we were told that by the Chair of the 
Health Board that the all-Wales capital fund had been reduced by 40 
per cent), this proposal is no longer possible within the current 
financial settlement. It was felt that once other upgrading on the site 
has been completed, there would be existing space within which the 
unit could be located. However, the space will not become available 
until 2018, which all parties agree is too long to wait. 
 
WHSSC then took the decision to look at options for a third party to 
develop a unit within three miles of the hospital and has identified a 
site adjacent to the new Merthyr health park, which is due to open in 
September 2012. There are disadvantages in not being connected to 
the main hospital in terms of the close proximity of doctors and the 
need to use ambulances in an emergency and the time delay involved 

Page 81



in that. The nursing manager also pointed out that a number of people 
with renal disease also suffer with co-morbid illnesses and that the 
number of dependent patients will increase as people live longer and 
that therefore an on-site model would be preferred. However, the CE 
told us that the off-site model works in the unit in Pentwyn, Cardiff 
and elsewhere.  
 
Other options considered include construction adjacent to an 
ambulance station, and converting former blocks of accommodation 
on-site However, it has been decided that the footprints of these 
locations are not the appropriate size and shape.  
 
Therefore, the option on Merthyr health park is now being actively 
pursued and feasibility work needs to be completed and a tendering 
process started. It is thought that the planning permission is likely to 
be granted and it is estimated that the construction would take less 
than 12 months to complete. However, were capital money to become 
available, the CE told us that they would revert to plan A and build the 
unit proposed in 2010 on the periphery of the site. 
 
As this model would be developed by a third party, there will not be 
upfront costs and therefore the development is not dependent on 
capital. It is estimated that the final cost of this development would be 
£6.5 million. We have been informed that the originally planned 
developed on the hospital site would have cost between £4 and 4.5 
million in capital.  
 
Renal Unit at Pentwyn, Cardiff 
Patients and staff spoke of the unit at Pentwyn, Cardiff, The 
representative of B Braun told us that the unit there is state of the art 
and fitted to the European standard, that it is located in a converted 
unit on an industrial estate (and is therefore not on a hospital site) and 
that it was built at a much lower cost than that of building an NHS 
building from scratch. This unit also provides water treatment that is 
cannot be provided at Prince Charles Hospital.  
 
Outcome of Meeting 
The Chief Executive made a commitment to the petitioner that she 
would ensure that WHSSC met with patients to discuss the proposal, so 
that patients could raise any concerns around access and so on.  
 
Suggested Further Action  
The Committee may want to visit the unit in Pentwyn, Cardiff, to 
discuss the advantages and disadvantages of the off-site model with 
patients and staff. 
 
Committee Service 
January 2012 

Page 82



PET(4)-03-12 p12a 

P-04-348 Recycling Targets for Health Boards 
 
Petition wording: 

We call on the National Assembly for Wales to recommend to the Minister for 
Health that she introduce legally binding recycling targets for Health Boards 
in Wales at a similar level to that imposed on Local Authorities. 
 
Supporting Information 
A recent Freedom of Information request indicated that the Maelor Hospital 
in Wrecsam disposed of 1200 tonnes of waste last year (which does not 
include electrical units WWEE). Only 3% of that waste is recycled and 55% 
goes into landfill including all food waste. This lack of committment to 
recycling is unacceptable and with several local facilities available it is also 
inexcusable. The total cost of removing waste from the Maelor annually is in 
the region of £350,000 and if this reflected across Wales then the cost is 
probably in the region of £5 million.  

 

Petition raised by: Cllr Arfon Jones 

Date petition first considered by Committee: 29 November 2011 

Number of signatures: 29 

 

Agenda Item 3.9

Page 83



!"#$%&'()'*+,-*!.

Page 84



Page 85



Correspondence received from the Petitioner in response to correspondence received 

from the Minister for Health and Social Services. 

 

 
From: Arfon Jones   

Sent: 26 January 2012 18:29 
To: 'Petition' 

Subject: ATB/RE: PET(4)-03-12 Agenda 07-01-2012 - P-04-348 Recycling Targets for Health Boards 

 

Yes I have some observations – I accept her arguments for hazardous waste and bio 

waste but what proportion of those is the total waste that goes into landfill I will forward 

the original FOI response. To be frank I feel the letter looks for reasons not to do 

something rather than reasons to do something. 

I would ask that the Petitions Committee ask the Health and Environmental and 

Sustainability Committees to consider my petition; that way we seek a broader view 

amongst back-bench AM’s 

 

Regards, 

Cllr Arfon Jones.     

 

 

 

 

Below is a Freedom of information request from the Petitioner to Betsi Cadwaladr 

University Health Board  

 

 

 

 

Rhodri – Original response to FOI request from which this petition arose: 

 

Re: Request under Freedom of Information Act 2000 

! 
"#$%&!'()!*(+!'()+!+,-),./!*(+!0%*(+1$/0(%!2#03#!2,!+,3,04,5!(%!/#,!66/#!7$%)$+'8!!9:,$.,!
*0%5!;,:(2!$!+,.<(%.,!/(!'()+!-),+'8 
! 
=()!$.&,5!).> 

1.! ?#(!0.!@ABCD@!3(%/+$3/(+!*(+!+,1(40%E!2$./,!*+(1!=.;'/'!F$,:(+8G 

2.! "(/$:!/(%%$E,!(*!2$./,!+,1(4,5!*+(1!=.;'/'!F$,:(+!0%!/#,!6H1(%/#.!,%50%E!
I6J6HJ6KG 

3.! ?#$/!2$.!/#,!L!(*!2$./,!/#$/!2,%/!0%/(!:$%5*0::G 

4.! ?#$/!2$.!/#,!L!(*!2$./,!/#$/!2$.!+,3'3:,5G 

5.! D(2!2$.!*((5!2$./,!50.<(.,5!(*!:$%5*0::!(+!+,3'3:,5G 

6.! "(/$:!3(./!(*!$::!2$./,!50.<(.$:!0%3:)50%E!#$M$+5().!2$./,!*+(1!=.;'/'!F$,:(+!0%!
.$1,!<,+0(5 

7.! ?#$/!2$.!/#,!3(./!(*!:$%5*0::!/$N!*(+!6H!1(%/#.!)<!/(!I6J6HJ6K 

  

O,.<(%.,> 

1.! P!%)1;,+!(*!3(%/+$3/(+.!+,1(4,!2$./,!*+(1!=.';/'!F$,:(+!$.!*(::(2.> 
!!!!!!@0**$!+,1(4,!;:$3&!;$E!QE,%,+$:R!2$./, 

!!!!!!SOAC!+,1(4,!3:0%03$:!2$./, 

!!!!!!P:$%!S&0<!D0+,!+,1(4,!;):&'!E,%,+$:!2$./,!,8E8!*)+%0/)+, 

!!!!!!?D!A#$:(%,+!+,1(4,!.3+$<!1,/$:!2$./, 

!!!!!!@$:3$%!T%E0%,,+0%E!+,1(4,.!*:)(+,.3,%/!/);,!2$./, 

9T"QURVKIV6H!<6!3

Page 86



!!!!!!9DS!?$./,!1$%$E,1,%/!+,1(4,.!?$./,!T:,3/+(%03!$%5!T:,3/+03$:!T-)0<1,%/!Q?TTTR8 
! 

2.! "(/$:!/(%%$E,!(*!2$./,!+,1(4,5!0%!/#,!6H!1(%/#.!,%50%E!I6J6HJ6K!0.!66HW8HH8!!"#0.!
,N3:)5,.!?TTT!$.!0/!0.%X/!+,3(+5,5!0%!/(%%,.Y!0/X.!+,3(+5,5!0%!%)1;,+!(*!)%0/.Y!,EY!/#,!
%)1;,+!(*!*+05E,.8!!Z(+!0%*(+1$/0(%Y!$::!?TTT!0.!+,3'3:,58 

! 
3.! [[L!(*!2$./,!2,%/!/(!:$%5*0:: 

! 
4.! IL!(*!/#,!66HW8HH"!2$.!+,3'3:,5!\!E$+5,%!2$./,!$%5!.3+$<!1,/$:8 

! 
5.! Z((5!2$./,!E(,.!/(!:$%5*0::8 

! 
6.! "#,!/(/$:!3(./!2$.!]IHUYW^H8K6_!/#0.!,N3:)5,.!/#,!3(./!(*!?TTT8 

! 
7.! C$%5*0::!"$N!*(+!/#,!6H!1(%/#.!<,+0(5!)<!/(!I6J6HJ6K!2$.!]H`YHKa86H8 

! 
"#,!0%*(+1$/0(%!2,!#$4,!.)<<:0,5!/(!'()!0.!3(<'+0E#/,5!/(!@,/.0!A$52$:$5+!B%04,+.0/'!D,$:/#!
@($+5!$%5!3(%/0%),.!/(!;,!<+(/,3/,5!;'!/#,!A(<'+0E#/Y!b,.0E%.!$%5!9$/,%/.!P3/!6W``8!!=()!
$+,!*+,,!/(!).,!0/!*(+!'()+!(2%!<)+<(.,.Y!0%3:)50%E!$%'!%(%V3(11,+30$:!+,.,$+3#!'()!$+,!
)%5,+/$&0%E!$%5!*(+!/#,!<)+<(.,.!(*!%,2.!+,<(+/0%E8!! 
! 
c!/+)./!/#$/!'()!20::!;,!.$/0.*0,5!20/#!/#,!0%*(+1$/0(%!<+(405,5!#(2,4,+_!.#():5!'()!;,!
50..$/0.*0,5!*(+!$%'!+,$.(%!'()!5(!#$4,!$!+0E#/!/(!3(1<:$0%!/(!/#,!D,$:/#!@($+5!$%5!$.&!*(+!
'()+!+,-),./!/(!;,!+,40,2,58!!S#():5!'()!20.#!/(!+,E0./,+!$!3(1<:$0%/!<:,$.,!3(%/$3/!/#,!
Z+,,5(1!(*!c%*(+1$/0(%!b,<$+/1,%/!$/!/#,!*(::(20%E!$55+,..> 

A(1<:$0%/.!F$%$E,+ 
@,/.0!A$52$:$5+!B%04,+.0/'!C(3$:!D,$:/#!@($+5 

=.;'/'!d2'%,55Y!@$%E(+Y!CC[a!H9? 

! 
c!2():5!:0&,!/(!$..)+,!'()!/#$/!/#,!D,$:/#!@($+5!0.!3(110//,5!/(!+,.(:40%E!3(1<:$0%/.!
$103$;:'!$%5!20::!$:2$'.!/+'!/(!+,.(:4,!/#,!1$//,+!/(!'()+!+,$.(%$;:,!.$/0.*$3/0(%8!!D(2,4,+Y!
0*!'()!$+,!./0::!)%#$<<'!20/#!/#,!+,.<(%.,!'()!+,3,04,!'()!1$'!2+0/,!/(> 

c%*(+1$/0(%!A(110..0(%,+.!e**03, 

?'3:0**,!D().,Y!?$/,+!C$%,Y!?0:1.:(2Y!SfW![PZ 

! 
"#,+,!0.!%(!3#$+E,!*(+!1$&0%E!$%!$<<,$:8 
! 
 

Page 87



!"#$%&'()'*+,-*+.

Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



PET(4)-03-12 p12a 

P-03-143 Ysgol Penmaes 

Petition wording 

We the undersigned request that the National Assembly for Wales urge 
the Welsh Assembly Government to invest in better transport links in 
rural areas like Powys. 
 
Petition raised by: Catherine Lewis 
 
Petition first considered by: August 2008 
 
Number of signatures: 15 
 
 

Agenda Item 3.10

Page 91



PET(4)-03-12 p14a 

P-04-331 Filming and Recording of Council Meetings 

Petition wording 
We call upon the National Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh Government 
to place a statutory requirement on all local authorities in Wales to record, 
broadcast or livestream all Council meetings which are open to the public, 
via their existing websites to ensure openness and transparency. This 
requirement should allow members of the public, as responsible observers, 
to record or film such meetings without the need for prior permission and to 
re-use the material freely to provide a direct and wider line of 
communication to the electorate.  
 
Petition raised by: Jacqui Thompson 

Petition first considered by Committee: September 2011 
 
Number of signatures: 223 

Please follow the link to access full consultation response: 
http://www.senedd.assemblywales.org/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=1741  

Agenda Item 4.1

Page 92



PET(4)-02-12 p15a 

P-04-332 Local Authority Spending Details over £500 

Petition wording 

We call upon the National Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh Government 

to place a statutory requirement on all local authorities in Wales to publish 

details of all spending over £500 in the interest of openness and 

transparency. The details should be published online and in a format 

accessible to the public with the freedom to re-use the data.  

 

Petition raised by: Jacqui Thompson 

Petition first considered by Committee: September 2011  

 

Number of signatures: 77 

 

Supporting information: Many English Councils now publish this 

information on their websites. The information is already available on 

various internal council databases so would merely need to be collated 

centrally and in a form suitable for access and in compliance with the Data 

Protection Act.. Initial costs would be offset by a reduction in the volume of 

Freedom of Information requests received by Local Authorities concerning 

spending details. 

Please follow the link to access full consultation response: 

http://www.senedd.assemblywales.org/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=1742  

 

Agenda Item 4.2

Page 93



Local Authority Spending details 

 

1. Why Monmouthshire County Council (MCC) decided to publish spend data 

a.! One of Monmouthshire’s values is openness and it is keen to demonstrate this value 

wherever it can.  It is trying to embrace the Open Government agenda in a number 

of ways and publishing spend data is just one of these areas. 

b.! The Leader of the Council and the Cabinet Member for Finance Performance and 

Improvement were keen for this piece of work to be undertaken to both promote 

openness and accountability  

c.! They were keen to get a handle on the scope of the task along with any potential 

issues and constraints and so asked for this to be done. 

d.! As English Authorities are required to do this, the topic was being discussed at user 

group meetings attended by our financial systems manager which raised awareness 

of the requirement and enabled us to learn from others experiences. 

 

2. Barriers faced in setting up 

a.! Over the years MCC has developed its general ledger coding to meet the 

requirements of the Authority. Whilst the data required was held within the system 

it was maintained in different elements of the system and as such a bespoke report 

needed to be written to extract the required data from the specific elements and 

piece them together.   This required resources and skills to be prioritised and 

therefore meant that other development work on the system was delayed. 

b.! To simplify the report writing and avoid having to change the report if the value limit 

of £500 changed, it was decided to ignore the limit and publish all spend data.  This 

was felt to be a more open approach and all the data would be available for any FOI 

searches. 

c.! The exclusions and redactions was quite a complex area.  It required ensuring that 

the data was structured in such a way that these areas could be easily identified and 

automatically excluded or redacted. Where the data could not be easily identified 

these transactions were reviewed and where possible new recording requirements 

put in place.  Input and feedback was sought from the Data Protection / Freedom of 

Information expert in the Authority to review the data (Generally 10,000 

transactions per month) that we intended to publish.  A cautious approach has been 

adopted in this area and in addition Suppliers are advised that supplier transaction 

details are published on our Website 

d.! As the report was pulling data from various elements within the system it was 

important that the information published was complete so this required that the 

report was fully reconciled to the Financial System.   

e.! Getting the web site page ready to publish the data was aided by working with 

another Authority to use their format which was clear, concise and easily 

understood. 

f.! Initially there was a concern that resources would be needed to field calls from 

suppliers and others in relation to the data, however authorities publishing their 

data didn’t report further queries to that already received under the Freedom of 

Information Act.  Our experience has been the same. 

"#$%&'()!(*+!,*!-!"#$$%&'#()%(*%!+$#,!-#(,#./0&01$%!"#.(/2!"#.(*13

Page 94



g.! Consideration was given to other establishments, where we hold their transactional 

information within our Creditor Ledger such as Schools etc., to ensure the various 

establishments were consulted about the publication of data relating to their spend. 

h.! Budget holders needed to be involved in the process: 

i.! They were the officers who knew what the transaction / expenditure related 

to and could identify if there was a need to redact any of the details or 

provide further information. 

ii.! They were also responsible for ensuring the transactions were coded 

correctly – miscoding could be very misleading to the reader. 

iii.! The data extract was extended to include data that would assist budget 

holders in identifying the transactions they needed to review. 

iv.!  Managers role in reviewing the data prior to publication was identified 

v.! A three month trial from January 2011 to March 2011 was run but not 

published so that the process could be tested and bedded in. To avoid 

managers ignoring or deleting the notifications, various transactions were 

highlighted to both amuse and cause controversy.  This certainly gained 

some interest and raised some interesting questions 

 

3. On-going Financial and Practical Considerations 

a.! A check list has been built up over the months from experience and officers 

comments  identifying transactions that: 

i.! Fall outside the report parameters 

ii.! Need to be redacted on a regular basis 

iii.! Potentially need an explanation 

b.! Data Protection 

i.!  Two reviews of the data are undertaken by two separate officers to ensure 

that any Supplier that appears to be a name is redacted. 

c.! Fraud 

i.! The Accounts Payable function has a number of checks to ensure that new 

Suppliers or changes to supplier details are authentic. 

ii.! With more and more information being disclosed it will be easier for the 

fraudster. 

d.! Petty Cash 

i.! A  review of the listing each month is done , to ensure that a reviewer 

cannot make out a location and value of Petty Cash – or determine a pattern 

e.! Resource Commitment 

i.! This is generally two days per month, but continuing to seek ways to make 

this more efficient. 

f.! FOIs  

i.! FOIs have not decreased 

Page 95


	Agenda
	2.1 P-04-362 Ambulance Services in Monmouth
	2.2 P-04-364 Fibre Optic for Rural Area's
	3.1 P-04-354 Public statement of support for Bradley Manning
	PET(4)-03-12 p4b Statement of Opinion

	3.2 P-04-352 Save Roath Steam Laundry
	PET(4)-03-12 p5b Correspondence from Cardiff Council

	3.3 P-04-340 Create an Enterprise Zone in Newport
	PET(4)-03-12 p6b Correspondence from the Minister for Business, Enterprise, Technology and Science
	PET(4)-03-12 p6c Extract from Plenary Transcript

	3.4 P-03-315 New Dyfi River Crossing Petition
	PET(4)-03-12 p7b Correspondence from the Minister for Local Government and Communities
	PET(4)-03-12 p7c Petitioner's Response to Minister

	3.5 P-03-085 Surgeries in Flintshire
	PET(4)-03-12 p8b Betsi Cadwaladr to Chair re response
	PET(4)-03-12 p8c Flintshire CC to Chair re response
	PET(4)-03-12 p8d Further correspondence from Flintshire County Council

	3.6 P-03-280 Cardiff Royal Infirmary
	PET(4)-03-12 p9b Correspondence from Cardiff and Vale University Health Board

	3.7 P-03-295 Kyle Beere - Paediatric Neuro Rehabilitation Services
	PET(4)-03-12 p10b Correspondence from Welsh Health Specialised Services Committee (WHSSC)
	PET(4)-03-12 p10c Correspondence from the petitioner
	PET(4)-03-12 p10d Correspondence from Headway
	PET(4)-03-12 p10e Update from the Petitioner

	3.8 P-04-334 Petition for a new renal unit at Prince Charles Hospital
	PET(4)-03-12 p11b Correspondence from the Minister for Health and Social Services
	PET(4)-03-12 p11c Correspondence from the Cwm Taf Health Board
	PET(4)-03-12 p11d Correspondence from Cwm Taf Community Health Council
	PET(4)-03-12 p11e Rapporteur Visit - Note

	3.9 P-04-348 Recycling Targets for Health Boards
	PET(4)-03-12 p12b Correspondence from the Minister for Health and Social Services
	PET(4)-03-12 p12c Correspondence from the petitioner
	PET(4)-03-12 p12d Correspondence from Hywel Dda Health Board

	3.10 P-03-143 Ysgol Penmaes
	4.1 P-04-331 Filming and Recording of Council Meetings
	4.2 P-04-332 Local Authority Spending Details over £500
	PET(4)-03-12 p15b Correspondence from Monmouthshire County Council


